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PART A:

GENERAL
INFORMATION

1. FOREWORD BY THE MINISTER
During the year under review, the Country has embarked on the
National Elections of the new Government.
Subsequently, the Department of Water and Sanitation was
merged with the Department of Human Settlement which marks
an expansion and alignment on the focus areas and will accelerate
service delivery to the people of South Africa.
The Department of Human Settlement, Water and Sanitation
is continuing its focus on the development of the Five Pillar
turnaround Strategy which includes the Institutional Rationalisation
and Organisational Alignment.
The focus on reviving the aging infrastructure with the aim to
eradicate the consequences of the past through viable delivery
models remains a priority.
The adoption of the new infrastructure implementation models
to address the current problems remains key in order to fully
Ms Lindiwe Nonceba Sisulu
integrate new housing development with economic opportunities
Minister of Human Settlement, Water
and with the building of dams, water pipelines and other amenities.
and Sanitation
As a water scarce Country, the Department is confronting water crises in many parts of the country including
the areas serviced by Bloem Water.
The Department is urgently establishing an inter-governmental rapid response technical teams, reinforced
by specialist professionals, to intervene in areas which are experiencing severe water problems. The
Department will also deliberate intensely about the establishment of a Water Regulator supported by the
appropriate legislation to manage both state- and privately-owned water resources and to optimise in a
fair and judicious manner the nation’s water resource as a strategic economic asset and in the interest of
all who live in South Africa.
I am fully aware that the current Board of Bloem Water is as new as myself in the Department and would
like to wish them a very steadfast approach in playing the oversight role within the Entity.  It is also befitting
to commend the Board members that passed the baton as they have laid an undoubted solid foundation
towards achieving the strategic goals of the Entity as set out in the Shareholder’s Compact.

MS LINDIWE SISULU
Minister of Human Settlement, Water and Sanitation
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2. ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE

Bloem Water was established in 1991 as Water Utility in terms of Water Services Act 108 of 1997. It was
then mandated to function at the Caledon/Bloemfontein Government Water Scheme as well as supply bulk
water to the Municipal areas of Bloemfontein, Bainsvlei, Bloemspruit, Botshabelo, the biggest township
in the Free State and Dewetsdorp. Subsequently, it was officially gazetted in 1994 to operate and run its
activities in accordance with the relevant Act with its Head Office located in Bloemfontein. In total Bloem
Water serves a population in excess of 1.2 million.
Bloem Water accounts to the Minister of Human Settlement, Water and Sanitation (DHSWS) as the
Executive Authority, through the Board as the Accounting Authority. It is listed as a Schedule 3B National
Government Business Enterprise In terms of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act No. 1 of 1999,
as amended.
The area of service was further extended to the Southern Free State: Bethulie and Philippolis. Following
integration of Homelands during new dispensation, Thaba ‘Nchu district was also added. This homeland
has 42 typical rural villages, approximately 65 km east of Bloemfontein and lastly Excelsior, located in the
Eastern Free State as depicted in the maps below.
It is currently executing its operations through three water schemes on behalf of the DHSWS namely:
Modder River, Caledon River and Orange River. These schemes function through seven (7) water treatment
works which are located within the Water Service Authorities (Municipalities), Mangaung Metropolitan
Municipality, Mantsopa Local Municipality and Kopanong Local Municipality.

Telephone Number:

(051) 403-0800

Fax Number

+27 51 422 5333

Email

admin@bloemwater.co.za

Website

www.bloemwater.co.za

External Auditors

Auditor-General SA

Bankers

First National Bank

Company Secretary

Ms. N Silevu

Registered Name:

BLOEM WATER

Physical Address

2 Mzuzu Street
Pellissier
Bloemfontein

Postal Address

P.O. Box 30121
Bloemfontein 9322
Free State
South Africa
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3. BLOEM WATER ACTIVITIES

The access to basic Water Services and Sanitation is the fundamental Constitutional right to all Citizens.
This gave rise to the Primary function of the Water Boards being bulk water provision as stipulated by
the Water Services Act, Clause No. 30. The Act further enables that the Entities could embark on other
Secondary mandates with the Sector under Clause No.30 and not limited to catchment management,
implementing agent and other related functions. Bloem Water therefore provides secondary activities for
the Municipalities and the Shareholder as normally requested.
AREAS OF SERVICES

4. LEGISL ATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

Bloem Water derives its mandate to provide bulk water services in its service areas as a State-Owned
Entity from Section 28(1)(a) of the Water Service Act No 108 of 1997. As a Schedule 3B Entity, Bloem Water
operates within the parameters of the Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 1999 as amended by Act 29
of 1999 read with National Treasury Regulations as well as the Municipal Finance Management Act, No 56
of 2003. Through its Board of Directors and the Chief Executive, the Entity reports to the Minister of Human
Settlement, Water and Sanitation, as its Executive Authority.
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The Entity operates under the following legislations:
Constitutional Mandate
The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa:  Section 27(1)(b) accords the right of access to sufficient
water while progressive realisation through legislative and other measures of this right is underpinned in
Section 27(2).
Legislative Mandate
The Shareholder is currently reviewing and considering possible merging of two (2) Acts. The Entity
acknowledges that one piece of legislation will enable the water sector to have a clearer understanding of
the legislative framework regarding water management across the entire water value chain.
The Shareholder’s Compact serves as an agreement between the Accounting Authority and the Executive
Authority on key performance measures and indicators to be attained by the Entity. The Shareholder
monitors its compliance on a regular basis.
The Water Services Act. Act No. 108 of 1997 provides the right of access to basic water supply and
sanitation, setting national norms and standards for tariffs and water services development plans.  
This Act also provides a regulatory framework for water services institutions and water services intermediaries
for the establishment and disestablishment of Water Boards.
The National Water Act, Act No. 36 of 1998 acknowledges the National Government’s overall responsibility
and authority over the nation’s water resources and the use, including the equitable allocation of water for
sustainable beneficial use, the redistribution of water, and international water matters;
The Public Finance Management Act (No.1 of 1999 as amended by Act 29 of 1999) (PFMA) regulates
the sound financial governance in all spheres and levels of Government to ensure all revenue, expenditure,
assets and liabilities are managed efficiently and effectively.   It is for this reason the Bloem Water as a
Schedule 3B Public Entity is required to uphold the requirements of the PFMA and the associated National
Treasury Regulations. During the year under review, the Entity continued to track compliance with the Act
and as such confirms compliance.
The Entity also takes cognisance of the following:
66 Companies Act No. 71 of 2008;
66 King IV Report on Corporate Governance;

Further mandates
Good Governance Practices
66 Protocol on Corporate Governance in the public sector; and all other applicable laws of the
Republic of South Africa.
WATER RELATED GOVERNMENT STRATEGIES AND PLANS
66
66
66
66
66

National Water and Sanitation Master Plan
Water Resource Management Strategy
National Development Plan (NDP)
Social Development Principles
Greater Bloemfontein Reconciliation Strategy study
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5. FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON
It is a pleasure to report on the Bloem Water’s performance of the year
under review. It is always pleasing to note the enormous contribution
that the Board makes in advancing strategic objectives of the Department
generally and the Entity specifically. The previous Board term expired
already in March 2018, however, the Minister extended it on quarterly
basis until the appointment of the current Board in April 2019. This
resulted in reluctancy in taking long term decisions going forward.
The focus area in the year under review has been to ensure sustainability,
especially regarding water security in the Region and maintaining good
governance within the Entity. The bigger picture has always been
sustaining the provision of water services, which is the cornerstone of
our Entity. Guided by its mission, vision and values, Bloem Water has
once more delivered on its constitutional mandate.
The Entity’s focus on providing water services for life, has seen the
Mr TB Phitsane
community’s needs in our areas of service being met in line with the
Board Chairperson
outcomes of the Business Plan 2018-2023. The Entity’s appearances before
the Portfolio Committee of the Department of Water and Sanitation, (Human Settlement, Water and
Sanitation) during the 2018/2019 were well received with acknowledgements of tremendous work done.
The sterling financial management of the public resources by the Entity was also commended and
deserves a mentioning in this report.   The track record of unqualified audit opinions conveys volumes,
underscoring the value placed on our constitutional mandate.   While the 2018/2019 financial year was
faced with challenges of unsatisfactory payment rate by the Municipalities, these constraints were factored
into the Business Plan reviews for the new financial year emphasising the impact on our CAPEX projects
implementation. Despite these major challenges the Entity remained committed to fulfilling its vision and
mission of ensuring the supply of quality water.
Innovation remains a key focus area for Bloem Water as well as the work done to build systems that ensure
quality and better supply to regional, national and international levels.
During the year under review, the Entity continued with its long-standing twinning exchange programme
with Northern Region Water Board in Malawi and was honoured by the visits of the members of the
two Boards from time to time. The Entity’s work on contributing towards the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (SDG) 6, whose aim by 2030 is to achieve universal and equitable access to safe
and affordable drinking water for all. This is seen in the continuous achievement of 99% of water quality
standards as set in Shareholder’s Compact.
The success of Bloem Water lies within its staff and Management team led by the Chief Executive whose
role is to take the transformation agenda of the Entity forward. The contribution of this team is highly
appreciated.
Finally, it will be amiss not to mention the Board of Directors who were part of this Entity until the expiry of
the term in March 2019, as well as the new Board that took over the baton in April to continue sustainable
growth of the Entity with a shared vision.
I would also like to thank the Minister and the Cabinet for entrusting me with the responsibility to continue
leading this Board as a Chairperson and contribute to its future growth paths.

MR TB PHITSANE
Chairperson of the Board
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6. THE BOARD

Mr TB Phitsane

Ms TS Segoe-Backward

Ms T Moja

Ms D Manamela

Mr JJ Price

Ms. N Sandlana
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Mr. T Manyoni

Mr. LEvR van Oudtshoorn

Mr. LX Ntoyi

Mr. Z Mkiva
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The Board (till end of March 2019)

Mr. TB Phitsane
Chairperson of the Board

Ms. P Matete
Deputy Chairperson of the Board

Mr. N Mokhesi

Dr. J Van der Merwe

Ms. MSS Maboe

Adv. LR Bomela

Dr. MJ Ellman

Ms. CM Mahlakahlaka

Mr. Z Mkiva
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Profile of Board Members as at April 2019
Chairperson of the Board

APPOINTED: April 2019 – March 2023
Diploma in Education, BA Economics and MBA: University of the Free State, Executive Leadership:
University of Stellenbosch, Human Resources Strategy in Singapore.

He is former Educator. A former Director: Human Resources Management, a former Deputy Secretary
(Deputy CEO): Corporate Services and a former CEO of the Free State Legislature. Mr T.B Phitsane is a
member of the Institute of Directors in Southern Africa. He is former member of the Permit Board of
Transport, former member of PACC in the Free State, a former Chairperson of Sedibeng Water Board,
a former Deputy Chair of Free State Development Corporation, a former member of PRASA Board of
Directors and a Chair of subcommittee of REMCO, a former member of the Sanlam Board of Trustees.

His core skills relate to varied knowledge of all scripts of laws in particular PFMA, MFMA, LRA,
Mr TB Phitsane
BCOEA, EECA, WSA and understanding of other relevant Laws and regulations with regard to
Corporate Governance, Board Effectiveness, Public Administration and Governance, Service Delivery and Budget Implementation
and Performance Management Systems, Policy Development and Analysis, Training and Development, Public Finance, Supply
Chain and Asset Management. He is currently a renowned businessman directing multiple companies specialising in construction,
property development and investment, farming both livestock and game.

Deputy Chairperson of the Board
APPOINTED: April 2019 – March 2023

Studies law at the University of the Western Cape. She graduated with Biuris and LLB degrees.
She also obtained a Post Graduate Diploma in Drafting and Interpretation of Contracts from RAU
(University of Johannesburg). She worked as a candidate Attorney at Mokoena Rajuili Attorneys,
worked for Lawyers for Human Rights as a Legal Officer, Department of Economic Development as a
Trade and Industry Advisor as well as a Registrar for the Consumer Court. Worked as a Legal Advisor
for the Department of Social and Development.

She is currently serving as an Audit Committee member at the Department of the Premier, Treasury,
Agriculture and is a former member of the Risk and Audit Committees at Motheo FET College.
She is also serving as a member of the Free State Rental Housing Tribunal as well as the Free State
Consumer Court. She has a legal and business consulting firm where she is a Director.  Her expertise
and skills are in the following areas: Administrative Law, Governance, Contracts Management, Labour Ms TS Segoe-Backward
Law, Human Rights, Drafting and Interpretation of Legal Documents Commercial Contracts, Business Management, Conflict
Resolution, Mediation and Arbitrations among others.

APPOINTED: April 2019 – March 2023
BA Social Science) and Honours Development Studies from University of the Western Cape (UWC),
Training in Communications: University of Cape Town, Centre for Arbitration, Conciliation, and
Mediation, Finance Managers: UCT Graduate School of Business.

Zolani Mkiva is an international acclaimed heritage practitioner and cultural activist. He is a wellrespected policy maker who employs indigenous knowledge systems in carrying out his role.
Zolani was born and raised in Dutywa, a rural town of the Eastern Cape Province of South Africa.
He comes from a family with a lineage of oral traditional poets and regiments of African Royalty.

Mkiva is also an African renowned producer and director of artistic works that resonate with music,
poetry and film. He has produced more than 20 music albums, including international singles for
a myriad of countries, namely, Cuba, Cote D’Ivoire, Libya, Venezuela, Swaziland, and Colombia.
Zolani Mkiva is an organic intellectual who has authored and published books and papers. In
Mr. Z Mkiva
2008, he was appointed as a Government Advisor on Traditional Affairs, working closely with the
National Minister responsible for Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs. During his tenure
as Government Advisor he managed to turn around a number of areas in the traditional affairs
landscape. He was very instrumental in the establishment of the new national department of Traditional Affairs, formulating its
strategic plan and structure.
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APPOINTED: April 2019 – March 2023
Mr. Manyoni is a Local Government Practitioner with extensive senior level executive management
experience including advanced administrative and corporate governance skills across a range
of different sizes municipalities. He has a proven and a well-developed understanding of local
government functions both in local (SA) and international settings.

His exposure and experience in leading local governments in SADEC countries has enabled
him to build a strong reputation for delivering results through collaboration amongst diverse
teams. He has experience in managing and operating at international settings and handling of
international relations. His experience as Executive Authority and MPL has equipped him with
adequate experience in policy formulation and understanding of legislative framework related
to development and service delivery. He has enjoyed leading and managing projects at strategic
and operational levels.

Mr. Manyoni has held, amongst others, the following positions: CEO: FS Tourism, Municipal
Manager: Maluti a Phofung Municipality, City Manager: Mangaung Municipality, MEC: Police,
Roads and Transport, Executive Mayor: Mangaung Metro, Chairperson: SALGA, President: United Cities and Local Governments
(SADEC), Vice President: United Cities and Local Governments – Africa, MPL: Parliament of SA, He presently is the Executive
Chairman of The Demarcation Board. He holds a BA degree from Wits University, a Diploma in Business Management and
Certificate in Leadership from UP.

APPOINTED: April 2019 – March 2023
Mr. LX Ntoyi has a National Diploma in Civil Engineering and Bachelor’s Degree Technology
(B-Tech) in Civil Engineering from Technikon Free State now known as Central University of
Technology. He also obtained Master’s Degree in Business Administration (MBA) from University
of Free State.   He also obtained a Certificate in Municipal Finance Management Programme
from the University of Pretoria. He has a National Diploma in Public Finance Management
and Administration and a National Certificate in Local Economic Development from Local
Government Sector Education and Training Authority.

Mr. LX Ntoyi is a former senior Public Servant with vast experience in Local Government. He is a
former Technical Manager of Letsemeng Local Municipality, former Strategic Executive Director
Technical Services of Motheo District Municipality, former Executive Director Infrastructural
Services in Mangaung Local Municipality, former Head of Engineering Services (City Engineer)
in Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality.

Mr. T Manyoni

Mr. LX Ntoyi

Mr. LX Ntoyi is a board member of Pelonomi Regional Hospital as well as Universitas Academic Hospital. He has recently registered
to be a member of Institute of Directors in Southern Africa. He is currently a Director in LXN Group of Companies and specializes
in Engineering Services, Property Development and Construction Management Services.

APPOINTED: April 2019 – March 2023
Ms. Dipitseng Manamela is a qualified environmental scientist registered with South
African Council for Natural Scientific Professions (SACNASP). She holds master’s degree
in environmental sciences, B.Sc. Hons: Microbiology, Certificate in Safety Management
at the workplace, Management Advanced Programme (MAP) and Programme and Project
Management. She has held various positions in the Public Sector as a Water Quality Manager
and as an Environmental Specialist in the Private Sector in manufacturing and the Petroleum
Sector.

She has managed various Water Quality Management Forums in various catchments in
Gauteng. She has been involved in Industry Specific Environmental Management on the South
African Petroleum Industry Association Environmental and Engineering Committee and has
served as a Chairperson of the Network for Industrially Contaminated Land in Africa (Nicola):
Industry. She is the founder and CEO of Dihlashana Group of companies directing multiple
Ms D Manamela
companies specialising in Environmental Management, Safety Management, Engineering,
Wholesale supply of Petroleum Products and Industrial Gases, Construction and Property Development.

Ms Manamela’s expertise and core skills include Water Quality Management, Licensing and permitting, eias and emprs, stakeholder
management, stormwater and effluent management, waste management, air quality management, carbon management and
climate change, contaminated land management, oil spill response, environmental emergencies and environmental and safety
management training, management systems auditing.
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He obtained the following; B. Eng. Mechanical Engineering Degree University of Pretoria; N.
Dip. Electrical Engineering (Heavy current) O.F.S Technicon, Certificate for Project Design in
National Diploma Electrical Engineering Pretoria Technicon, B. Eng. (Hons). MOT (Management
of Technology) and B. Eng. (Hons) Degree in Maintenance Engineering, University of Pretoria,
Master’s Degree in Business Leadership (MBL) University of South Africa.

Mr. Price Pr. Eng. is a member of the Engineering Council of South Africa (ECSA) as a Professional
Engineer. He is registered with the South African Institute of Mechanical Engineers, the South
African Institute of Electrical Engineers (SAIEE), The Chamber of Engineering Technology, The
Association of Mine Resident Engineers (AMRE) and the Society for Mining, Metallurgy, and
Exploration Inc. (SME), (An International Professional Engineering body). He holds a 6 Sigma
Black Belt certification. He is a member of the Institute of Directors in South Africa (IoDSA). He
holds a Government Certificate of Competency Factories. (GCC) and a Government Certificate
of Competency Mines. (GCC).

His leadership roles includes the following; Group Governance and Standardisation Engineer,
Business Improvement Manager, was appointed Project lead on Group Reliability Engineering
Mr JJ Price
methodologies, Member of Executive Sustainable Development Standards Steercom and Acting
Head of Engineering (Process and Mining) at Lonmin, Member of Rand Water Bulk Water Forums
and Working Group Steercoms, Member of various; MOSH, IBMQ, Tripartite and Chamber of
Mines Steercoms, 2.13.1 and 3.1 Plant and Engineering Manager appointments, ISO and SANS committee member and Technical
Committee (TC82) Chairman, Vertical Transport Manager, Chairman of the Savuka Gold Control Team and SHE system auditors at
Anglo Gold Ashanti, HSEC Champion on Projects, SAP development and implementation team lead on Projects and Maintenance,
Appointed 16.1 and 3.4, Production Manager at Xstrata and Assmang Manganese under OHSA and MHSA Act. Appointed Engineer/
Engineering Manager under GMR 2.1 at Assmang Manganese. His R&D work on boxfronts was presented at the International SME
Conference in Stockholm and incorporated in SABS standards.

Site Champion for implementation of Asset Integrity (AI), Systems Integrity Maintenance Management system, (SIMMS), Business
Process framework (BPF) with Anglo Gold Ashanti. He was appointed as Unit Manager Engineering at Sibanye Gold and Manager
Mining Maintenance at PMC carrying the 2.13.1 appointment. He has recently joined the Minerals Council of South Africa and
holds the appointment of Adoption Team Manager on Transport and Machinery.

APPOINTED: April 2019 – March 2023
Ms Thebi Moja completed BCom studies at Fort Hare University, studied through UNISA to
upgrade to equivalent of BCompt and is a Master of Business Leadership graduate at UNISA.
Her experience cut across broad spectrum of business sectors. She held positions of leadership
as a Chairperson at North West Gambling Board, Grant Thornton Financial services, Office
of Disclosure at National Department of Human Settlements and participated as a Board
member at National Gambling Board, North West Development Corporation, National Arts
Council, Financial and Fiscal Council.

She played a role of oversight and advisory in Governance, Risk Management and Compliance
with legislation as a Chairperson or member of the Audit Committee, Risk Management
Committee or Performance Audit Committee at various District and Local municipalities, State
Entities/Agencies including Marine Living Resources Fund, Railway Safety Regulator, Local
Governance SETA and Estate Agency Affairs Board. She served in National departments which
include Rural Development and Land Reform, Human Settlements, Correctional Services,
Ms T Moja
Government Printing Works and Communications. Further contribution was made in the following Provincial departments, Treasury,
Education, Health, Economic Development and Environment, Agriculture, Sport and Recreation, Cooperative Local Governance
and Traditional Affairs and Transport.

She executed executive responsibilities as an External and Internal Auditor, Financial Manager at SAB C 1, Acting National Gambling
Board Chief Executive Officer for three years and Financial Manager at an NGO (Equal Opportunities Council). She was a managing
partner at a retail franchise business for five years following two years of running her own cleaning company in close relationship
with a property management company.

APPOINTED: April 2019 – March 2023
Mr Louis Evelyn van Rheede van Oudtshoorn obtained the B. Eng (Civil), B. Eng (Hons) (Water Utilisation), M. Eng (Water Utilisation)
from the University of Pretoria and MBA: University of the Free State (UFS).

Mr. L.E. van Rheede van Oudtshoorn is a Registered Professional Engineer with the Engineering Council of South Africa (ECSA),
Member of the South African Institute of Civil Engineers (SAICE) and a Fellow of the Water Institute of Southern Africa (WISA).
On occasion he lectured for post graduate students at both the University of the Free State as well as the University of Pretoria.
Currently involved as an external examiner for post graduate students at the Centre of Environmental Management (UFS).
Previously he served on the Free State branch committee of WISA as well as the Water Division of SAICE.
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His core skills are in relation to all governance, management and technical-engineering
aspects relating to water, pertaining to water resources, hydrology, quantity as well as
quality. An astute leader in all water related feasibility studies, option analysis, project
implementation and management within the confines of the WSA, NWA and other relevant
acts with a fundamental understanding of the PFMA, PPPFA and NEMA.

Strategy and Planning skills in particular relates to: Capital Expenditure planning and
development for a time horizon (often times a 20-year period) in relation to need
determination, project identification, project cost estimation, project budgeting and project
execution in terms of programming as well as Project planning and execution from inception
to commissioning as it relates to sustainability and life cycle costing.
He was previously employed as an engineer by the erstwhile Department of Water Affairs,
Chief Engineer by Bloem Water, director of a construction company and served as a senior
engineer as a specialist consulting engineer, a position he is still holding.

Mr. LEvR van Oudtshoorn

APPOINTED: April 2019 – March 2023
Education

Ms Sandlana obtained B.Com (Hon) , H.E.D, M.B.A, CQA, CBCI and is currently studies CD(SA)
with IODSA.
She is a Professional Member of Institute of Internal Auditors of South   Africa (IIA), South
African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA), Independent Regulatory Board for
Auditors (IRBA), Institute of Directors, Institute of Risk Management in South Africa, Business
Continuity Institute

She currently serves a Board Member: Free State Development Corporation and act as
Chairperson of Audit and Risk Committee, Chairperson of the Finance and Investment
Committee as well as a member of the Human Resource Committee. She also serves as a
Board Member of Special Economic Zone in which she is a Chairperson of Audit and Risk
Committee.
She is also a Members of the Audit and Risk Committee of Mafube Municipality.

Ms. N Sandlana

Ms Sandlana Previously served as a Board Member of City of Johannesburg Parks and Zoo where she was Chairperson Risk
Committee and a members of the Audit and Risk Committee
She also served as a Member of the Audit and Risk Committee of Gauteng Enterprise Propeller.

Ntikile is a Director at PKF (Advisory) Services (Pty) LTD. She was a Director/Partner in the Corporate Governance Services Division
at Sizwe Ntsaluba Gobodo for more than 10 years.

She has more than 20 years’ risk management, internal audit and related experience, working for the three of the big four audit
firms: Ernst and Young, PwC and KPMG. Her experience includes managing the outsourced internal audit at a large public entity,
providing internal audit and risk management services to various complex and challenging clients, etc.: Ntikile was involved with
internal audits; governance and risk assignment of National and Provincial Entities at Departments and Local Government.
She has extensive experience in various private industries including Financial Services, Mining, Medical Schemes and pension
Funds. She was a Director in charge of both Consulting and Audit projects.

Prior being a consultant, she was part of the Finance team at Anglo American Gold Division and AngloGold Ashanti. She was
appointed as a Head of Internal Audit Department of self-Administered Medical Scheme (Egolide Health Services) within the
AngloGold Group Internal Audit.
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Previous Board Members’ Profiles (The Board ended March 2019)
Chairperson of the Board

Appointed: April 2014 – March 2018 (EXTENDED until March 2019)
Diploma in Education, BA Economics and MBA: University of the Free State, Executive Leadership:
University of Stellenbosch, Human Resources Strategy in Singapore.

He is a former Educator. a former Director: Human Resources Management, a former Deputy Secretary
(Deputy CEO): Corporate Services and a former CEO of the Free State Legislature. Mr. T.B Phitsane is a
member of the Institute of Directors in Southern Africa. He is former member of the Permit Board of
Transport, former member of PACC in the Free State, a former Chairperson of Sedibeng Water Board,
a former Deputy Chair of Free State Development Corporation, a former member of PRASA Board of
Directors and a Chair of subcommittee of REMCO, a former member of the Sanlam Board of Trustees.

His core skills relate to varied knowledge of all scripts of laws PFMA, MFMA, LRA, BCOEA, EECA, WSA
and understanding of other relevant Laws and regulations regarding Corporate Governance, Board
Mr. TB Phitsane
Effectiveness, Public Administration and Governance, Service Delivery and Budget Implementation and
Performance Management Systems, Policy Development and Analysis, Training and Development, Public
Finance, Supply Chain and Asset Management. He is currently a renowned businessman directing multiple companies specializing
in construction, property development and investment, farming both livestock and game.

Deputy Chairperson of the Board

Appointed: April 2014 – March 2018 (EXTENDED until MARCH 2019)
BA Honours (Geography & Environmental Studies). Thesis pending for M.A. in Geography and
Environmental Studies.

She is Head of Environmental Management at one of the leading infrastructure development companies.
She headed an environmental department at steel and cement manufacturing companies.

She was a Regional Manager: Environmental Monitor during construction of the Lesotho Highlands
Tunnel from Mohale Dam to Katse Dam and before that Matsoku Diversion and Weir. She is a trained
NED, has had executive leadership training. She has over the past 15 years acquired vast experience
in environmental law and governance and Executive Preparation Programme in mining and water law.

Ms. P Matete

Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Appointed: April 2014 – March 2018

M Com Financial Management, B Com Hons, B. Compt. (Accounting & Auditing), BCom.

He is currently the Head of Department in Free State Department of Human Settlement. He started his
career as a part-time teacher of Business Economics at the Mncube Senior Secondary School in Soweto.
He joined the Free State Development Corporation in 1986 as Senior Manager: Associate Companies and
Joint Ventures. His private sector experience includes serving as Executive Director of Mphatlalatsane
Geographical Solutions (Pty) Ltd and as an independent SMME Business Consultant.

He has also gained extensive experience of the financial environment in the local Government sector
when he joined the Thabo Mofutsanyana District Municipality as Chief Financial Officer during 2002 and
continued to serve in that position until he joined the Maluti-a-Phofung Local Municipality as Chief
Financial Officer in 2005. He was appointed as City Manager of the Maluti-a-Phofung Local Municipality
in 2007 and in 2009; he joined Centlec as Chief Financial Officer.  He joined the Department of Police,
Roads and Transport in June 2010 as the Chief Financial Officer and acted as Head of Department and
Deputy Director General at various times.

Mr. N Mokhesi

Appointed: April 2014 – March 2018 (EXTENDED until MARCH 2019)
BCom (Accounting and Auditing) from North West, Certified Fraud Examiner from University of Pretoria, Programme in Strategy
Alignment from Stellenbosch University, BDFM Online Certificate on Legal, Ethics and Risk Management.  
Process Monitor Manager at Momentum, Senior HR & Risk Manager at Transnet Pension Fund Administrators, Internal Auditor
at Gobodo Corporate Governance Services and Khula Enterprise Finance Limited. Former member and Chairperson of Board HR
Committee at Brakpan Bus Company, and Disaster Relief Fund in the Department of Social Development Services.
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MS Phetwe consults in risk management frameworks. She is a member of the Audit Committee of the
Department of Women in the Presidency, Audit Committee of West Rand District Municipality, and
Chairperson of the Risk Management Committee for Randfontein Local Municipality. She is a member
of other professional bodies; GARP, Institute of Internal Auditors South Africa, and Information Systems
and Control Association (ISACA). She has served as a director on various other boards and board
committees. She served on the board of Brakpan Bus Company, where she was Chairperson of the
Board HR Committee.

Ms. CM Mahlakahlaka

Chairperson of the Capital Projects and Fixed Assets Committee
Appointed: April 2014 – March 2018 (EXTENDED until MARCH 2019)

BSc (Chem Eng) from University of Cape Town; MSc (Chem Eng) from University of Twente, Enschede,
The Netherlands; PhD (Chem Eng) (cum laude) from Institute National Polytechnique de Lorraine, Nancy,
France; MBA from Wits Business School, University of the Witwatersrand, Johannesburg; Project Finance
Modelling, Euromoney, March 2013; Certificate in Sectional Title Bookkeeping (Paddocks/UCT, 2010);
Certificate in Marketing & Customer Centricity, University of Johannesburg, 2007. Managing Director:
Thembalethu Engineering Services (Pty) Ltd, 2006 to present (project development and investment
in the energy sector – electricity, renewables, gas, petroleum, etc.); Executive Director: Siyadingana
Consulting (Pty) Ltd, 2002 to present: management and technical consulting to the energy sector –
electricity, gas, petroleum, renewables, etc.); Executive Director: Siyadingana Properties (Pty) Ltd, 2006
to present (investment in, and letting of property).

Non-Executive Director: Rand Water, 2002 to 2014; Non-Executive Director: Rand Water Services (Pty) Ltd,
Dr. MJ Ellman
2005 to 2008; Non-Executive Director: SABS, 2009 to 2018; Non-Executive Director: Trans-Caledon Tunnel
Authority (TCTA), 2015 to Present; Non-Executive Director: International Electro Technical Commission
(IEC), Geneva, Switzerland, 1999 to 2006; General Manager – Market Operations and Monitoring: National Electricity Regulator,
1999 to 2003 (responsible for electricity industry pricing, long-term capacity planning (NIRP), ESI restructuring, electro technical
standardization, etc.); Corporate Consultant and Integrated Electricity Planning (IEP) Facilitator: Eskom, 1996 to 1999 (responsible
for long-term capacity planning (IEP); Manager Production Planning & Economics, later Manager Business Development (strategic
planning & marketing): Mossgas, 1988 to 1993.

APPOINTED: April 2014 – March 2018 (EXTENDED until March 2019)
BSc Education, MA (Counseling)

Ms. Maboe is currently an Independent Consultant with employment and management experience ranging
from the academic to government spheres. She was a Head of Department for Social Development: Free
State Province, Municipal Manager to Masilonyana Local Municipality, Communications Officer at Thabo
Mofutsanyana District Municipality, Acting Registrar and Executive Director: Student Development and
Support Service at University of the Free State (UFS) QwaQwa Campus and Manager: Student Housing
at the former Peninsula Technikon. She is an Assessor registered with EDTD SETA.

She has a leadership qualification in Executive Municipal Management from UFS, a MA Degree with
a Major in Counselling from the University of Northern IOWA, USA and a BSc Ed Degree from the
University of North West formerly known as the University of Bophuthatswana. She is a Psychologist by
profession and is serving on Bloem Water Board and has served on other boards including the Free State
Development Corporation (FDC) and Sedibeng Water. Ms. Maboe has served in Mediation and Conflict Ms. MSS Maboe
Resolution roles and has received training in the same area through the Department of International
Relations and Cooperation (DIRCO). She has participated in many other forums. as a member of the
Executive Committee: Forum of African Women Educationist, SA (FAWESA), member of the South Africa Association of Senior
Student Affairs Professionals (SAASSAP) and member to the National Association of Student Development Practitioners (NASDEV),
Southern African Fundraising Institute (SAIF). She is also a Co-Director of SADC Business Forum.

ANNUAL
2018

19

REPORT
2019

Appointed: April 2014 – March 2018 (EXTENDED until MARCH 2019)
BA Social Science) and Honors Development Studies from University of the Western Cape (UWC),
Training in Communications: University of Cape Town, Centre for Arbitration, Conciliation, and Mediation,
Finance Managers: UCT Graduate School of Business.
Zolani Mkiva is an international acclaimed heritage practitioner and cultural activist. He is a wellrespected policy maker who employs indigenous knowledge systems in carrying out his role. Zolani
was born and raised in Dutywa, a rural town of the Eastern Cape Province of South Africa. He comes
from a family with a lineage of oral traditional poets and regiments of African Royalty.

Mkiva is also an African renowned producer and director of artistic works that resonate with music,
poetry and film. He has produced more than 20 music albums, including international singles for a
myriad of countries, namely, Cuba, Cote D’Ivoire, Libya, Venezuela, Swaziland, and Colombia. Zolani
Mkiva is an organic intellectual who has authored and published books and papers. In 2008, he was
appointed as a Government Advisor on Traditional Affairs, working closely with the National Minister
responsible for Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs.

Mr. Z Mkiva

During his tenure as Government Advisor he managed to turn around several areas in the traditional affairs landscape. He was
very instrumental in the establishment of the new national Department of Traditional Affairs, formulating its strategic plan and
structure.

Appointed: April 2014 – March 2018 (EXTENDED until March 2019)
BProc, LLM, LLB Degree

Adv Bomela served his articles of clerkship with the Law Society School for Legal Practice, Schutz and De
Jager and Lawyers for Human Rights (Karoo Mobile Law Clinic). He served as a Public Prosecutor with
the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development and was appointed as an Assistant State
Attorney and a Senior Assistant Attorney with the State Attorney, Bloemfontein and Bisho.
He practiced in partnership as a Director in the Law firm du Toit Bomela and later practiced in his own
account under the name and style Bomela’s. He later joined the Department of Health, Free State as
a Director Legal Services. He left the Department and became a Company Secretary for Centlec (SOC)
Limited. While serving as such, he continued practicing for his own account. He has practiced as an
Attorney for 14 years and he is currently with the Free State Society as a practicing Advocate.

Adv Bomela is a former Non-Executive Director at Centlec (SOC) Limited, former member of the Free
Adv. LR Bomela
State Law Society Gender Committee, former Secretary (two terms) of the National Association of
Democratic Lawyers, Free State, member of the Provincial Disciplinary Committee of the ANC PEC,
Free State, member of Peace and Stability Committee of the ANC PEC, Free State, member of the Legal and Constitutional
Affairs Committee of the ANC, Motheo Region. Adv Bomela’s current field of specialty is Corporate Governance, Labour Law,
Administrative Law and the Law of Contracts. He is also an accredited Arbitrator, Mediator, Negotiator and Facilitator with the
Arbitration Foundation of Southern Africa.
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7. CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OVERVIEW

Bloem Water remained focused in contributing towards achieving
sustainable supply of water as a right Bloem Water remained focused in
contributing towards achieving sustainable supply of water as a right for
all. During the year under review, most of the key performance areas were
fully executed with eighty-one (81%) of these areas being fully achieved.
Furthermore, water quality (99%) continued to exceed the benchmark of
13% as agreed to in the shareholder compact. This wouldn’t have been
possible without dedication and hard work of the entire team from all
levels of the Organisation.
The Entity continued to appropriately manage its financial position
under the prevailing conditions to discharge its mandate during the year.
Furthermore, it remained as a going concern despite all the financial
constraints and the challenges in its operating environment. This year
once more, Bloem Water upheld confidence in financial management
and overall governance by achieving unqualified audit report.

Dr L Moorosi
The socio-economic and financial matters surrounding the Municipalities
Chief Executive
had a direct impact on the ability of Bloem Water to operate in a
sustainable manner. Legislative processes and stakeholder involvement
meant to ensure that Municipalities pay for the bulk water services rendered yielded no results so far. This
necessitated adjustment of the budget and reprioritisation of programmes specifically CAPEX and some
operational activities. Furthermore, other austerity measures had to be implemented to remain viable
within financial ability and environment.

The climate change continued to manifest itself through persistent drought which resulted once more,
in irregular rainfalls and prolonged extreme high temperature resulting in accelerated loss of moisture
(evaporation) rendering the dam’s levels variable. To ensure sustainability of water security, environmental
management was promoted towards protection of natural resources such as restoration of river health
through the involvement of key stakeholders whereby activities were focused on cleaning of the rivers and
water streams within the areas of supply.
Skills development and wellness of the employees continued to be key focuses in building motivated and
productive workforce. This was achieved through a strong partnership with academic, EWseta and other
training Institutions. The participation of Botswana, Lesotho and Eswatini in Easter wellness activity hosted
by Bloem Water was a fulfilment of Regional cooperation within water sector in the continent.
Finally, I would like to acknowledge the sterling leadership and support of the former Board and look
forward to working harmoniously with the current Board that was recently appointed. Once more my
gratitude goes to the entire staff of Bloem water, for their consistency in excellent performance and ensuring
that the communities are provided with quality water and being bestowed with the “Best Enterprise” award
in quality assurance. The continuous support from the shareholder, the FS Province and all stakeholders in
pursuing the common objectives is highly appreciated.

DR L. MOOROSI
Chief Executive
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8. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND
CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE
ANNUAL REPORT
To the best of our knowledge and belief, Bloem Water hereby confirms the following:

All information and amounts disclosed in this annual report are consistent with the Annual Financial
Statements audited by the Auditor General of South Africa as our External Auditors.
This Annual Report, covering the activities and results of Bloem Water for the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June
2019 is complete, accurate and free of any omissions.
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on annual reports as issued by
National Treasury and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (No 1 of 1999) (PFMA), as
well as in accordance with the recommendations of the King lV Report on Corporate Governance.
The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with GRAP (Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice) and the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, Act No. 1 of
1999 (PFMA) applicable to the public entity. The Financial Statements are based on appropriate accounting
policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable, prudent judgements and estimates.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements and for the
judgements made in this information.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal controls that
has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance
information, the human resources information and the Annual Financial Statements.
The External Auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.
In our opinion, this Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human
resources information and the financial affairs of the entity for the financial year ended 30 June 2019.
This Annual Report was approved by the Board and signed on their behalf by the following authorized
representatives of the Board.
Yours faithfully

DR L MOOROSI								MR. TB PHITSANE
Chief Executive Officer							
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Chairperson of the Board

9. EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
Dr. L Moorosi Chief Executive

Mr. OJ Stadler
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. TS Ngubeni
Executive: Projects and
Engineering
Mr. M Rapudungoane
Executive:
Operations & Maintenance

Ms. NP Maduba-Silevu
Company Secretary

Ms. NA Motlhaolwa
Executive: Corporate Support

Ms. SL Meyer
Executive: Human
Resources
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10. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
Vision
Assuring sustainable provision of water services, for life.

Mission
To create a leading, value-driven, effective and responsive Institution using adaptive best practice methods
in anticipating tomorrow’s challenges today.

Values
Bloem Water commits itself to the following values that guide and direct all interactions with internal and
external stakeholders:
66
66
66
66

Corporate Social Responsibility
Governance
Equality
Responsiveness

Strategic Goals and Objectives
66
66
66
66

Develop, operate and maintain infrastructure to ensure sustainable water service delivery.
Manage financial affairs to meet current and future obligations.
Securing the supply and quality of raw water resources.
Achieving an aligned and efficient institution through optimization of all business processes
and systems.
66 Engaging in strategic partnerships with all relevant stakeholders.

Bloem Water Strategies
For the 2018/19 financial year, Bloem Water continued adopting the following strategies:
1. Expand and grow the business in line with the Regional Water Utility approach implemented in the
sector via DWS Institutional Reform and Realignment Project by expanding to areas not previously
serviced within the Region.
2. Develop a sound long-term financing strategy, mindful of the growth strategy, which will incorporate
aggressive pursuit and channelling of grant and other national funding for water infrastructure.
3. Develop and implement a strategic asset management strategy and infrastructure plan to improve
decisions on asset investment, maintenance, disposal and replacement.
4. Implement a marketing plan that is fully integrated with a communication plan to create brand
awareness, coordinate communication efforts and create competitive advantage.
5. Optimise skills and expertise to create an institution capable of attracting and retaining skilled
people, with training and development programs based on skills gaps.
6. Stakeholder engagement is central to the organisation’s effectiveness. Improve stakeholder
management and partnerships with all stakeholders within the value chain through benchmarking;
knowledge sharing, and skills transfer with its stakeholders.
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Orange River
Region

Pipeline Reaction
Team

Modder River
Region

Caledon River
Region

Maintenance &
Fleet
Management

Executive:
Operations &
Maintenance

Projects

Admin and
Facilities

Safety,
Environment &
Quality

Security
Management

Asset
Management

Training &
Development

Human Resources

Information and
Communications
Technology

Financial
Accounting

Executive: Human
Resources
Labour Relations
& Welness

Executive:
Corporate
Support
Communications
& Marketing

Supply Chain
Management

Chief Financial
Officer

Legal Manager

Office Manager

Engineering

Executive:
Engineering &
Projects

Chief Risk Officer

Internal Audit

Chief Executive

The Board

Minister of Water &
Sanitation

11. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Company
Secretary

PART B:

PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION

1. AUDITOR - GENERAL’S REPORT ON
PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The Auditor General of South Africa currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance
information to provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on
the performance against predetermined objectives is included in the report to Management, with material
findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements section of the Auditor-General’s report on page 101.

2. SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS
2.1

Service Delivery Environment

The Drought
The rainfall patterns improved during the financial year, which resulted in reduction from 20% to 15%
water restrictions during February 2019. The levels of most of the dams within the area of supply slightly
improved in comparison to the previous financial year. However, the continued implementation of water
restrictions by the Municipalities impacts negatively on the water supply and demand of the Entity. Bloem
Water continues to monitor the effects of climate changes in the catchment for possible impact for future
demand.
Non-Payment
The revenue collection from the Municipalities remained a challenge during the year. The non-payment is
placing a severe strain on the finances of Bloem Water and its ability to operate optimally and threatens the
going concern status of the Entity. Bloem Water implemented the approved tariff structure but continued
to experience the challenges of non-payment by Municipalities for services rendered. Several legislative
processes and Inter-Governmental Relations (IGR) engagements were followed during the year to resolve
payment of accounts. The National Treasury mediation process resolved during February 2019 that the
Municipality should pay its accounts as issued by the Entity. The Municipalities failed to adhere to the
agreed committed Payment Plans on arrears and payment on current accounts, this is despite these
processes that were followed.
Refer to Note 4 (Trade and other receivables) in the Annual Financial Statements for detailed disclosure.
Drought tariff dispute
The drought tariff was implemented as normally approved by the Minister to mitigate the impact of
reduction in volumes due to the persistent drought. The impact is in the unit costs to make provision for
fixed costs, overheads and CAPEX requirements. However, one of the Municipalities declared disputes
regarding the drought tariff and subsequently its implementation. The mediation process was followed
with National Treasury and the outcome was that, for the recovery plan of the Municipality, Bloem Water
had to write off a portion of the drought tariff and interest and the Municipality had to settle a portion in
line with a Payment Plan. Unfortunately, the Municipality did not adhere to resolutions of the mediation.
The Department of Human Settlements, Water and Sanitation has also been directed to formalise the
requirements and implementation of future drought tariffs.

2.2

Status of Infrastructure Engineering and projects

The implementation of CAPEX in Bloem Water is undertaken in accordance with the Reconciliation Study
which was agreed by all stakeholders including Mangaung Municipality and the Shareholder. Currently
ANNUAL
2018

27

REPORT
2019

some of the planned projects from this study, had to be brought forward due to challenges of ageing
infrastructure.
In mitigating this challenge, the Entity has continued to do condition assessment of infrastructure and
implementation of various programmes such as the winter maintenance and refurbishment programmes.
The Department of Human Settlement, Water and Sanitation has provided funding for Phase (one) 1
of the main pipeline to augment supply from the current source. The project of pipeline will assist in
uninterrupted water supply and meet future water demands of the Municipalities. Furthermore, it will allow
for refurbishment of this Pre-Stressed Concrete Pipeline. The Xhariep pipeline is currently under feasibility
study and is funded by the Shareholder for future sustainability of water supply.

2.3

Organisational Environment

Bloem Water remained resilient to the challenges surrounding the sector in general and specific issues
such as non-payment by the Municipalities which led to delay in implementation of Capex program.
Completion of 15km pipeline flagship project, which is augmenting water supply to the very remote areas
of Thaba Nchu and Botshabelo brought a relieve to the communities in these areas. Strategic maintenance
of Infrastructure has become very critical as the aging 106 km main pipeline of more than forty-seven (47)
years is forever bursting, causing unnecessary water service disruptions. During the year under review,
the maintenance of the infrastructure was therefore achieved through inhouse manufacturing of essential
components to ensure the rapid response to pipeline bursts.
The financial management and economic environment of the Municipalities in the region is deteriorating
with revenue collection rate below the norm. This is negatively affecting the financial status and the overall
operations of the Entity as non-payment by these Institutions for the water supplied is continuing. The
Entity remains going concern through application of cost containment measures and reprioritisation of
operational activities including continuous improvement in financial management.
The relatively good rains received during the year under review, resulted in re-operation of one of the
Dams that was affected by drought and stabilised the supply in the area concerned.
Most of the vacant posts were filled after the upliftment of moratorium by the Minister. Focus was mainly
on the technical expertise and younger professionals specifically women were absorbed.  Capacity building
of all employees was intensified through partnerships with tertiary Institutions and EW-seta.
Security of infrastructure and employees was prioritised through implementation of recommendations
emanating from State Security assessment. The implementation is extended to the Regions which are
mostly in the remote areas.
Risk management is enforced through quarterly monitoring of risk registers where mitigation of identified
risks is prioritised and assessed.

2.4

Key policy developments and legislative changes

The Entity was required to adopt a financial reporting framework from 1 July 2018 in accordance with
Directive 12 as issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB). The process was concluded, and the Board
of Bloem Water adopted the implementation of a Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) as a
reporting framework. Reference is made in the Annual Financial Statements for detailed disclosure. Other
financial reporting developments in accounting standards are duly reflected in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.
The Department is currently reviewing and considering possible merging of two (2) Acts. The Entity
acknowledges that one piece of legislation will enable the water sector to have a clearer understanding of
the legislative framework regarding water management across the entire water value chain.
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The National Treasury Instruction no. 2 of 2019/2020 – Irregular Expenditure Framework which came into
effect on the 17th May 2019, required the Entity to update its Compliance Universe to ensure that it
operates in accordance with the provisions of all applicable legislation.

2.5

Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals

Bloem Water’ Strategic Goals are linked to the Government priorities as set out in the table below. The
Entity reported to the Minister on a quarterly and conformed to the Performance Objectives as contracted
between the Board and the Executive Authority as agreed in the Shareholders Compact for the 2018/19
financial year.
BLOEM WATER OBJECTIVES

DEPARTMENT OF WATER &
SANITATION GOALS
MOB Contribute to an efficient,
1.
Enhanced and protected water as
competitive and response
a resource across the value chain
economic infrastructure
1.1 Water resources protected through
network
water supply and sanitation
services regulation, compliance
monitoring and enforcement
1.2 Enhanced management of water
MOA Environmental assets and
and sanitation information
natural resources that are well
protected and continually
enhanced
MOD Responsive, accountable,
1.3 The integrity of freshwater
effective and efficient local
ecosystems protected
Government system
1.4 Enhanced water use efficiency and
management of water quantity
MINISTERIAL OUTCOMES

SO1

Plan, develop,
operate and maintain
infrastructure to
ensure sustainable
water service delivery

SO2

Manage financial
MOB
affairs to meet current
and future obligations

SO2

Contribute to an efficient,
competitive and response
economic infrastructure
network

2.

2.1

MOA Environmental assets and
2.2
natural resources that are well
protected and continually
enhanced

Manage financial
MOD Responsive, accountable,
affairs to meet current
effective and efficient local
and future obligations
Government system

2.3

2.4
2.5
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Equitable access to reliable,
sustainable and acceptable
water resources and water and
sanitation services

A coordinated approach to water
and sanitation infrastructure
planning and monitoring and
evaluation

Targeted and aligned planning for
adequate water availability and
the enhanced provision of water
supply and sanitation services

Adequate water availability and
enhanced provision of sustainable
and reliable water supply and
sanitation services

Safe, reliable and sustainable water
supply and water and sanitation
services infrastructure
Enhanced provision of sustainable
and dignified basic sanitation

BLOEM WATER OBJECTIVES

MINISTERIAL OUTCOMES

SO3

MOB

Securing of supply
and quality of raw
water resources

DEPARTMENT OF WATER &
SANITATION GOALS

Contribute to an efficient,
competitive and response
economic infrastructure
network

3.

An enhanced contribution to
socio-economic development
and transformation by the sector

3.1

Equitable water allocation and
availability for socio-economic
development

MOA Environmental assets and
3.2
natural resources that are well
protected and continually
enhanced
MOF

Create a better South Africa
and contribute to a better
and safer Africa and world

3.3

MOE

Decent employment through
inclusive economic growth

4.

MOF

Create a better South Africa
and contribute to a better
and safer Africa and world

4.1

MOG Vibrant, equitable and
3.4
sustainable rural communities
SO4

Achieving an aligned,
effective and efficient
Institution through
optimisation of all
business processes
and systems

MOG Vibrant, equitable and
4.2
sustainable rural communities
MOC

SO5

Engaging and
strengthening
strategic partnerships
with all relevant
stakeholders

Sustainable human
settlements and improved
quality of household life

4.3
4.4

MOE

Decent employment through
inclusive economic growth

MOF

Create a better South Africa
and contribute to a better
and safer Africa and world

5.
5.1

5.2
MOG

Operations

Vibrant, equitable and
sustainable rural communities

Finance
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Targeted rural development
initiatives that support smallholder
farmers
Targeted procurement that
supports black entrepreneurs in
the sector

Job opportunities created that
expand economic opportunities
for historically excluded and
vulnerable groups

An efficient, effective and
development orientated water
and sanitation sector

An enabling environment for the
management of water resources
and the provision of basic water
and sanitation services

Sound governance and oversight
of the DWS Public Entities
An efficient, effective and high
performing organisation

Coordinated development of the
skills pool across the sector
Sound cooperative governance
and an active and engaged
citizenry

Targeted and sustained African and
global cooperation in support of
the national water and sanitation
agenda
Informed and empowered
communities and responsive
government securing integrated
and sustainable partnerships to
support the water and sanitation
development agenda
People
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Output 2

Ministerial
Outcome B

Output 1

Contribution to an efficient,
competitive and responsive economic
infrastructure network
Ensuring the maintenance and
supply availability of our bulk water
infrastructure

Targeted and aligned planning for adequate water
availability and the enhanced provision of water supply
and sanitation services
Adequate water availability and enhanced provision of
sustainable and reliable water supply and sanitation
services
Safe, reliable and sustainable water supply and water and
sanitation services infrastructure
Enhanced provision of sustainable and dignified basic
sanitation

SO, 2.2

SO 2.

SO 2.4

SO 2.3

A coordinated approach to water and sanitation
infrastructure planning and monitoring and evaluation

Freshwater ecosystems protected from mine water
impacts
Equitable access to reliable, sustainable and acceptable
water resources and water and sanitation services

Enhanced water uses efficiency and management of
water quantity

Water resources protected through water supply and
sanitation services regulation, compliance monitoring
and enforcement
Enhanced management of water and sanitation
information
The integrity of freshwater ecosystems protected

Enhanced and protected water as a resource across the
value chain

SO 2.1

Goal 2

SO 1.5

SO 1.4

SO 1.3

SO 1.2

Environmental Assets and natural
Goal 1
resources that are well protected and
continually enhanced
Enhanced quality and quantity of water SO 1.1
resources

Ministerial
Outcome A

DWS Strategic Objective
(from 2017/18 to 2019/20 APP Plan)

Strategic outcome goals

No.

Table 1: Contributions to the Government Outcomes

SO 2 Manage financial affairs to
meet current and future
obligations

SO 1 Plan, develop, operate and
maintain infrastructure to
ensure sustainable water
service delivery

Aligned Bloem Water strategic
objective
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Ministerial
Outcome G

Create a better South Africa and contribute to a better and safer Africa and world

Vibrant, equitable and sustainable rural communities with food security for all

Informed and empowered communities and responsive
government securing integrated and sustainable
partnerships to support the W&S development agenda

Ministerial
Outcome F

SO 5.2

SO 5.1

Achieving an aligned, effective
and efficient Institution
through optimization of
all business processes and
systems

SO 5 Engaging and strengthening
strategic partnerships with all
relevant stakeholders
Targeted and sustained African and global cooperation in
support of the national water and sanitation agenda

Coordinated development of the skills pool across the
sector
Sound cooperative governance and an active and
engaged citizenry

Sound governance and oversight of the DWS Public
Entities
An efficient, effective and high performing organization

Decent employment through inclusive
economic growth

Goal 5

SO 4.4

SO 4.3

SO 4.2

SO 4.1

Goal 4

SO 3.4

SO, 3.3

SO 3 Securing of supply and quality
of raw water resources

Aligned Bloem Water strategic
objective

Targeted procurement that supports black entrepreneurs
in the sector
Job opportunities created that expand economic
opportunities for historically excluded and vulnerable
groups
An efficient, effective and development orientated water SO 4
and sanitation sector
An enabling environment for the management of water
resources and the provision of basic water and sanitation
services

Equitable water allocation and availability for socioeconomic development
Targeted rural development initiatives that support
smallholder farmers

SO, 3.1
SO, 3.2

An enhanced contribution to socio-economic
development and transformation by the sector

Goal 3

DWS Strategic Objective
(from 2017/18 to 2019/20 APP Plan)

Ministerial
Outcome E

Responsive, accountable, effective and
efficient Local Government System

Sustainable human settlements and
improved quality of household life

Ministerial
Outcome C

Ministerial
Outcome D

Strategic outcome goals

No.
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MO A
OP 1
T (a) & (c)
MO B
OP 2
T (a)

MO A>G

Increased
access to
Services

Financial
reporting
compliance

4

5

MO A>G
OP 1
T (a), (b)
& (c)
OP 2
T (a)

MO A
OP 1
Manage
T (a)
avoidable water
MO B
losses
OP 2
T (a)

Reliability of
supply

Alignment

SO6.5
SO6.6

SO1.2
SO1.3
SO2.6
SO3.2

SO1.1
SO1.2
SO1.3

SO2.2
SO2.5
SO2.6
SO2.7

SO2.5
SO3.4

SO2

SO1

SO1

SO1

SO3

DWS
BW
Ministerial
Strategic Strategic
Outcomes
Goals Objectives

MO C, B
&D
OP 1
T (a), (b)
& (c)
OP 2
T (a)

3

2

1

Bulk potable
water quality
compliance

Performance
Objective

Unqualified
audit report

Contribution
to national
objectives
of extending
services

Target
2018/19

√

√

√

Unqualified
Unqualified
report with
with
Unqualified
√
no matters
matter of
of emphasis
emphasis

83%

0%

Overall
NRW
10.73%
Overall
water
losses:
9.39%

Unqualified
report with
Annual external no matters
audit
of emphasis
(Clean
Audit)

80%

0%

Overall
NRW 11,7%     
Overall
Water
Losses:
10.01%

√

Target
met(√)/
not met
(x)

75%

2%
(of 365
days)

13%

Actual
2018/19

99%
99% Overall
Overall
average
average

Actual
2017/18

Annual Performance Targets

Actual CAPEX
spend on
expansion
related projects %
(initiatives by
the Minister) as
% of budget

Number of
days’ supply
interrupted as
%
a %  of possible
supply days

Avoidable
water lost as a
%
percentage of
water produced

Reduced
avoidable
water losses in
treatment and
distribution
systems
No unplanned
interruptions
to bulk supply
exceeding 24
hours

Measure

%
96%
compliance

Test results,
SANS 241
Class 1:
Class 2:

Indicators/
Calculation

Water quality
standards met

Outcome/
Impact

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2018/19

Partly
achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Comments
(Note)
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6

Improve key
financial ratios

Performance
Objective

MO A, B
&D
OP 1
T (a), (b)
& (c)
OP 2
T (a)

SO6.2
SO6.6
SO2

DWS
BW
Ministerial
Strategic Strategic
Outcomes
Goals Objectives

Alignment

Improved
viability and
sustainability

Outcome/
Impact

28.09%

Staff
remuneration
as % of total
operating
expenditure

25.3%

1.85%

2.74%

Repairs and
maintenance
as % of PPE
%
and Investment
Property
(Carrying Value)

%

95.59

-2.04%

-0.214

100%

7.26%

35.86%

100%

2.32

Actual
2017/18

62.33

5.53%

%
Number

0.279

Ratio

Debtors days

Return on
Assets

Debt equity

0%

Net profit
margin
(secondary
activity)
%

6.18%

0%

95.40%

%

%

1.61

Target
2018/19

Ratio

Measure

Net profit
margin (primary %
activity)

Gross profit
margin
(secondary
activity)

Gross profit
margin %
(primary
activity)

Current Ratio

Indicators/
Calculation

28.78%

2.34%

45.33

2.54%

0.125

100%

26.50%

100%

96.09%

2.88

Actual
2018/19

Annual Performance Targets

X

X

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

Target
met(√)/
not met
(x)

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Comments
(Note)
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SO2

SO3

MO A, B
&D
OP 1
T (a), (b)
& (c)
OP 2
T (a)

Bulk supply
agreements
concluded with
municipalities/
other customers

11

SO1.1
SO1.2
SO1.3
SO3.1
SO4.1

SO4.1

SO1.1

MO A, D, E
SO1.2
&G

SO2

Engagement
in secondary
activities

SO1.1
SO1.2
SO1.3
SO2.2
SO4.1

SO2

SO2

10

MO B & D
OP 1
T (a), (b)
& (c)
OP 2
T (a)

SO2.1
SO2.2
SO2.3

SO2.1

9

Manage costs
within the
approved
budget

MO E
MO G

DWS
BW
Ministerial
Strategic Strategic
Outcomes
Goals Objectives

Alignment

Capital
Expenditure
Program

8

7

Increase BBBEE
expenditure
in relation to
operational
projects

Performance
Objective

Statutory and
Service Level
Agreements in
place

Measure

%

100%

0.21%

80%

80%

% variance

% variance

10%

40

65%

Target
2018/19

% increase

Number

% increase

Municipalities/
Other
Customers with %
bulk supply
agreements

New service
providers
awarded work

Spend

Indicators/
Calculation

Actual
expenditure
compared
Financial
with budgeted reports
expenditure for
the year
Overall project
expenditure
within R target
Overall project
Infrastructure
completion
available to
meet demands dates within
targets %
variance
80%
17%
35.71% X
Growth in
turnover from % of total
secondary
turnover
(other activities)

Spend
increased and
increased
new entrants
awarded
contracts in the
financial year

Outcome/
Impact

100%

0.44%

17%

60%

-21.52%

27

132%

Actual
2017/18

100%

0.34%

35.71%

44.28%

11.52%

70

179%

Actual
2018/19

Annual Performance Targets

√

√

X

X

X

√

√

Target
met(√)/
not met
(x)

Achieved.
All Statutory
and Service
Level
agreements
are in place

Achieved

4

4

3

Achieved

Achieved

Comments
(Note)
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MO E

MO E

Training
and Skills
Development

16

14

Staff levels

Achieve
statutory
reporting
compliance

MO A, B
&D
OP 1
T (a), (b)
& (c)
OP 2
T (a)
MO A, B
&D
OP 1
T (a), (b)
& (c)
OP 2
T (a)

15

Support Rural
Development

13

12

Alignment

SO6.1
SO6.2
SO6.3

SO6.1
SO6.2

SO3.1

SO3.2

SO2.1
SO2.2
SO2.3
SO2.4

SO4

SO4

SO4

SO3

SO4

DWS
BW
Ministerial
Strategic Strategic
Outcomes
Goals Objectives

Implementation
MO D,
of Ministerial
F, G
directives

Performance
Objective

Skills and
capacity
building

Number

Bursaries
employees

Number

Number

Learnerships

Graduate
Programmes

%

%

Number

Measure

Staff turnover

Submission
dates met

All statutory
reports
submitted on
time

Optimal staff
retention

Signed
contracts,
MOUs etc.

Progress
against
%
implementation
plan

Indicators/
Calculation

Total Number
of identified
rural
Municipalities
supported

New Ministerial
directives
issued are
implemented
on time

Outcome/
Impact

7

40

30

8

100%

3

n/a

Target
2018/19

158

51

80

12

100%

4

100%

Actual
2017/18

193

34

34

8  (3.28%)

100%

11

n/a

Actual
2018/19

Annual Performance Targets

√

√

√

√

√

√

n/a

Target
met(√)/
not met
(x)

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

No
directives
issued in
2018/19 fy.

Comments
(Note)
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MO D

MO A>G

MO E

Good
Governance

Corporate
Social
Responsibility
Initiatives

20

21

MO A>D

MO E

19

Board
Effectiveness

Jobs Created

Alignment

SO6.1
SO6.2
SO6.4

SO6.5
SO6.6

SO6.5
SO6.6

SO6.5

SO6.1
SO6.2
SO6.4

SO5

SO4

SO4

SO4

SO4

DWS
BW
Ministerial
Strategic Strategic
Outcomes
Goals Objectives

Effective
Internal
Controls
and Risk
Management

18

17

Performance
Objective
Indicators/
Calculation

Breaches of
materiality and
significance
framework

Improved
controls and
risk mitigation
Number of
Good corporate
initiatives
citizenship
undertaken

Internal audit
reports

Internal audit
findings dealt
with

Board Member
attendance
of all Board/
committee
Improved
performance of meetings
fiduciary duties/
Board Member
governance
attendance
of all Board/
committee
meetings

Permanent and
contract (direct)
Total number
Temporary
(indirect)

Outcome/
Impact

Number

Number

Number of
unresolved
findings

Number
of repeat
findings

%

%

Number

Measure

4

0

10

10

100%

90%

43

Target
2018/19

4

0

0

0

100%

78.60%

75

Actual
2017/18

4

0

5

5

100%

83%

74

Actual
2018/19

Annual Performance Targets

√

√

√

√

√

X

√

Target
met(√)/
not met
(x)

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

5

Achieved

Comments
(Note)
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A total of 31 of the 37 targets were achieved, representing a performance level of 83.7% This is marginally
higher than the previous financial year having achieved at 78%.
A brief description of reasons for the non-achievement of the target performance objectives are reflected
below:
The table below sets out the performance objectives of the entity as agreed with the Minister of Human
Settlements, Water and Sanitation through the Shareholders Compact for the 2018/19 financial year. Bloem
Water achieved the following performance targets as set out in the Business Plan for the 2018/19 financial
year, targets not achieved are explained as per the notes below:
1. The two projects under the previous year Ministerial Directives budgets are multi -year Projects
and still in implementation. The Project is funded by grants from the Department and not from
the entity’s budgets and/or reserves. The Project timeframes were extended due to the available
budget within the Department of Human Settlement, Water and Sanitation.
2. 60% of the financial ratios were achieved whilst the other ratios were negatively affected by impaired
revenue generation due to restrictions that applied in response to climatic conditions. The nonpayment by Municipalities is still having a negative impact. The operational cost has declined due to
the water demand reduction due to drought conditions and restrictions compared to the overheads
such as staff cost which is fixed resulting in the ratio not being achieved. The impairment of trades
receivables continues to seriously impact the achievement of ratio targets.
3. The revenue and income generated was affected by the operational, drought and non-payment
challenges during the year. The water demand has reduced due to the drought and continued
application of water restrictions. It required management to focus on the cash flow position during
the financial year to mitigate the risk of default. The impairment of trades receivables continues
to seriously influence budget expenditure. The impact of the finance income and finance cost as
well as the grants received from the DHSWS influence the ratios further.  The conversion to GRAP
affected the quantification of the ratio’s and the targets set in the SHC cannot be amended during
the year. A major portion of the outstanding accounts/debtors have been impaired.
4. The major infrastructure Capex Projects could not be implemented and were accordingly prioritized
in terms of specific phases/milestones that could be achieved within the financial constraints.
Accordingly, implementation/construction could not be undertaken as initially planned in that
funds were not secured. The non-payment by Municipalities has aggravated the funding margins.
5. The Board continues to facilitate good oversight. The Board attendance is marginally higher than
the previous reporting period but still below the set annual target.
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3. INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AND
OPERATIONS

Considering the acceleration of growth in the Municipalities which result in increased water demand,
expansion of infrastructure has become critical and requires investment in major Capital Projects. The Entity
therefore continues to address challenges of the ageing infrastructure through refurbishment programs.
During the year under review, the emphasis was more on refurbishment of infrastructure with a total of
fourteen (14) projects undertaken with an investment of R103 million. The projects are at different stages
of implementation.

3.1

PROJECTS

Completed Projects
1. Modder River Region: Construction of the 15 km long Ductile pipeline from Rustfontein to Lesaka
Reservoir parallel to the existing steel pipeline
66 The project has assisted with water supply augmentation in Mangaung Metropolitan
Municipality
2. Welbedacht: Construction of the 4 km long Sewer System Upgrade
66 The upgrade of the sewer had ensured the major blockages are addressed to deal with
increased flows

Projects completed for Design Stages: 3 Projects
1. Caledon River Region: Design and tender documentation for a 17km one-directional pipeline
between Knellpoort and Welbedacht Dam
66 The project will assist with the challenges of siltation at Welbedacht dam. Raw Water
abstraction from Tienfontein Dam is pumped into Knellpoort Dam, then it will be
transferred directly to Welbedacht during dry seasons and assist in the scouring of the
Welbedacht Dam during flood periods.
66 The Raw water quality from Knellpoort Dam will improve and thus will reduced the
operational costs compared to current high solid load and turbidity as abstracted from
Welbedacht Dam.
2. Modder River Region: Construction of Tabali-OK 10km pipeline
66 The increase of water supply to Thaba Nchu from Rustfontein Water Treatment Works
through the parallel pipeline will ensure that there is no over reliance on the Groothoek
Dam.
3.

Modder River Region: Extend Treatment Capacity of Rustfontein Water Treatment Plant – to
150 Ml/day.
66 The extension of Rustfontein Water Treatment Works will assist with the future water
demand into the Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality as this plant is strategically located
and supplies water to the Bloemfontein, Botshabelo, Thaba Nchu and Excelsior.
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Projects that are currently in progress
The following two directives were issued by the Ministry of Human Settlement, Water and Sanitation.
1. Mangaung Water Augmentation Project: Xhariep Pipeline Feasibility Study: 180km pipeline
Diminishing yield in the Caledon River Catchment and the limitation imposed due to siltation in
Welbedacht dam which lost 95 % storage capacity has adverse implications with regards to long
term water security and necessitated the investigation of Water supply Augmentation from Xhariep
Dam as recommend by the Greater Bloemfontein Reconciliation Strategy.
66 The pre -feasibility study has been concluded in 2015 which recommended several possible
options available.
The map depicts the proposed augmentation scheme from Xhariep Dam to existing
Infrastructure

66 The detailed feasibility for the Mangaung Water Augmentation Project (MWAP) from
the Xhariep Pipeline is informed by the preliminary feasibilities done by both Mangaung
Metro and Bloem Water. Currently the PSP has been appointed to conduct detailed
feasibility, designs and Environmental Impact Assessment. The project will have huge
socio – economic benefits, employment opportunities in the Free State Province will ensure
sustainable augmentation of water supply for the 1.2million population in the Mangaung
Metropolitan Municipality and other adjacent Municipalities.
2. The Construction of the 33.7km Welbedacht to Bloemfontein Steel Pipeline:
66 The main 105km long pre-stress concrete pipeline (PCP) of 1.2meter diameter that
stretches from Welbedacht Water Treatment Works to Bloemfontein has been in operation
for 48 years and has surpassed its lifespan. The pipeline has started to continually burst
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over the years with the consequence of leaving the Greater Bloemfontein area without
water supply especially in the last trajectory of the 33.7km from Leeuwkop to Bloemfontein
where the pipeline is under high operational pressure.

Stakeholders at the Welbedacht pipeline construction site

The pictures depict the progress on Welbedacht pipeline
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Overall Status of Infrastructure Projects
Project Name

Project Description

Extend
Treatment
capacity at
Rustfontein

Increase WTW
capacity from 100 Ml/
day to 150 Ml/day

Pipeline from
10 km pipeline from
Lesaka Reservoir Lesaka to Thaba Nchu
to OK/ Motlatla
Reservoirs

Xhariep to
Knellpoort
pipeline

Phase 1
Conduction of
Detailed Feasibility
(Ministerial Directive)
Phase2;
Construction of 180
km 600 mm diameter
pipeline

Municipal
Area (s)

Start &
Completion

Mangaung
Phase 1:
Metro,
October 2015
Mantsopa LM,
Excelsior Town

Mangaung
Metro
Thaba Nchu

Mangaung
Metro,
Kopanong
LM, Mantsopa
LM –Excelsior
Town
Total
population of
1.2 million
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Work Done to
date

Implications

Phase1:
Design
Completed,
tender
documents
completed

Water supply
shortage to the
Mangaung Metro
and surrounding
Municipalities

Phase 2:
To commence
once Funding
is secured

Phase 2:
Construction
Not yet started funding required

Phase1:
September
2016

Phase 1
Designs & Tender
Document -100%
completed

Increased
construction cost
as the project is
delayed

Water supply
shortage to the
Mangaung Metro
and surrounding
Municipalities

Phase2:
construction not
yet started

Increased
construction cost
as the project is
delayed

30 September Phase1:
2015
Pre-feasibility
completed 100%
& Detailed
Feasibility to be
done

Water supply
shortage to the
Mangaung Metro
and surrounding
Municipalities

Phase2:
To commence
once detailed
Feasibility &
Designs are
completed
subject to
Funding secured
for construction

Increased
construction cost
as the project is
delayed
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Project Name

Project Description

Welbedacht
WTW to
Knellpoort dam

Construction of the
17km, Raw Water
Pipeline between
Knellpoort Dam and
Welbedacht WTW

Municipal
Area (s)

Mangaung
Metro,
Kopanong
LM, Mantsopa
LM –Excelsior
Town
Total
population of
1.2 million

Start &
Completion

Phase 1;
August 2016

Work Done to
date

Phase1;
Completed
Feasibility,
Final design

Water supply
shortage to the
Mangaung Metro
and surrounding
Municipalities

Phase2:
Construction not
yet started

Increased
construction cost
as the project is
delayed

31 December
2016

Construction,
progress 100%

None

Phase1;
Completed – 67
Boreholes drilled

Drought relief
measures Water
supply shortage
Municipalities

Pipeline from
Rustfontein
WTW to Lesaka
Reservoir

Mangaung
Construction of
Metro,
the 15 km ,700 mm
Mantsopa LM
diameter ductile iron
from Rustfontein
to Botshabelo to
augment supply along
the existing 660mm
Steel Pipeline

Additional
Boreholes in
Thana Nchu

Borehole Exploration
Project in Mangaung
Metro for Water
Supply Augmentation

Mangaung
Metro North
and South of
Thaba Nchu

31 December
2019

Construction of the
additional 33.7km
Steel Pipeline
along the existing
Prestressed Concrete
main pipeline with a
total length of 105 km
from Welbedacht Bloemfontein

Mangaung
Metro,
Kopanong
LM, Mantsopa
LM –Excelsior
Town
Total
population of
1.2 million

July 2020

Construction of
Houtneck Booster
Pump station to
augment Water
Supply to the
Northern Villages
and Excelsior Town in
Mangaung Metro and
Mantsopa LM

Excelsior &
Rural Villages
of Mangaung
Metro in
Thaba Nchu

July 2016

Completed-100%

Wepener

November
2016

Completed-100%

Phase 1:
33.7 km Steel
pipeline of 1000
mm diameter
pipeline from
Brandkop
to Leeukop
junction
Phase 2:
The
Construction of
the remaining
71.3 km
Houtneck
booster pump
station

Increase supply
pumping
capacity in
Wepener
pipeline

Construction of
Booster Pump station
to augment Water
Supply to the Wepner
Town in Mangaung
Metro
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Implications

Phase2:
26 to be
equipped
Procurement

Phase 1:
Construction in
Progress 30%

Water supply
shortage to the
Mangaung Metro
and surrounding
Municipalities

Phase 2: 71.3 km
Feasibility study
to be conducted

Increased
construction cost
as the project is
delayed

REPORT
2019

Project Name

Project Description

Construction
of 13 km, 250
mm diameter
pipeline from
Booster Station
to new reservoir
at Dewetsdorp

Construction of
addition Pipeline
for 13km length
in Dewetsdorp to
augment Water
supply

Municipal
Area (s)

Start &
Completion

Dewetsdorp

Started 31
October 2017

Work Done to
date

Construction in
progress 78%

Implications
Water supply
shortage to the
Mangaung Metro

Status on Implementing Agent
There is no new directive to assist with the Implementing Agent mandate during the year under review.

3.2

OPERATIONS

Water Quality
In ensuring that the Customers and Water Services Authorities (WSA) or Municipalities are provided
with portable water, the regional treatment plants supply water whose quality is measured against SANS
241:2015, that stipulates the quality of acceptable drinking water. For the period under review, Bloem
Water complied with the SANS 241:2015 requirements.
Furthermore, Water Quality Monitoring Programmes were developed and implemented. Quality is
continuously verified internally at Plant level and externally to ensure transparency through its partnership
with the Institute of Groundwater Studies of the University of the Free State, which tests water on weekly
basis for quality assurance. The water quality results for seven (7) water treatment works, have been stable
and consistent with regards to Compliance and operational monitoring, reflecting an average of 99%.

Filtered Water
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The Drinking Water Quality results (Microbiology and Chemical) for the 2018/19 financial year at the
different treatment works were uploaded on the DHSWS Integrated Regulatory Information System
(IRIS), formerly known as Blue Drop System. During the year under review, the Entity has produced and
distributed excellent quality water beyond the expected target of the Shareholders Compact of 96%. Any
non-compliance pertaining to the water quality is reported and resolved within minimum time.

Laboratory Services

Raw Water Quality
Catchment management remains key to the Entity vision of assuring sustainable provision of water service
for life. Thus, the quality of Raw water remains an important and integral part of operations and therefore
is prioritised in all the purification plants. The quality of Raw water varies seasonally, with high level of
turbidity experienced during rainy seasons at different catchments and are continuously monitored and
mitigated accordingly.

Table 2: Raw Water Quality per Catchment
System

Catchment

Impoundment

Raw Water
Quality

Welbedacht

Caledon
River

Welbedacht Dam

Average turbidity:
1000 NTU

Knellpoort Dam

No sampling
On the dam

Description of Water Quality
challenges

May’18 – Sep’18: water appears
yellowish-brown in colour and high
algae content. Oct’18- Mar’19: too much
silt in the water.
The water appears greenish, high algal
content.

Bethulie

Orange
River

N/A

Good

The quality is good, during the raining
season the NTU rises.

Gariep

Orange
River

Gariep Dam

Average Turbidity:
50 NTU

The water appears slightly green

Phillippolis

Orange
River

N/A

Good
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System

Catchment

Impoundment

Raw Water
Quality

Description of Water Quality
challenges

Jagersfontein Riet Rivier

Kalkfontein dam

Average Turbidity:      The water appears light greenish in
22 NTU             
colour and     at times milky with very
low turbidity.

Rustfontein

Modder
River

Rustfontein Dam

Average Turbidity
88 NTU

No water quality challenges.

Groothoek

Kgabanyane
River

Groothoek

Average Turbidity:
80 NTU

The water appears slightly green

Caledon River raw water quality

Water Losses
Water losses were contained in all treatment works which included non-revenue water. All losses are
determined via the water model for monitoring and analysis. From a system input of 90 932 219 million
m³ for the 2018/2019 financial year (as illustrated below), water losses amounted to 9.39% of which 2.03%
were apparent losses and 7.36% real losses. A decrease of 0.62% in water losses was seen in comparison to
the previous year which is favourably against the annual target of 13% d with the Shareholder.

Table 2: Water Losses for the period: 2018/07/01 to 2019/06/30
System Input

Authorized Consumption

Billed

Revenue Water

90,932,219

82,391,849 (90.61%)

81,174,220 (89.27%)

81,174,220 (89.27%)

Unbilled

Non-Revenue Water

1,217,629 (1.34%)

9,757,999 (10.73%)

Water Losses

Apparent Losses

8,540,370 (9.39%)

1,850,003 (2.03%)
Real Losses
6,690,366 (7.36%)
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Maintenance of Infrastructure
Ageing water infrastructure remains a key risk of the Entity, hence maintenance is imperative to sustainable
water supply. Accordingly, the Preventative Maintenance strategy is an important driver to ensure proper
budgeting and implementation. Deterioration of water supply systems due to ageing is further exacerbated
by growth in water demands. The Entity continuous invoke Business Continuity measures in response to
infrastructure challenges.

Maintenance at work

Pipeline Reaction Team
In addressing the challenges of the ageing infrastructure, the Reaction team and its workshop ensures
the rapid response to pipeline failures. It also gives effect to the continuous running of maintenance
programmes which are critical in the maintenance of assets. The major benefit of the inhouse workshop
is the shorter turnaround time for manufacturing mechanical components required for any repair or
replacement. The Entity is exploring commercial opportunities for the workshop to render external services
to amongst others, Municipalities in the near future.
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Manufactured components are illustrated in the pictures below

System Automation
In an attempt to enhance efficiency within operations, system automation has assisted reduction in downtime
and provides early warning signs to various water treatment works. There is continuous improvement on
the system automation to enable operations to control Reservoir levels that are at a distance from the
plant. It also serves to monitor equipment and operate pumps station that are unmanned. The benefit has
been seen in a reduction in the water loss, energy saving and maintenance breakdowns.
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4. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The climatic conditions continued with the drought prevailing over the financial year. The restrictions
imposed by the former Department of Water and Sanitation affecting the supply and demand for the
Municipalities impacted the volumes and revenue generated of the entity. The entity made provision for
drought tariffs to strive to recover its fixed costs within the lower water demand environment. These tariffs
were approved by the former Minister of Water and Sanitation and implemented accordingly.
Bloem Water continued to face financial challenges during the period under review as the non-payment
continued by its major clients, Municipalities which undermined the optimal operation of the entity.
Several processes were embarked upon in accordance with inter-governmental relations and legislative
requirements to ensure that the entity is paid for its services. It has not yielded the desired results and the
status quo therefore persisted of outstanding accounts and the financial strain on Bloem Water activities.

4.1

BULK WATER SALES ANALYSIS

Bulk treated water sales, as presented below in Table (a), has increased marginally from the previous
period. It was influenced by reducing of restrictions from 20% to 15% by the former Department of Water
and Sanitation. The rainfall received over the period improved the dam levels but not to an extent that the
restrictions could be lifted. All the Municipalities have been restricted at intervals and the sales volumes
decreased accordingly as the restrictions imposed by Bloem Water was due to relentless breaching of
contractual payment obligations.

Quantity of Treated Water Sold (Kℓ)
Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality

2017/2018

2018/2019

Kopanong Local Municipality
Mantsopa Local Municipality
Other (Bulk)

62 614 658

66 289 216

3 080 760

3 927 979

1 665 348

1 196 047

112 033

TOTAL

127 347

67 472 799

71 540 589

Quantity of Untreated Water Sold (Kℓ)
2017/2018

2018/2019

Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality
Other

TOTAL

4.2

10 455 972

9 619 762

8 353

13 869

10 464 325

9 633 631

BULK WATER TARIFF

The average tariff increase for the year was 9% for both treated and raw water.
Normal Tariffs (excluding VAT)
Bulk consumers (Bloemfontein, Botshabelo, Bethulie, Dewetsdorp, Edenburg, Excelsior,
Fauresmith, Gariep, Jagersfontein, Phillippolis, Reddersburg, Springfontein, Thaba Nchu,
Trompsburg, Wepener and others)

Cents per Kℓ
815
599

Bulk Treated Water
Bulk Raw Water
Water research levy (Excluding VAT)
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Drought Tariffs (excluding VAT)

Bulk consumers (Bloemfontein, Botshabelo, Bethulie, Dewetsdorp, Edenburg, Excelsior,
Fauresmith, Gariep, Jagersfontein, Phillippolis, Reddersburg, Springfontein, Thaba Nchu,
Trompsburg, Wepener and others)

Cents per Kℓ

Bulk Treated Water
Bulk Raw Water

4.3

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

The revenue generation was in line with each budget, but the cash flow deteriorated with the Municipalities
not paying accounts and further challenging various aspects regarding the drought tariff, its implementation
and the use of the guidelines set by the Executive Authority, the Department of Water and Sanitation. One
of the major Municipalities also challenged the conditions from the Service Level Agreement (SLA) and the
applications thereof. Cash flow from operating activities were adversely affected as payment challenges
prevailed.

4.4

FUNDING REQUIREMENTS

The impact of the drought, the imposed restrictions and the payment culture by major clients has affected
the financial position of the entity. The payment environment has also not stabilised and therefore impacts
the risk of considering entering funding obligations. The entity therefore could not consider borrowing
additional funding for the Capital Expenditure Programme to maintain a stable financial environment.
The water demand and related expansion requirements will be considered in future years when normal
conditions prevail, and the revenue streams returns to normality. It will be considered to meet future
expansion demands.

5. REVENUE COLLECTION

The revenue collection has deteriorated with most of the Municipalities as the non-payment increased as
well as the inconsistency of payment also increased.
The entity was forced to act according to the non-payment of Municipalities and had to follow legal
and inter-governmental relations processes to mitigate the non-payment environment. In some instances,
the processes yielded limited results as some of the Municipalities are under severe financial strain and
authorities were unable to render financial support. The parties that have been continuously engaged
include the Provincial stakeholders, office of the Premier, SALGA, COGTA, Provincial and National offices of
Treasury and the then Department of Water and Sanitation.
One of the major Municipal clients also declared disputes on the implementation of a drought tariff and
its implementation and lately on the compliance on the conditions of the Service Level Agreement. It has
been quite a challenge to plan based on irregular revenue streams from Municipalities and the collection
rate associated with it.
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PART C:

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

1. INTRODUCTION

Good Governance starts at the top level of leadership of the Entity.  It sets the tone for a culture that filters
down to the service points of the Entity. The Board and Management of Bloem Water adhere to good
governance at high levels in all processes and practices. Principles of openness, and accountability are
embraced by all associated with the Entity.

Openness:
The Annual Financial Statements from page 106 adhere to all the required standards and have been
prepared with extreme attention to details. The stakeholder engagements tabled in this report have been
prepared to indicate all necessary interactions with various stakeholders about the activities of the Entity.

Accountability:
The Entity consistently, timeously and accurately reported to the Executive Authority, Minister of Human
Settlement, Water and Sanitation, as required. The Minister acknowledged the receipt of the reports
and consistently sent responses on acknowledgement of receipt as well as the recommendations for
exceptional performance.

Risk Management:
The Board received assurance regarding the effectiveness of risk management process.   It continually
reviewed the risk registers of the of all the units within the Entity as reported by the Chief Risk Officer.  
All these registers confirmed that the risks identified, and controls implemented in the internal control
environment of the Entity were adequate and effective.
The Line Managers of Bloem Water take responsibility for ensuring that the Financial Control Systems are
functional, without relying on the internal auditors to detect any fruitless and wasteful expenditure. Bloem
Water is generally in compliance with statutory requirements, PFMA and King IV prescripts. Cases of noncompliance with PFMA detected by Internal Audit were noted and management took appropriate steps to
address the weaknesses identified to ensure complete compliance going forward.

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES

The Committee that served during the period under review conveyed its appreciation to the delegation
during the Fifth Administration where the Entities tabled Annual Reports. The Committee further appreciated
the hard work and support from the then Department of Water and Sanitation and thanked the Minister,
the Deputy Minister, and the Water Boards. The Committee reiterated the completion of the outstanding
issues that still needed to be attended to by the sector.

3. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

During the year under reporting Bloem Water continued to timeously submit monthly and quarterly
performance reports to provide progress updates on the implementation of the Business Plan 2018-2023
to the Executive Authority, in compliance with the Framework for Strategy and the Shareholder Compact.
The Entity’s Annual Reports are submitted to the Executive Authority, Parliament and National Treasury in
accordance with Section 55(1) (d) of the PFMA. The tariff proposals of the Entity were also submitted to the
Minister for approval and thereafter to the Portfolio Committee for noting.
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4. THE BOARD

The powers, functions and duties of the Board of Bloem Water are determined by the Water Services Act
018 of 1999 and are outlined fully in the Board Charter. The Entity is led by the skilled, functional and
effective Board and Board Committees for providing strategic direction and leadership, ensuring good
corporate governance as referred to in Section 51 of the PFMA. The Board acts as the focal point and
provides ethical leadership characterised by the principles of fairness, accountability, responsibility and
transparency and ensures that it manages its relationship with management and stakeholders along sound
corporate governance principles.
The Board was fully constituted in the year under review, consisted of 10 members appointed by the
Minister in writing. The Meetings of the Board were convened based on the approved scheduled meeting
and all meetings of the Board and its Committees were quorate.
The Board embraced the prescripts as in terms of a mandate set out as per the Water Services Act, Act 108
of 1997 and various other legislations as well as the King IV Report on Corporate Governance. Key functions
of the Board include, but are not limited to:
66 Determining the strategic direction of Bloem Water.
66 Approving and monitoring implementation of Strategic objectives and Programmes.
66 Monitoring the performance of Bloem Water from financial, human resources,
environmental and technical performance perspective.
66 Annually reassessing the Board Committees’ mandate by reviewing each Committee’s
Charter.
66 Reassessing annually the strategic direction of the Entity by gauging progress in relation to
the implementation plans following the set of strategic objectives defined by the Board.
66 Delegating to the Chief Executive and Executive Management, the authority to manage
the Organisation in accordance with the delegated authorities approved and monitoring
thereof.
66 Defining levels of materiality and evaluating as well as reporting on the reasons for issuing
a going concern statement.
Further, the Board manages conflict of interest amongst the Board members in line with Principle 1(a) (ii)
of the King IV Code, which stipulates, “the Board should avoid conflicts of interest”. Accordingly, “conflicts
should be disclosed to the Board in full and at the earliest opportunity and then proactively managed”. To
this effect, all directors of the Board declared their interests in all meetings they attended in the year under
review to ensure adherence to the Bloem Water Code of Ethics. The Board, through its Charter, ensures that
each director adheres to the duties and responsibilities, including amongst others, the duty to act in good
faith, to avoid conflicts of interest and to act in the best interests of the organisation.
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Recently appointed Board with panel members from Salga, Traditional Affairs
and FS Province

The Board Charter
The Board Charter sets out the roles and responsibilities, as well as the requirements for its composition
and meeting procedures. It details Board succession, the selection of Board members and the induction as
well as the evaluation of the Board, which is reviewed on an annual basis guiding the Board in executing
its oversight function. The Charter also requires that Directors exercise leadership, competence, integrity
and sound judgment, accountability, responsibility and transparency throughout the term of office. This
Charter was reviewed and approved by the Board for the 2018/19 Financial Year.

Composition of the Board
The term of office for the Board of Directors during the year under review expired at the end of March
2018. However, the Minister extended the term on 3 monthly bases until the end of March 2019 in which
a whole new Board was appointed for a period of 4 years. The Board is constituted of 10 Non-Executive
Directors and 1 Executive Director (the Chief Executive), it comprises of specialists in various fields and
representative of a balanced skill- base which includes finance, corporate governance, risk management,
legal, human resources, water and energy. This new Board was inaugurated in May 2019.
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The new Board, Executive Management and Department of Human
Settlement Water and Sanitation

Table 3: Composition of the Board as at 31 March 2019
Name
Designation

(in terms. of the
Public Entity
Board structure)

TB Phitsane
Chairperson of
the Board

Date
appointed
Date Term
Expires

Qualifications

28 April 2009 BA Economics;
MBA
30 September
2018
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Other
Committees or
Task Teams.
(e.g.: Audit
committee /
Ministerial task
team)

No. of
Meetings
attended

Board Committee; 4
Finance
Committee

Name
Designation

(in terms. of the
Public Entity
Board structure)

Ms. P Matete
Deputy
Chairperson

Date
appointed
Date Term
Expires

Qualifications

01 April 2014 BA (Urban
& Regional
30 September Planning;
2018
BA Hons.
(Environmental
& Geography
Studies);

Area of
Expertise
Technical
Management

Board
Directorships
(List the
entities)

Other
Committees or
Task Teams.
(e.g.: Audit
committee /
Ministerial task
team)

No. of
Meetings
attended

Chairperson
of the Social
& Ethics
Committee

Board Committee; 4
Social & Ethics

Chairperson
of the Audit
Committee

Board Committee; 4
Audit Committee;
Finance
Committee

MA in
Environmental
& Geography
Studies (thesis
pending)

Mr. N Mokhesi
NED

Master of Public
Administration
(thesis pending)
01 February
B Com;
Finance and
2005
B Compt
Auditing
(Accounting
30 September & Auditing);
2018
B Com Hons;
M Com Financial
Management

Adv L Bomela
NED

01 May 2010

B Proc; LLB;
LLM in Labour
30 September Law
2018

Law & Practicing None
Advocate

Mr. Z Mkiva
NED

01 April 2014 BA Social
Science;
30 September Honours in
2018
Development
Studies;
Arts & Culture
Administration
01 April 2014 Master of
Business
30 September Administration;
2018
Doctorate of
INPL;
MSc. in Chemical
Engineering;
BSc in Chemical
Engineering

Local
Government

None

Chemical
Engineering;
Management;
Projects;

Chairperson
of the Capital
Projects &
Fixed Assets
Committee

Dr MJ Ellman
NED
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Board Committee; 4
Capital Projects
& Fixed Assets
Committee;
Social & Ethics
Committee;
Human Resources
& Corporate
Support
Board Committee; 4
Finance
Committee;
Capital Projects
& Fixed Assets
Committee
Board Committee; 4
Capital Projects
& Fixed Assets
Committee; Audit
Committee;
Human Resources
& Corporate
Support
Committee

Name
Designation

Date
appointed

Qualifications

Area of
Expertise

Board
Directorships
(List the
entities)

(in terms. of the
Public Entity
Board structure)

Date Term
Expires

Ms. MSS Maboe 28 April 2009 BSc. Ed; MA
NED
30 September
2018

Corporate
None
Governance,
Local and
Provincial
Government and
Education

Ms. CM
Mahlakahlaka
(nee Phetwe)
NED

01 April 2014 B Com in
Commerce
30 September
2018

Audit & Risk
Management

None

Other
Committees or
Task Teams.
(e.g.: Audit
committee /
Ministerial task
team)

No. of
Meetings
attended

Board Committee; 4
Human Resources
& Corporate
Support
Committee;
Finance
Committee;
Social & Ethics
Committee
Board Committee; 4
Audit Committee;
Social & Ethics
Committee

Bloem Water has no alternate members in its Board

Following the expiring of Mr. Mokhesi’s term of office at end of March 2018 Ms. Mahlakahlaka (nee Phetwe) was
appointed as the Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Following Dr van der Merwe’s untimely death, Ms. Maboe was appointed as the Chairperson of the Human
Resources & Corporate Support Committee and as an additional member of the Audit Committee and the Capital
Projects & Fixed Assets Committee.

Table 3: Composition of the newly appointed Board from 01 April 2019
Name
Designation

Date
appointed

(in terms. of the
Public Entity
Board structure)

Date Term
Expires

TB Phitsane
Chairperson of
the Board

01 April
2019

TD SegoeBackward
Deputy
Chairperson of
the Board
T Manyoni
NED

March
2023
01 April
2019
March
2023
01 April
2019
March
2023

Qualifications

BA Economics; MBA

Area of
Expertise

Strategic
Management,
Finance &
Corporate
Governance

B Iuris; LLB; Post
Law
Graduate Diploma
in Drafting &
Interpretation of the
Contracts
BA; Diploma in
Governance
Business Management;
Certificate: Voter
Education Elections

ANNUAL
2018

57

Board
Directorships
(List the
entities)

Other
Committees or
No. of
Task Teams. (e.g.: Meetings

Audit committee
/ Ministerial task
team)

attended
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Name
Designation

Date
appointed

(in terms. of the
Public Entity
Board structure)

Date Term
Expires

MAF Moja
NED

01 April
2019
March
2023

Mr. Z Mkiva
NED

01 April
2019
March
2023

TN Sandlana
NED

01 April
2019
March
2023

JJ Price

01 April
2019

Qualifications

Area of
Expertise

Board
Directorships
(List the
entities)

Masters in Business
Leadership; Advanced
Treasury Management;
B-Com

Auditing
and Human
resources;
Performance
Management
System

None

BA Social Sciences;
Senior Degree
(Honours in
Development Studies;
Training in Community
& Conflict resolution;
Arts and Culture
Administration; Media
and Research Training;
Executive Course for
Finance Managers
Diploma in
Management;
B Com; Higher
Education Diploma;
B. Com Horns;
Master of Business
Administration
Master’s in business
leadership, MBL; B.
(Hons) Eng. MOT,
Management of
Technology; B.
(Hons) Eng. Degree
in Maintenance
Engineering; B.
Eng. Mechanical
Engineering Degree;
Certificate for Project
Design in National
Diploma Electrical
Engineering (Heavy
current); National
Diploma Electrical
Engineering (Heavy
current);

Management
& Leadership;
Administration
of Resources;
Event
Management

Chairperson
of the Human
resource &
corporate
Support
Committee
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Other
Committees or
No. of
Task Teams. (e.g.: Meetings

Audit committee
/ Ministerial task
team)

attended

Board Committee; 1
Human resource
& corporate
Support
Committee,
Capital Projects
& Fixed Assets
Committee
Board Committee; 1
Finance
Committee;
Social & Ethics
Committee

Internal
Chairperson
Audit; Risk
of the Audit
Management; Committee
Corporate
Governance;

Board Committee; 1
Finance
Committee;

Engineering

Board Committee; 1
Audit Committee;
Capital Projects
& Fixed Assets
Committee
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Date
appointed

Name
Designation

(in terms. of the
Public Entity
Board structure)

Date Term
Expires

DM Manamela

01 April
2019

LE van
Oudtshoorn

01 April
2019

LX Ntoyi

01 April
2019

Qualifications

MSc. (Environmental
Sciences); BSc.
(Hons) Microbiology;
Programme &
Project Management;
Management
Advanced Programme
(Leadership in Oil &
Energy); Certificate in
Safety Management;
Certificate in Business
Leadership
B. Eng. (Civil); B. Eng.
(Hons); M. Eng. (Water
Utilization); MBA.   
National Diploma
(Civil); B-degree (Civil);
Masters: Business
Administration;
Municipal Finance
Management
Programme (MFMP);
National Diploma
Public Finance
Management &
Administration;
National Certificate
Local Economic
Development

Area of
Expertise

Board
Directorships
(List the
entities)

Other
Committees or
No. of
Task Teams. (e.g.: Meetings

Audit committee
/ Ministerial task
team)

attended

Project
None
Management;
Water
Resources
Management

Board Committee; 1
Social & Ethics
Committee;
Capital Projects
& Fixed Assets
Committee

Engineering

None

Engineering;
Project
Management;
Contraction
& Contract
Management;
Corporate
and project
Finance; Risk
Management;
Human
Resources
Management;
Water Sector

Chairperson
of the Capital
Projects &
Fixed Assets
Committee

Capital Projects
& Fixed Assets
Committee,
Social & Ethics
Committee;
Human resource
& corporate
Support
Committee;

1

1

5. BOARD COMMITTEES

In order to enable the Board to properly discharge its onerous functions and duties, certain responsibilities
have been delegated to Board Committees. The creation of Committees does not reduce a Director’s
overall responsibility and therefore all Committees report and make recommendations to the Board. These
Committees are chaired by a Non-Executive Director, furthermore, each Committee acts in accordance with
its own respective Charter.
Committees assist to efficiently advance the business of the Board. In tandem with the aforesaid, Committees
can demonstrate that Director Responsibilities are being adequately and properly discharged. The Board has
instituted the following committees:
66 The Human Resources and Corporate Support Committee – comprising of Directors suited to
specialising in human resources, human capital as well as corporate social responsibilities.
66 The Finance Committee – comprising of Directors with expertise in finance, audit and assets
management and supply chain management.
66 The Audit Committee – comprising of Directors with expertise in finance, internal control and
risk management.
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66 The Chairpersons Committee – comprising of the Chairpersons of all the Board’s subCommittees.
66 The Social & Ethics Committee – comprising of Directors with skills and expertise in legal
as well as areas that ensure the Organisation’s compliance with social and ethical codes of
best practice.
66 The Capital Projects & Fixed Assets Committee – comprising of Directors with expertise in
capital appropriations and long-term projects.
66 The Board of Trustees – an external body, independent of the Board, which meets on a
regular basis to deal with Pension Fund matters in accordance with the Pension Fund rules
and regulations as well as applicable legislation.
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Ms Maboe assumed
the Chairpersonship
after the passing
away of Dr van
der Merwe on 27
November 2017

Adv L Bomela
Dr MJ Ellman

Ms MSS Maboe
(Chairperson)

Corporate Support
& Human Resources
Committee

(Mr Mokhesi’s
term ended on
31.03.2018)

Ms MSS Maboe
Mr N Mokhesi
Mr Z Mkiva

Mr TB Phitsane
(Chairperson)

Finance Committee

Ms P Matete

VICECHAIRPERSON

(Mr Mokhesi’s term
ended on 31.03.2018
and Ms Maboe
incorporated into
the Committee)

Ms MSS Maboe
Dr MJ Ellman

Audit Committee
Ms. Mahlakahlaka
(Chairperson)

Ms P Matete
(Chairperson)
Ms MSS Maboe
Ms CM Mahlakahlaka
Mr Z Mkiva
Adv L Bomela

Mr TB Phitsane
(Chairperson)
Mr N Mokhesi
Ms. Mahlakahlaka
Dr MJ Ellman
Ms P Matete

(Mr Mokhesi’s
term ended on
31.03.2018)

Social & Ethics
Committee

Chairpersons’
Committee

CHAIRPERSON
Mr TB Phitsane

31 March 2019

Ms MSS Maboe
Adv L Bomela
Ms. CM
Mahlakahlaka
Mr Z Mkiva

Dr MJ Ellman
(Chairperson)

Capital Projects
& Fixed Assets
Committee

The following structures depicts the previous Board Committee Composition as at
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Mr T Manyoni
Ms MAF Moja
Mr LX Ntoyi

Mr Z Mkiva
(Chairperson)

Human Resources &
Corporate Support
Committee
Mr T Manyoni
Adv TD SegoeBackward
Mr JJ Price

Ms TN Sandlana
(Chairperson)

Mr TB Phitsane
(Chairperson)
Ms TN Sandlana
Mr Z Mkiva
Adv TD SegoeBackward

Audit Committee

Finance Committee

Ms P Matete

VICECHAIRPERSON

Mr TB Phitsane

CHAIRPERSON

01 April 2019

Mr LE van Oudtshoorn
Ms MAF Moja
Ms DM Manamela
Mr JJ Price

Mr LX Ntoyi
(Chairperson)

Adv TD SegoeBackward
(Chairperson)
Mr TB Phitsane
Mr Z Mkiva
Ms DM Manamela
Mr LE van Oudtshoorn

Capital Projects & Fixed
Assets Committee
Social & Ethics
Committee

The following structures depicts the current Board Committee Composition as from

Capital Projects & Fixed Assets
Committee

Adv. L Bomela

Ms. CM Mahlakahlaka
Mr. Z Mkiva

Dr MJ Ellman

Dr L Moorosi (Executive Director)







≠

≠

















Table 7: Capital Projects & Fixed Assets Committee
Attendance

≠ Apology In Attendance

TB Phitsane



MAF Moja



Mr. Z Mkiva

≠

≠



Mr. Z Mkiva



≠















- Not Member = (Interim Member)



TD Segoe-Backward

Finance Committee



JJ Price



DM Manamela

The Finance Committee assists the Board in
fulfilling its oversight role with regards to
governance of financial matters and accounting
by monitoring financial statements, investment
management and procurement processes through
meetings which are held at least once a quarter.
The Committee monitored and evaluated the
effective and efficient functioning and operations
of the internal controls.



LE van Oudtshoorn



L Ntoyi



Dr L Moorosi (Executive Director)



≠ Apology In Attendance

29/08/2019

20/09/2019

14/03/2019



















Members

20/09/2018

05/02/2018

Table 6: Audit Committee

Ms. MSS Maboe
(Interim Member)

Adv. L Bomela

≠ Apology In Attendance



TN Sandlana

Dr L Moorosi (Executive
Director)



Dr L Moorosi
(Executive Director)
Ms. MSS Maboe
(Interim Member)



T Manyoni

Dr MJ Ellman



Dr MJ Ellman

22/05/2019

Members

Ms. CM Mahlakahlaka



Members

Table 5: Board Meeting Attendance

Members

13/03/2019

Ms. MSS Maboe





22/11/2018

Ms. P Matete



The Purpose of the Capital Projects & Fixed Assets
Committee is to assist the Board in discharging its
duties related to creating long- and short-term
plans for water security and sustainability. Thus,
ensuring that the funding sources are in place to
carry out these plans and assist the Board with
Capital Expenditure Programme related decisions
within its delegated authority.

23/08/2018

Mr. TB Phitsane

03/12/2018

Members

21/09/2018

Table 4: Board Meeting Attendance







Mr. TB Phitsane





Ms. Maboe





Mr. Z Mkiva

≠



Dr L Moorosi (Executive Director)





The table below summarises attendance by
Committee members.
Table 8: Finance Committee

≠ Apology In Attendance
- Not Member = (Interim Member)
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Human Resource and Corporate
Support Committee

Social and Ethics Committee
The primary function of the Committee is to assist
the Board of Directors with the oversight and
monitoring of social and ethical matters related
to Bloem Water’s activities, the extent to which
Organisational Values are implemented and the
impacts on its stakeholders thereof.

The primary objective of the Committee is to
develop and implement a competitive Human
Resource Strategy and Plan to ensure that Bloem
Water can attract, retain and develop the best
possible skills to support business performance.
For the year under review, the Committee
constantly monitored the recommendations of
the approved Organisational Work-Study and
the implementation of Structure. It furthermore
reviewed Information Communication and
Technology Systems and other activities related
to Corporate Support and the Human Resource
Department.
A summary of attendance by
Committee members is given below.

16/11/2018

25/02/2019







Ms. Maboe







Adv. L Bomela

≠

≠

≠

Dr L Moorosi (Executive Director)

≠





26/02/2019

13/08/2018

Dr MJ Ellman

Ms. P Matete





Ms. MSS Maboe





Ms. C M Mahlakahlaka





Mr. Z Mkiva





Adv. L Bomela

≠

≠

Dr L Moorosi (Executive Director)





Members

Table 9: Human Resource and Corporate Support
Committee
Members

21/09/2018

Table 10: Social and Ethics Committee

≠ Apology In Attendance

≠ Apology In Attendance

- Not Member = (Interim Member)
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Remuneration of Board members
Board remuneration is based on the principles and prescripts from the Office of the Minister of Human
Settlement, Water and Sanitation
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

The Board of Directors is responsible for, and undertook the following during the year end 30 June 2019
Adoption of strategic plan & monitoring of operation performance and management
Determination of policy and processes to ensure the integrity of the entity’s risk management; and internal controls; communication policy
and director selection; orientation and evaluation.
Non-Executive Directors with their remuneration for the financial year are as follows:
2019
Board Member
Board
Activity Fees
(R)
Mr TB Phitsane
R 124 510
Ms P Matete
R 40 520
Adv LR Bomela
R 5 532
Dr MJ Ellman
R 102 904
Ms MMS Maboe Phike
R 145 872
Ms CM Mahlakahlaka
R 70 447
Ms DM Manamela
R 31 130
Mr TM Manyoni
R 24 125
Mr Z Mkiva
R 53 115
Ms MAF Moja
R 21 012
Mr LX Ntoyi
R 47 278
Mr JJ Price
R 46 889
Ms TN Sandlana
R 26 071
Adv TD Segoe-Backward
R 44 100
Mr LE Van Rheede Van Oudtshoorn
R 46 694
TOTALS
R 830 200

Expense
Allowance
(R)
R 20 011
R 245
R 139
R 1 846
R 40 449
R 1 633
R0
R 880
R 15 669
R 2 772
R 570
R 6 603
R 1 084
R 64
R 1 084
R 93 049

Total
Remuneration
(R)
R 144 521
R 40 766
R 5 672
R 104 750
R 186 321
R 72 079
R 31 130
R 25 005
R 68 784
R 23 784
R 47 849
R 53 492
R 27 155
R 44 164
R 47 779
R 923 249

Key Management personnel with their remuneration for the financial year are as follows:
2019
Key Management
Short Term Employee Other Long Term
Benefits ( R )
Benefits ( R )
L Moorosi
2 048 371
250 973
OJ Stadler
1 842 660
382 426
M Rapudungoane
1 681 909
371 982
TS Ngubeni
1 733 708
328 366
NP Silevu
1 463 067
297 316
1 913 537
270 000
SL Meyer
1 690 843
291 862
NM Motlhaolwa
TOTALS
12 374 095
2 192 924

Total
Remuneration ( R )
2 299 344
2 225 086
2 053 891
2 062 074
1 760 383
2 183 537
1 982 705
14 567 019

Board meetings
Key Management Personnel are encouraged to attend board meetings. 3 Board meetings were held and attended as follows:
2019
Board Activities /
Board Member
Board
Meetings
Committee
Attended
Meetings
Mr TB Phitsane
3
8
Ms P Matete
3
4
Adv LR Bomela
0
1
Dr MJ Ellman
3
14
Ms MMS Maboe Phike
3
23
3
9
Ms CM Mahlakahlaka
Ms DM Manamela
1
2
Mr TM Manyoni
1
2
Mr Z Mkiva
3
6
Ms MAF Moja
1
2
Mr LX Ntoyi
1
3
Mr JJ Price
1
2
Ms TN Sandlana
1
2
Adv TD Segoe-Backward
1
2
Mr LE Van Rheede Van Oudtshoorn
1
3
Number of employees
According to the payroll system the entity had the following number of employees as at the 30 June 2019 : 404
(2018:386); (2017:381); (2016:397); (2015:358); (2014:327); (2013:276); (2012: 257)
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6. COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary gives support to the
functioning of the Board and its Committees.
In this regard the Board has continuous access
to legal advice and coordination of its services
through the Secretary of the Board whose main
responsibilities are outlined below.

66 Ensuring that a yearly Board
programme is in place and does
all that is necessary to ensure that
meetings are held as scheduled
including special meetings;
66 Ensuring that agendas and Board
documents are distributed timeously
to Board members and attendees;

66 Assessing corporate governance
changes within the current legal and
regulatory landscape

66 Ensuring that minutes of Board and
Board Committee meetings are
recorded, circulated to and agreed to
by members of the Board;

66 Spearheading the recruitment process
of Non-Executive Directors
66 Assisting with the induction and
training programmes for Board
members;

66 Ensuring that the decisions of the
Board are implemented;
66 Spearheading the evaluation of the
Board, Committees and individual
directors.

66 Ensuring Board and Committee
Charters are up to date and are
reviewed annually or as required

7. RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk Management Approach and
System

Settlement, which influenced the updating of
strategic risk register.
The following operational risk assessments were
concluded during financial year under review:

Central to the bulk services provided to
Municipalities, the proactive identification and
management of risk exposures is key to provide
reasonable assurance to all relevant stakeholders
regarding the achievement of Institutional
objectives such as “securing of the supply and
quality of raw water resources objective”.

66 Security Management March 2019;
66 Supply Chain Management March
2019;
66 Fleet Management March 2019
66 Office of the Chief Executive April
2019.

The Entity uses Barn Owl risk management
software to obtain real time information for
decision making purposes.

Bloem Water is also committed to ensuring the
continuity of the Organisation in the event of a
material disruption to its critical activities, through
integration of business continuity management
(BCM) as an essential part of its day-to-day
operations and in August 2018 Business Continuity
Plans were reviewed to achieve the following:

The Board exercises oversight of risk management
with focus on the most significant risks facing the
Entity, including strategic, operational, financial.
Legal and compliance risks. Risk Management is
therefore a standing agenda item for Board and
Management Committee meetings.

66 The safety and wellbeing of its
employees, contractors and visitors
66 Protecting the wellbeing of the
environment and society in which
Bloem Water operates
66 Minimising the adverse impact of
the disruption on Bloem Water’s
operations

Bloem Water has adopted an Enterprise Risk
Management approach and for the financial year
under review, it operated with an approved Risk
Management Framework which incorporates
the approved Risk Management Policy and Risk
Management Strategy. EXCO also considered
emerging risks as a result of the merger between
Departments of Water and Sanitation and Human
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Risk Management Structure

The Policy is based on the principles of ISO
31000, National Treasury Public Sector Risk
Management Framework and complies with the
recommendations of King IV Report on Corporate
Governance as well as the Protocol on Corporate
Governance in the Public Sector. This policy
defines the objectives, methodology, process and
responsibilities of the various risk management
role players in the Organisation. The Risk
Management policy is subject to annual review
and any proposed amendments are submitted
to the Audit Committee for consideration and
recommendation to the Board for approval.

Bloem Water implements centralized and
decentralized structures that are managed by a
dedicated Chief Risk Officer supported by Risk
Champions and Co-ordinators at operational level
as well the Audit Committee. The following risk
management and governance structure have been
implemented to ensure the effective and efficient
management of risk within the Entity.
THE BOARD

Risk Appetite

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board reviewed its risk appetite statements
outlined in the risk management policy which
defines the level and type of risks it is prepared
or willing to accept in pursuit of its objectives.
Furthermore, risk limits are outlined in policy
documents and procedures that define tolerances
at operational level.

EXECUTIVE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

CHIEF RISK OFFICER

Strategic Risks

The Board exercises oversight of risk management
with a focus on the most significant risks facing
the Organisation, including strategic, operational,
financial, legal and compliance risks. Annually, key
risks are identified by management and the Board.
These risks are prioritised for close monitoring
and mitigation.

Strategic Risk Management is considered as
a priority. Annually the Board together with
Executive Management, review strategic risks,
which are risks at corporate level that might
impact on the Organisation’s ability to deliver on
its mandate and achievement of its strategy and
strategic objectives. Strategic risks are determined
through an assessment which considers probable
future scenarios taking cognisance of inter
alia, external factors: political, environmental,
social, technological, economic and legislative
developments in both the water sector and
construction.

Risk Management Focus for the year
Bloem Water has adopted an enterprise wide
approach to risk management, and this is
outlined in the Risk Management Policy and
Strategy communicated to relevant stakeholders.
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Key Strategic Risks
Objectives

Risks

Risk Mitigation

Manage financial
affairs to meet
current and future
obligations

Non-payment by
Municipalities for
services provide

66 Implementing Debtors Policy i.a.w PFMA/ Section 4(5) of WSA/
Section 44 of MFMA. /Section 65 of PFMA / Legal – attachment of
assets
66 Continuous engagements with concerned municipalities at
executive and board level

Develop, operate
and maintain
infrastructure to
ensure sustainable
water Service
delivery.

Failure/ inability
to meet customer
water demands
and expectations.
(Water Availability)

66 Water Supply Reconciliation study
66 NOVO transfer scheme
66 Off take dams (Knelpoort Dam)
66 De-siltation of Weldam
66 Complimentary water supply schemes
66 Water Balance Modelling
66 Contingency Preparedness plan
66 Stakeholder engagement (DWA)

Securing the supply
and quality of raw
water

Deteriorating and
Ageing Water
Infrastructure

66 Asset Condition Assessment
66 Maintenance Plans
66 CAPEX, O&M, budgeting, planning and implementation
66 Training and Development
66 Automation of assets/ operational systems
66 Audit of Assets
66 Standby capacity
66 Scouring of the Welbedacht Dam during floods.
66 Maintaining the dam at minimum 20%
66 Release from Knellpoort Dam to Welbedacht dam during drought
66 Abstract water from Tienfontein Pump Station for storage in
Knellpoort Dam

Securing the supply
and quality of raw
water

Insufficient
budget for CAPEX
Program

66 CAPEX Plan
66 Project Prioritisation
66 Borrowing Plan
66 Funding Model
66 Requested DWS to assist with funding of key infrastructure
expansion projects.
66 Budget reprioritization

Securing the supply
and quality of raw
water

Effectiveness of Risk Management
The Board needs reasonable assurance that risk management processes and applied reporting framework
are effective and efficient. The Audit Committee has considered the policies, procedures and independent
assurance reports provided by internal and external auditors and thus obtained reasonable assurance that
risk management processes are effective.
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Business Continuity Management
Water sector is volatile and susceptible to political, social, environmental changes which may result in
occurrence of severe unexpected events. These unknown uncertainties require that crises management
processes and business continuity plan be designed to improve organisational resilience to unforeseen
events such as political unrest, information and communication technology disruptions, employee
repatriation and infrastructure failures to minimize their impact on stakeholders and the organisation’s
reputation.
During the year under review, Bloem Water reviewed crises management as well as business continuity
plans, and these updates improved the Organisation’s preparedness for unforeseen disruptions.

Fraud and Corruption
The continuous monitoring of Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy together with a Fraud Prevention Plan
is aimed to set the tone on top and, most importantly, to prevent, detect, deter, report and respond to
fraudulent activities.
The Ethics and Fraud Hotline which was established years ago is operational, enabling employees and
other stakeholders to raise suspected irregularities anonymously. In the event of fraud, managers are
required to make appropriate changes to controls systems, inform employees of the changes, review and
update procedures to prevent recurrence, and the internal audit together with risk management monitors
the effectiveness of measures put in place.

8. INTERNAL AUDIT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Bloem Water established an internal audit unit within the Entity during the year under review. One position
within the unit was filled and the unit performed reviews together with Nexia SAB&T, the co-sourced firm,
for the 2018/19 financial year.
In line with the King Code IV, the three-year rolling Internal Audit Plan was prepared for consideration and
approval by the Audit Committee. The plan is risk-based and included the planned internal audit activities
for the year as well as the timelines for the planned activities. The Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 was
approved by the Audit Committee on 20 September 2018.
Based on the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan, the Internal Auditors prepared the following reports for
submission to the Audit Committee:
Activity/focus area

Reported to the Audit Committee

Follow up of previously reported IA findings

14 March 2019

Audit of Predetermined Objectives

14 March 2019 (Quarter 1)

Annual Financial Statement GRAP

14 March 2019

Financial Management

14 March 2019

Human Resource Management

14 March 2019

Corporate Governance

14 March 2019

Internal Audit also prepared the following reports for submission to the Audit Committee. These reports
were however not presented to the Audit Committee at year end. Due to the process of the appointment
of the new Board, no Audit Committee meeting was held during the last quarter of the year:
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Activity/focus area

Supply Chain Management

As a Schedule 3B National Government Business
Concern (per PFMA 1999), Bloem Water does
not get any appropriation from the National or
Provincial Governments. The Entity relies solely on
water use charges for its cashflow requirements
and is thus susceptible to high liquidity risk
exposure. It is therefore imperative that bulk water
users maintain their water accounts in a healthy
and good standing by effecting regular payments.
During the year under review, Bloem Water’s
payment challenges by the main clients/customers
continued, with a degree of aggravation. Bloem
Water had to invoke Section 4 (5) of the Water
Services Act on two its biggest customers/clients.
For a considerable period now, one Municipality
still operates under the minimum restrictions,
while the other opted to take the payment fight
to court following its inability to comply with
the outcome of the Mediation Process instituted
under the MFMA and IGRA. Both these cases are
continuing.

Operations Management

Information and Communication Technology

Audit of Predetermined Objectives (Quarter 2 and 3)

The list below indicates the internal audit reviews
that were in progress as at year-end:
Review in progress

The internal audit project currently in the progress of
being completed is:
66 CAPEX Management Review
66 Audit of Predetermined Objectives (Quarter 4)

9. COMPLIANCE
WITH L AWS AND
REGUL ATIONS

In the prevailing circumstances such as mentioned
above, Bloem Water recognised the need to
improve its account collection strategies and
consequently embarked on the aggressive debtcollection effort. To further facilitate this effort, the
newly established Legal Unit, together with the
Department of Operation & Maintenance, began
to conduct an audit on the Entity’s infrastructure
to detect any unlawful/illegal use of the water
that fell below the metering radar. This exercise
yielded great results as a number of illegal farm
connections were caught out. In response to this
discovery, Bloem Water immediately instituted
legal proceedings against the identified farmers
for recovery of the costs of theft of water and
tempering with Bloem Water’s pipelines.

Many applicable laws with their associated
regulations, codes and guidelines are contained
in the Bloem Water compliance universe. These
applicable legislations receive the attention of
Management on an on-going basis including but
not limited to the Water Services Act 108 of 1997,
National Water Act 27 of 2014; the Public Finance
Management Act 1999 as amended; the Basic
Conditions of Employment Act 1997 as amended,
and the Employment Equity Act 1998 as amended.
Bloem Water provides access to information to
stakeholders and other third parties in compliance
with the provisions of Section 32 of the Constitution
of the Republic of South Africa (Act 108 of 1996)
read with the Promotion of Access to Information
Act 2 of 2000 (PAIA). The Entity ensures the
application of the Codes of Good Governance
principles as well as the Protocol of State-Owned
Entities, which recommend organisations to
consider disclosing in the report, the number and
reasons for refusals of requests for information
that were lodged with the Organisation in terms
of the PAIA. During the 2017/18 financial years the
Organisation did not receive any such requests.
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Bloem Water further experienced challenges with
servitudes when constructing major infrastructure
projects. The Entity experienced instances of
illegal settlements erected within Bloem Water’s
servitude where pipelines existed and delayed
access authorisation by the landowners where
no servitude existed. Bloem Water acted with
urgency to secure the problematic sites needed
for construction to avert or mitigate any potential
time overruns. Urgent attention was particularly
given to cases where construction was active and
access vital. In addition, Bloem Water embarked
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12. TECHNOLOGY
AND
INFORMATION
GOVERNANCE

on a massive audit of its servitude status. The
Programme was still in the initial stage of recruiting
a land auditor at the time of reporting and efforts
are continuing to bring it to fruition.

10. MINIMISING
CONFLICT OF
INTEREST

The Board is responsible for the governance of
Technology and Information in accordance with
King IV Report on Corporate Governance and has
put in place framework that outlines the Entity’s
structures, roles and responsibilities for decision
making, setting and achieving its strategic
objectives. This oversight responsibility has been
delegated to the Capital Projects and Fixed Asset
Committee and further to management for
effective implementation

A Declaration of Interest confirmation is a standing
item on each Agenda of every meeting of EXCO,
the Board and its Committees. This is to ensure
that Directors and Executive Management declare
any interests they may have as prescribed by
the Water Services Act, Act 108 of 1997 and the
Companies Act, Act 71 of 2008, and as directed
by sound corporate governance principles
encapsulated within the King IV Report on
Corporate Governance in line with Principle 1(a)
(ii) of the King IV, which stipulates that “the Board
should avoid conflicts of interest”.

The status of ICT showed great improvement
compared to the previous financial year. Most
of the audit queries raised were successfully
addressed which resulted in the Section being in a
better position to support the Entity.

Bloem Water also ensures that its designated
employees complete disclosure forms of interest
on an annual basis. Director independence from
an executive perspective is ensured through
the separation of the role of the Chief Executive
and the Chairperson, the absence of the Chief
Executive’s right to vote and the right of Directors
to seek independent professional advice on the
affairs of Bloem Water at any given time.

The Entity’s Policies, Standards and Procedures on
Technology and Information were reviewed during
the financial year to ensure compliance, relevance,
and to incorporate changes in the industry and
adhere to best practices. Cyber security incidents
and threats experienced across the world and
the Country in particular has made security of
information systems critical. This has necessitated
development of Information Technology Security
Policy which will be approved in 2019/20 financial
year.

11. CODE OF
CONDUCT

The ICT Steering Committee continued with
monitoring key initiatives at Executive level
to ensure that ICT Strategy addresses needs
of the Entity. The ICT Strategy was developed
and approved to support the Entity’s strategic
objectives, enable entity-wide management of ICT
as well as efficient use of ICT resources.

Members of the Board individually and collectively
cultivate characteristics as stipulated in Principle 1
of King IV and exhibit them in their conduct. Bloem
Water developed and approved Code of Ethics that is
not only directed to employees but also to the Board
Members as well.
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The Board ‘s oversight of ICT risk management
resulted in the development and implementation
of ICT Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plans that
supports the Entity’s overall Business Continuity
Management. The Off-site Disaster Recovery was
established at one of the Regions to ensure that ICT
services are available during times of disruption.

Health and Safety Policy is in place together with
standard operating procedures for implementation
in line with Occupational Health and Safety Act,
Act No. 85 of 1993. The Policy communicates the
Board’s commitment to high standards of health
and safety as well as best practices in occupational
health and safety performance.

Bloem Water successfully upgraded its wide area
network through outsourced network services
during the 2018/19 financial year and this has
improved ICT services to Regions that are mostly
located in remote areas. Furthermore, a Service
Level Agreement was put in place to enable
monitoring of performance and ensure delivery
of quality services. The Entity entered into an
Enterprise Agreement with Microsoft to ensure
consistency of software applications throughout
the Organisation.

The Entity also conducted Occupational Hygiene
Surveys in all Regions including Head Office to
examine hazards in the workplace that can cause
harm to people. Furthermore, the survey has
assisted the Entity to identify health and hygiene
risk exposure and determine whether appropriate
and adequate precautions are in place to avoid
harm to employees as required by legislation.
Furthermore, detailed reports following surveys
with recommended management actions were
issued and Medical screening of newly appointed
staff were also conducted during 2018/19 financial
year. Recommendations are subsequently
implemented.

13. SECURITY,
SAFETY, HEALTH,
ENVIRONMENT &
QUALITY

Environmental Management
Bloem Water has remained steadfast in its
commitment to generate value for all stakeholders
over the years and the year under review was no
exception. Bloem Water subscribes to a vision that
sees water resources as an integral component of
the ecosystem, a natural resource and a social and
economic good which is particularly important
in playing a redress and transformational role. In
delivering on its mandate, Bloem Water strives
to work in collaboration with strategic partners
and stakeholders to promote and strengthen
cooperation across all levels and sectors to
ensure sustainable integrated water resource
management through the river health program.

The operations of the Entity take place in very
remote areas and require diligent staff to ensure
sustainable delivery of water services. The Entity
is thus committed to ensuring a safe, secure
and healthy workplace for its employees as well
as security of its assets. The Board’s appetite on
injuries and/or death of its employees remains
zero tolerance.  The Policy statement on Health and
Safety is continuously communicated throughout
the Entity to create awareness to all its employees.

The ongoing prevalence of waste dumping
by communities culminate in water resources
pollution throughout the Modder-Riet and
Orange-Caledon sub catchments. Bloem Water has
rolled out the River Health Program that include
many stakeholders to prevent pollution of the
water resources in the region. For the year under
review, Bloem Water was able to host multiple river
clean up and public awareness campaigns around
river health, water conservation, water hygiene
and sanitation in partnership many stakeholders
including the Department of Human Settlement
Water and Sanitation.

Health and Safety
The Entity has established a Health and Safety
Function that ensures effective and efficient
implementation of the Occupational Health and
Safety Act across the Organisation, with relevant
officers in all Regions and a Construction Safety
Officer to attend to Safety in Construction
Projects. There are various committees in place
throughout the Regions for enterprise wide
implementation. Employees are trained on high
risk exposure activities to prevent injuries and/
or fatalities through toolbox talks, inspections,
incident reporting and investigation as well as
Personal Protective Equipment Committee.
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Security Management
Security of water infrastructure in the Country has become critical and therefore it is at the top of the
Board’s agenda. Water is a scarce commodity that has become a political and social issue as it is regarded
as a constitutional right. Policies and Procedures of Security are in place to ensure safety of infrastructure,
employees and assets of the Entity. Compliance to Minimum Information Security Standard is monitored
on a continual basis to ensure provision and maintenance of security in the Entity.
Subsequent to the establishment of the Security unit, sourcing of resources such as staff and relevant
equipment was completed. The Unit is now fully functional in all Regions. During the year under review,
security risk assessment was conducted to identify gaps in internal controls and plans were put in place
accordingly. Furthermore, the Unit established and maintained stakeholder relations within the security
sector, this is to ensure that any risk exposures that are outside the Entity’s control can be addressed where
relevant. Recommendations of the State Security Agency (SSA) assessment that could not be attended to in
the previous financial year were also addressed. In 2019/20, the Entity will focus more on security of water
infrastructure, securing water treatment works and pump stations in very remote areas.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Board commits to Corporate Social Investment and has identified school hygiene projects as part of
sanitation initiatives within the disadvantaged schools in the area of supply. The purpose is to improve
water and sanitation services in the schools and create awareness for hygiene and water related matters.
During the year 2018/2019 the fifty-two (52) schools were identified and provided with the services of
minor toilet renovation, plumbing, deep cleaning and supply of health and hygiene material. The deep
cleaning scope was to: Deep clean the toilets, repair and replace toilet seats, repair and replace toilet
pans and handbasin and taps, cisterns, urinals, and to supply sanitary towels, cleaning material and
equipment.
The scope for Minor renovations and water related was as following: Repair and replace exterior and
interior toilet doors and paint them, fix the floor screed, repair and replace of ceiling and paint, repair
leaks (pipes ), repair the wall cracks, door frames and paint, unblock manholes and sewer, mounted
waste bins, SHE bins for girls, soap dispensers, paper towel dispenser, and toilet roll dispensers.
Name of the
Project
Minor
Renovations
and Water
Related School
Project

Number of
Schools per
District /
appointed
Municipality
Service Provider
18
Mangaung Metro
Municipality
17
17

School Deep
26
Cleaning Supply
and deliver the
cleaning material

Summary Description of the project
Repairing of toilets pipe leaks, taps. Replace broken
windows, replace ceilings and paint both walls and
ceiling, Unblock manholes, sewer systems and septic
tanks.  Do the connections to the toilets for flushing,
gardening and for drinking purposes. Supply and install
the Jojo tank and construct the brick and steel tank
base.

Mangaung Metro Deep cleaning, refurbish toilets, supply cleaning
Municipality
material. Replace handbasins, repair and replace urinals,
taps replace toilet pots. Supply and deliver cleaning
material and health and hygiene equipment. Conduct
an awareness after completion of works
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Damaged Hand wash basins

         

Dysfunctional and blocked urinals

Replaced
        hand wash basins

Unblocked and cleaned urinals

14. STAKEHOLDER REL ATIONS

The success of Bloem Water as a National Government Business Enterprise highly depends on meaningful
and continued engagement with its stakeholders for sustainable value creation. These engagements
assist the Organisation to identify and understand the needs as it relates to the services the Organisation
provides. Stakeholders needs range from information about water service provision to water quality which
differs from one stakeholder to another. Bloem Water identifies its stakeholders in accordance to its
Communications and Marketing Strategy.
During the year under review, Bloem Water hosted the Chief Executives and their teams from SADC Water
Utilities for Easter wellness event. The Chief Executives deliberated on critical matters that affect water
supply at SADC regional level. Botswana, Lesotho and Eswatini attended with more than 1000 participants.
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Executive Management of four (4) Countries in deliberations

Provincial Dept of Human Settlement Water & Sanitation and Mangaung Metro Municipality
during World Toilet Day
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Set out below are the key stakeholders:
Stakeholder

Basis for engagement

Engagement methods

Customers

Bloem Water renders Bulk Water
Services to the following Municipalities:
Mangaung Metro, Kopanong and
Mantsopa as well as Small users such as
farmers.

66 Annual Customer Survey for all
Municipalities
66 Participation in development of Municipal
Integrated Development Plans
66 Planned strategic and operational
meetings

Employees

Bloem Water regards engaged
employees as more productive which
increases the performance of the
entity and creates a conducive working
environment.

66 Employee engagements through Local
labor Forum and Employee Suggestion
Box
66 Wellness Projects
66 Climate survey (satisfaction index)
66 Regular policy presentation sessions
66 Quarterly EXCO meetings held in regions
66 Pension Fund Road show
66 Board road show
66 Meetings with teams. as and when
required
66 Regular formal/informal staff interactions

Shareholder
Department of Human
Settlement, Water and
Sanitation

As prescribed by the Constitution, Bloem
Water aligns its strategic objectives
with that of National Government.
Bloem Water operates closely with the
Department of Water and Sanitation at a
Provincial and National level.

66 Portfolio Committee Oversight meetings
and visits
66 Annual Appraisal of Business Plans,
Shareholders Compact with the Board,
Quarterly and Monthly performance
reports and Annual reports
66 Minister meetings with the Chairperson
66 Director General meetings with the Chief
Executive
66 Regular meetings with the Regional Office

Communities

Awareness campaigns and activities
on environment, water and sanitation
related matters.

66 World Toilet Day Schools Competition
66 World Water day activities
66 Water month activities
66 Public awareness campaigns
66 Clean river campaigns
66 Mandela Day activities
66 Environment Impact Assessments for
Projects
66 Public participation with regards to
servitudes

Vendors and Suppliers Socio-Economic development
Broad-based Black Economic
Empowerment (‘BBBEE’) compliance
Corporate Social Investment
Improved Health and Safety standards
Government and
Regulators

Licensing and compliance
Debtors (Municipal) Payments
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66 Training of Service Providers
66 Suppliers evaluation and feedback sessions
66 Presentations on strategic products and
services
66 Site Visits
66 Catchment Management Agency Meetings
66 Regional Water Affairs Reconciliation
Steering Committee Meetings
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Stakeholder

Basis for engagement

Engagement methods

Media

Ensure transparency of information on
the Organisation and a create a platform
to engage with customers and a wider
range of audience

66 Media tours
66 Press conferences
66 Published media statements

Trade Unions

Union representatives are elected to
liaise with management on matters
affecting union members; and
Management of the various Bloem Water
businesses engage with the relevant
employee unions and industrial labour
Organizations to ensure that ongoing
constructive relationships with these
stakeholders are maintained.

66 Monthly meetings with Local labor
Forums.
66 Participation in shortlisting and interview
processes
66 Roadshows

Twinning Partners
(Northern Region
Water Board, Malawi;
Lepelle Water Board,
Magalies Water Board

Improved International and National
relations
Exchange and transfer skills programmes

66 Staff exchanges
66 Board visitations
66 Benchmarking on best practices
66 Memorandums of Understanding

Institutions of Higher
Learning and Training
Authorities (UFS;
CUT, Motheo TVET,
EWSETA)

Promote continuous learning of
employees

66 Memorandums of Understanding
66 Training of employees
66 Customized training programmes
66 Funding

Bloem Water engaging Kopanong Local Municipality
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World Toilet Day 19 November 2018
World Toilet Day is an international day observed annually on 19 November. A day of action aims to break
the taboo around toilets and draw attention to the global sanitation problems. World Toilet Day was created
to raise global awareness of the daily struggle for proper sanitation that a staggering 2.5 billion people.
This day brings together different groups, such as media, the private sector, development organizations
and civil society in a global movement to advocate for a right to safe toilets. Since its inception in 2001,
World Toilet Day has become an important platform to demand action from governments and to reach out
to wider audiences by showing that toilets can be fun as well as vital to life.
Bloem Water celebrated the day with various stakeholders including schools, the event was about
encouraging learners and educators as well as the community to practice health and hygiene and awarding
schools for their participation in Deep Toilet Cleaning program that is regarded as Social responsibility
program within Bloem Water. There were two categories of rewards namely: Pit latrine and waterborne.
The winners were:
POSITION

PIT LATRINE

WATERBORNE

One (1)

Ramahutse Primary

Namanyane Intermediate

Two (2)

Rooibult Primary

Eereskuld Primary

Three (3)

Mmafane Primary

Thubisi Primary

While other schools got certificates of participation namely: T M Setiloane High, Poonyane Primary, Mokae
Primary and Setlogelo Primary Schools, the top three winners of each category received trophies, certificates
and prizes of cleaning materials per position and one (1) got away with R5000, position (two) 2 with R3000
and last position (three) 3 with R 2000. The event was overall success and the learners and educators were
encouraged to continuously maintain the facilities in good hygienic conditions.

Schools competing
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All Winners of the day

Position one winners in Pit latrine and Waterborne, Namanyane
Intermediate and Mmafane Primary Schools

World Rivers Day
World Rivers Day is an annual event usually celebrated globally in September. The purpose is to take
care of environment through maintaining ecosystems and teaching the Nations on environmental issues.
In Bloem Water the event was to create an awareness amongst the Bloem Water employees, public and
other stakeholders. During the year under review, the theme was” Beat Plastic Pollution”, and Bloem Water
educated and created awareness on river health, water pollution and a multitude of threats faced by the
river systems in the region. In recent years it has become evident that a social and behavioural change is
needed with regards to water conservation and water pollution.
The stakeholders included Bloem Water Young professionals (BWYP), Department of Water and Sanitation
(DWS), Mantsopa Local Municipality (LM), Evergreen Environmental Project, South African Revenue Services
(SARS), Home Affairs, South African National Defence Force (SANDF), Department of Health (DoH) and
Thabo Mofutsanyana District Municipality.
Bloem Water has made a commitment that River health should not be a once off activities, but rather be
promoted to a higher level where continuous activities are undertaken to keep water resources clean. This
has resulted in establishment of Multi stakeholder River Health program, that was launched in June.

The attendees at World rivers day
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Employees working hard at cleaning of Caledon River near Maseru border gate

Water Month Celebration March 2019
Bloem Water partnered with several stakeholders in water preservation awareness which included
Department of Water and Sanitation (DWS), Coca Cola Beverages South Africa (CCBSA), Department of
Small Business, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (Destea), Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries, Eskom,
South African Police Services (SAPS), Forever Resort, OK mini store and Kopanong Local Municipality. This
year’s theme was “leaving no one behind, water for all” hence a partnership that made a huge impact.
This Public Awareness Campaign took place at Dewetsdorp Nkgodise Primary and Metsimaphodi Secondary
Schools, where learners were given information on National Water week, programs and water projects
available at DWS and Bloem Water as well as career guidance. This was followed by massive War on Leaks
campaign at Gariep, Hydro Park township where all the partners joined hands and physically fixed the
leaking taps and toilets and on the last day it was community meeting.

Metsimaphodi & Nkgodise Schools Awareness campaign, Dewetsdorp
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Gariep Community awareness

Media engagement at Coca Cola

Twinning Partnerships
Bloem Water has established twinning partnerships with water utilities locally and internationally to share
knowledge, experiences and for bench marking in water sector. During the year under review, the Entity
continued with twinning partnership with Northern Region Water Board in Malawi, Lepelle Northern
Region Water Board in Limpopo and pursued prospective partners: WASCO, Botswana Water Corporation
and Eswatini.

Malawi delegation visiting Bloem Water

Northern Region Water Board (Malawi)
The twinning agreement with Northern Region Water Board spans two (2) decades, started in 1998
through the Fredskorpset Exchange Programme. The purpose of the twinning agreement is to increase the
capacity of both Institutions to develop and implement innovative and effective strategies for delivery and
management of water supply services. This is done through sharing of knowledge and skills in various areas
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of interest to both institutions. The agreement also focuses on short term staff exchange visits between the
Water Boards as well as strategic visits at Executive and Board levels.
During this financial year there were four (4) staff exchanges in key technical areas and two strategic
engagements for the Board and Executive Management to solve water challenges facing both Water Boards
by documenting and sharing successes and lessons learned in the implementation of the partnership. One
of the key decisions of these engagements, is for Bloem Water to assist with the Hydro Power, in Northern
Region Water Board where a technical team will be established to conduct an assessment in NRWB for the
project. This is a very important partnership as it promotes relationships within SADC Region.

Members of the Boards of Bloem Water and NRWB (Malawi), delegates visiting Xhariep Dam

Lepelle Northern Region Water Board
The latest Twinning Agreement with Lepelle Northern Region Water was signed in July 2016 for the
period ending August 2019. The purpose was to enable benchmarking and sharing of experience as
well as expertise in related fields including technical, human resources, risk management, technology
and information. There were no major activities between the two (2) entities due to financial constraints,
however, benchmarking and sharing of information continued during the financial year under review.
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15. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit committee hereby presents the report for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 in accordance
with Section 76(4)(d) and 77 of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13 as well
as King IV report on Corporate Governance.
The Committee is an essential part of the governance framework to which the Board has delegated the
following key functions:
66 Oversight of the financial reporting process and risks;
66 Managing the relationship with the external auditor;
66 Overseeing governance of risk;
66 Sought assurance on the effectiveness of systems of internal controls; and
66 The monitoring and evaluation of compliance to laws and regulations.
The Audit Committee reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit
Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its
responsibilities as contained therein.
The Entity has changed its accounting reporting framework from SA GAAP to GRAP. We have reviewed
changes in accounting policies and practices.

COMPOSITION
The Committee consists of Non-Executive Directors who have sufficient skills and knowledge to deliver
on the set responsibilities of the Committee. The meetings of the Committee for the financial year under
review are detailed in table Table 5 page 64

STATUTORY DUTIES
As part of the execution of its statutory duties the Audit Committee made the following submissions to
the Board:
66 Written assessment on the effectiveness of the internal financial controls, and risk
management;
66 Recommended the Financial Statements for submission to the office of the Auditor
General; and
66 Recommended the Annual Financial Statements for approval by the Board.

DELEGATED DUTIES
Considered strategic risks and their impact on achieving the Entity’s strategy and assessed the adequacy
of controls and the combined assurance delivered over the identified risks.
The following areas have been appropriately addressed by the Entity:
66 Fraud risk relating to financial reporting;
66 Financial reporting risks;
66 Internal financial controls;
66 IT risks pertaining to financial reporting and business continuity management; and
66 Risk pertaining to Supply Chain Management, Fleet Management and Security
Management.
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THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
Monitored the effectiveness of the control environment through the review of reports from internal audit,
management and the external auditor, and ensured the quality of financial report through the review of the
financial statements submitted to the committee meetings, thus satisfied that significant internal financial
controls are adequate and effective.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE
During the year, the Committee continued to monitor management’s compliance with all applicable legal,
regulatory and contractual obligations as follow:
66 Evaluated the independence, effectiveness and performance of Internal Audit,
66 Satisfied itself that Internal Audit has had the necessary resources, capabilities and
experience to enable it to discharge its functions;
66 Approved the Internal Audit annual plan; and
66 Combined assurance between External and Internal Audit was encouraged throughout the
reporting year.

MANAGEMENT QUARTELY REPORT
Assessed the liquidity of the Entity using the latest forecast projection of future cash flows and planned
capital project expenditure. Quarterly reports relating to budgeting, forecasting, and funding were reviewed
prior being submitted to the Executive Authority

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Reviewed in detail the main judgements and assumptions made by management, relevant sensitivity
analysis performed, and conclusions drawn from the available financial reporting information and evidence.
Where appropriate, the committee sought input and views from the external auditor, internal auditors and
encouraged rigorous challenge on controls, accounting and disclosure matters.
Financial statements were recommended to the Board for approval.

AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the external auditors on the Annual Financial
Statements and is of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements read together with the
report of the Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA) be recommended to the Board for approval.

ANNUAL REPORTING
Considered the draft Annual Report and recommended Board for approval.

MS. NTIKILE SANDLANA
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Bloem Water
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PART D:

HUMAN RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT

1. INTRODUCTION

Engagement and growth of
employees

The primary function of the Human Resources
Department is to support the Entity in achieving
its strategic objectives through attracting
and retaining competent staff, observing fair
and equitable human resources practices and
continuous training in response to a constantly
changing working world. Staff complement
of Bloem Water is currently four hundred and
four (404), with younger people comprising the
majority of staff.

Human Resource management remains critical
in building a high performing workplace as
employees will always perform at their best when
the environment is conducive to growth. The
Entity seeks to achieve and improve employee
engagement throughout the employee life cycle,
from recruiting and onboarding through growth
and retention.

Staff Orientation

Annually the Entity conducts a climate survey
to measure staff engagement/satisfaction.
The 2018/19 climate survey measured staff
engagement at 68%.  Having analysed the results,
it became apparent that the organizational
culture should be strengthened to build a resilient
organization embracing change, growth and
flexibility. Fostering employee engagement and
motivation requires working with all areas of the
Organisation.

The induction process was reviewed extensively during
the year and now allows for respective Executives to
present key Departmental issues. The Chief Executive
plays a vital part in setting the tone, introducing the
Board and emphasizing the strategic objectives during
the induction process. It was resolved to develop
a HR Handbook containing important policies and
procedures to be handed out to employees during
orientation.

Employees Orientation
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Attraction and retention

66 empowering employees to shape their
jobs: during the year under review, job
description training and reviews were
undertaken

Bloem Water remains an employer of choice in the
region having established a conducive working
environment, fair and equitable practices. This
is supported by the low staff turnover and the
market response to recruitment. Staff turnover for
the year measured as low as 3.28%.    The Entity
maintains a good balance between experienced
staff, nurturing a particular culture and new
entrants offering energy and innovation.  

66 an active Local Labour Forum
66 promoting of training and continued
development of technical and people
management skills
66 a performance management system that
motivates and enhance opportunities for
professional development

Bloem Water subscribes to progressive people
management practices such as:

66 improved corporate communications
to reinforce purpose and employee
engagement

66 The fair treatment of employees and
support for well-being by means of
wellness activities and processes

Capacity building
Capacity Building remains high on the Board’s
agenda with continued training, seminars and
topical workshops supporting capacity building
at all levels. The Entity prioritize technical capacity
building as the development of an Organization’s

core skills & capabilities. Bloem Water annually
compiles and submits a Workplace Skills Plan to
EWSETA, having identified the skills needs of the
Entity and ensuring effective, relevant training
and development initiatives. In response to the

Capacity building of the employees
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The Entity further continued to provide employees
with Financial Support to further their studies in
disciplines related to the core and support business
for improved performance to meet the current
and future skills needs. For the period under
review, sixty-five per cent (65%) of employees
were trained on various learning interventions
that respond directly to operational requirements.

identified skills, the Organization was able to
compile an Annual Training plan which outlines
the entity plans to close the skills gaps.
Bloem Water has embarked on providing skills
development programmes co-funded with
EWSETA through its incentive-based mandatory
grants, targeting employed learners. The learning
interventions provided involved Learnerships,
Artisan Development programmes and Bursaries.
These includes the following among other training
implemented;

In partnership with Higher Education Institutions,
the Entity continually offers experiential
training through Work Integrated Learning
(WIL) programmes to students from the Central
University of Technology (18.2 external learners).
Bloem Water facilitates completion of formal
qualifications through mentoring by experienced
and senior employees. Twenty (20) students are
currently placed on various regional plants in
continuing to afford the learners with the required
work experience, related to Plant Operations.

66 Project Management
66 Renewal Energy Management
66 Engineering Studies (Instrument
Mechanisation)
66 Water & Wastewater Treatment Operation
66 Bricklaying/Carpentry/Plumbing &
Welding Skills programmes

Professional development
Continued professional development is important
for Bloem Water and employees are encouraged
to register with relevant professional bodies.
Risk practitioners, water care staff, engineers, the

wellness practitioner, managers and executives
attended suitable refresher training courses
and/or conferences in support of professional
development.

Year End Staff Feedback Session
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Structure, process, and systems
improvements

evaluate and improve the efforts of individuals
and teams.
Quarterly assessments create
opportunities for healthy dialogue and improved
feedback.

The Board is still to review the organizational
structure following the planned strategic
session. Bloem Water seeks to create value for
its shareholders, stakeholders and the society
through improved sustainability. Such approach
requires adapting to change and responding
in a sustainable manner to the challenges and
opportunities in our ever-changing operating
environment.
Bloem Water’s business continuity programme
begins to set the tone of integration, which is not
to be achieved overnight but it certainly remains
on the Entity’s agenda.
Systems improvement is technologically driven,
and the payroll system was upgraded to SAGE
People during the year to allow for improved
reporting functionalities. The Human Resource
Management modules will be introduced in the
next phase of the project which will further enhance
integrated and other reporting compliance
requirements.

Performance Award to Orange river Region

Performance management is well embedded and
regular workshops were held during the year in all
Regions to encourage the consistent interpretation
and application of the rating system.
At an enterprise level, all executives and senior
managers reviewed their strategic performance
contracts during the year for improved alignment.
The targets as agreed in the Shareholders Compact,
are contained in the strategic performance
contracts to promote collective accountability in
the Entity.

Workforce trends
The Entity continues to measure and report HR
indices such as overtime, staff turnover, tenure and
productivity ratios. A dashboard was developed
to reflect on key indicators at management and
Board committee meetings.

Employee wellness

Employee performance
management framework

Employee Wellness Programmes are known to
improve productivity and reduce health costs. The
unit continues to render support to employees
in terms of internal and external counselling
services and/or referrals. At an enterprise level,
focus workshops and information sessions are
conducted regularly as aligned with the health
calendar of events. A successful Mental Wellness
crazy walk and presentation was sponsored by a
local wellness institution during October month
(Mental Health month). A wellness day was
hosted during which voluntary Health screening
opportunities were presented for a number of
chronic diseases (Hypertension, Diabetes, HIV and
TB) in consultation with the Free State Department
of Health.

An Organizational performance level of 81% was
achieved for the 2018/19 year compared to 73%
in the previous financial year. This is despite the
performance rating being negatively impacted by
the non-payment challenges that affects several
financial ratios and the progress on infrastructure
capital investments.
Performance management is well embedded
and regular workshops are held in all regions
to promote the consistent interpretation and
application of the rating system.

Performance Management

Employees were engaged throughout the year
in different sporting codes as part of Psychophysical wellness. Since October month is Breast

Performance management is successfully applied
at all levels in the Entity and seeks to effectively
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Bloem Water football team participating in the Zone Six Water Utilities Easter Wellness Event

Policy development

Cancer Awareness month, it was observed by
covering the trees in all Regions with pink fabric
to remind employees of proactive screening. A
Domestic violence presentation by an Official
from Tshepong victim Centre, urged employees to
observe the 16 Days of Activism for No violence
against Women and Children. Sessions on AntiTobacco, Anti-Drug awareness and Men’s Health
were successfully presented and well attended by
employees.

Executive Management is the custodian of policy
development and reviews policies annually in
alignment with legislative changes or operational
dictates. Policy revisions were extensively
discussed during several consultative processes.
The Board is to review policies every three years
and a number of policies are subject to review in
the 2019/20 financial year.

A highlight on the wellness calendar was
hosting the annual SADC Inter Water Utilities
Wellness event represented by utilities from
Lesotho, ESwatini and Botswana. The event
resulted in a sensible benchmarking exercise to
establish baselines, define best practices, identify
improvement opportunities and create a strong
and healthy environment within the water sector.

Defined Benefit Pension Fund
The Statutory Valuation was performed in 2018
and submitted to the Financial Sector Conduct
Authority (FSCA). It can be reported that the fund
is currently fully funded, and the Board of Trustees
continue to manage the fund diligently. The
Trustees resolved to increase the level of Fidelity
Cover according to a formulate linked to fund
assets.

Employment Equity

During the year under review a King IV
implementation plan was developed to ensure
compliance with new default regulations to the
Pension Funds Act to be implemented from 1
March 2019. Trustee training was provided, subcommittee charters and protocols were reviewed.

The Board is proud of having established a
transformed Entity following the development of
an Employment Equity Plan. Specific targets are
pursued during recruitment processes in line with
the approved plan. There was a marginal increase
in female representation compared to employees
living with disabilities where a focused approach is
required to improve representivity. The on-going
recruitment in 2019/20 will seek to further improve
representivity in the mentioned areas.
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Amanzi Bargaining Council

Not all positions on the approved organizational
structure is filled given efforts to balance
employment cost with the current challenges of
non-payment.

Bloem Water played an active role in all Amanzi
Bargaining Council (ABC) activities. As in the
previous year, the Council managed to successfully
conclude a collective wage agreement for the
2019/20 financial year.  The Task Team continues
their activities towards harmonizing of the
conditions of employment in the Sector.

Organisational Performance –
International Awards
Bloem Water was awarded a Best Enterprise by
the UK Quality Organisation during a ceremony
in Barcelona. The Entity has been selected as
having demonstrated competency, innovative and
reliability in water sector. Efforts to endorse and
improve achievement in quality management was
also recognised.

Workforce planning and
Recruitment
Recruiting continued to suitably fill prioritized
vacancies, both technical and administrative
positions.   Several positions were filled during
the year with the focus of strengthening the
cores business units of the Entity whilst achieving
compliance to working hours and reducing
overtime.

Bloem Water recognised as the Best Enterprise
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2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT
STATISTICS
The tables below reflect on key Human Resource indicators.
Table 1 Personnel Cost by programme/ activity/ objective
Programme/
activity/objective

Total
Expenditure
for the entity
(R’000)

Personnel
exp. as a %
of total exp.
(R’000)

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Average
personnel cost
per employee
(R’000)

No. of
employees

Top Management

R18 872 149.83

2.40

7

R2 696 021.40

Senior
Management

R29 817 646.44

3.79

20

R1 490 882.32

Professional
qualified

R24 908 001.19

3.17

19

R1 310 947.43

Skilled

R58 087 990.61

7.39

88

R660 090.80

R100 854 907.86

12.83

204

R494 386.80

R14 179 982.95

1.80

66

R214 848.23

R0.00

0.00

0

R0.00

R246 720 678.88

31.40

404

R6 867 176.99

Semi-Skilled

R785 791 105.00

Unskilled
Temporary
TOTAL

Table 2 Personnel cost by salary band
Level

% of personnel
exp. to total
personnel cost
(R’000)

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Average personnel
cost per employee
(R’000)

No. of employees

Top Management

R18 872 149.83

7.65

7

2 696 021.40

Senior Management

R29 817 646.44

12.09

20

R1 490 882.32

Professional qualified

R24 908 001.19

10.10

19

R1 310 947.43

Skilled

R58 087 990.61

23.54

88

R660 090.80

R100 854 907.86

40.88

204

R494 386.80

R14 179 982.95

5.75

66

R214 848.23

R0.00

0

0

R0.00

R246 720 678.88

100.00

404

R6 867 176.99

Semi-skilled
Unskilled
Temporary
TOTAL
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Table 3 Performance Rewards
Programme/ activity/
objective

Performance rewards

Personnel Expenditure
(R’000)

% of performance
rewards to total
personnel cost (R’000)

Top Management

R5 131 383.09

R18 872 149.83

Senior Management

R3 184 271.25

R29 817 646.44

10.68

Professional qualified

R1 781 508.85

R24 908 001.19

7.15

Skilled

R3 563 389.35

R58 087 990.61

6.13

Semi-skilled

R4 279 163.45

R100 854 907.86

4.24

Unskilled

R   668 692.79

R14 179 982.95

4.72

R18 608 408.79

R246 720 678.88

7.54

TOTAL

27.19

Table 4 Training Costs
Programme/
activity/
objective

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Training
Expenditure
as a % of
Personnel Cost.

Training
Expenditure
(R’000)

No. of
employees
trained

Avg
training cost
per employee

Management

R48 689 796.27

R1 121 197.00

2.30

45

R24 915.49

Administration

R65 771 889.39

R593 172.00

0.90

53

R11 191.92

Electrical

R10 192 588.86

R139 742.00

1.37

9

R15 526.89

Civil

R14 178 228.37

R621 875.00

4.39

30

R20 729.17

Water Treatment

R58 344 256.66

R196 080.00

0.34

113

R1735.22

Mechanical

R32 446 590.30

R69 159.00

0.21

13

R5 319.92

Security

R17 097 329.03

R0

0

0

0

R246 720 678.88

R2 741 225

9.51%

263

R10 422.91

TOTAL

Table 5 Employment and vacancies
Programme/
activity/objective
Top Management

2017/2018

Approved
Posts

2017/2018

No. of
Employees

2017/2018

Vacancies

2018/2019 2018/2019
Approved No. of
posts
Employees

% of
Vacancies vacancies
2018/2019

8

7

1

8

7

1

12.50

Senior Management

29

18

11

29

20

9

31.03

Professional qualified

13

6

7

21

19

2

9.52

Skilled

179

143

36

158

88

70

44.30

Semi-skilled

195

137

60

227

204

23

10.13

Unskilled

101

74

25

82

66

16

19.51

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

525

386

139

525

404

121

23.05

Temporary
Employees
TOTAL
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Vacancies were analysed and prioritised, and a phased approach was followed to suitably fill vacancies.
From January 2018 to June 2018 the key operational/compliance positions were recruited in Phase 1 whilst
remain identified vacancies were advertised in July 2018 for Phase 2 recruitment.    The vacancy in top
management (Executive: Internal Audit) and Senior Management vacancies were included in the July 2018
recruitment process which is currently unfolding.  

Employment changes
The table below reports on the appointments and terminations during the financial year. The figures are
however, distorted due to internal appointments in higher positions which are reflected as terminations
from a particular band and appointments in another band.
The actual terminations (employees leaving the employ of Bloem Water) is 13 employees of which 4
represents retirements, 6 resignations, 1 death, 1 ill-health retirement and 1 contract ended.
Table 6 Employment Changes
Salary Band
Top Management

Employment at
beginning of
period

Appointments

Employment at
end of the period
PAYROLL

Terminations

7

+1

-1

7

Senior Management

18

+5

-2

20

Professional qualified

6

+2

0

19

Skilled

143

+13

-3

88

Semi-skilled

137

+9

-4

204

74

+1

-2

66

1

0

-1

0

386

+31

-13

404

Unskilled
Temporary
Total

Table 7 Exit analysis
Reason

Number

% of total no. of staff leaving

Death

1

0.25

Resignation

6

1.53

Dismissal

0

0.00

Retirement

4

1.00

Ill health

1

0.25

Expiry of contract

1

0.25

Other

0

0.00

Total

13

3.28

Following exit interviews, the reasons for resignations are as follows: One employee started his own
business, another pursued a better career opportunity which could not be matched by Bloem Water. Two
employees resigned to be closer to their families and 2 employees are furthering their studies.
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Table 8 Employment Equity
MALE
Levels

African

Current

Coloured

Target

Current

Indian

Target

Current

White

Target

Current

Target

Top Management

2

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

Senior
Management

9

1

2

1

0

0

2

0

0

2

0

1

0

0

5

0

46

3

1

4

0

0

4

2

142

12

6

4

0

0

5

1

44

23

0

5

0

0

0

2

250

0

9

0

0

0

17

0

Professional
qualified
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL

FEMALE
Levels

African

Current

Coloured

Target

Current

Indian

Target

Current

White

Target

Current

Target

Top Management

3

1

0

1

0

0

1

0

Senior
Management

4

1

1

1

0

0

2

0

5

2

0

2

0

1

1

0

Skilled

32

7

2

2

1

0

2

2

Semi-skilled

45

13

2

4

0

1

4

2

Unskilled

22

14

0

5

0

1

0

2

111

38

5

15

1

3

10

6

Professional
qualified

TOTAL
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Bloem Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

General Information
Business address

2 Mzuzu Street
Pellissier
Bloemfontein
Free State
9301

Postal address

P.O. Box 30121
Bloemfontein
Free State
9322

Auditors

Auditor General of South Africa

Bankers

First National Bank of Southern Africa Limited

Country of incorporation and domicile

South Africa

Legal form of entity

Schedule 3B entity

Nature of business and principal activities

The supply of purified and un-purified water
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019
Note(s)

2019
R'000

2018
R'000

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Living assets
Employee benefit asset

3
4
5

988 892
438
-

908 956
437
1 034

989 330

910 427

18 129
114 963
436 627
-

13 364
196 745
228 118
72 384

569 719

510 611

1 559 049

1 421 038

114 375
814

151 409
-

115 189

151 409

41 208
739
76 008
79 775
-

44 634
89 595
85 806
2 738

197 730

222 773

312 919

374 182

Net Assets

1 246 130

1 046 856

Accumulated surplus
Capital replacement fund
Capital development fund
Insurance fund
Asset DWS reserve fund

1 069 935
87 351
70 217
18 627
-

873 013
87 351
70 217
16 275
-

Total Net Assets

1 246 130

1 046 856

Current Assets
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents
Infrastructure project receivable

6
7
8
9

Total Assets
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Interest bearing borrowings
Finance lease liability

10
11

Current Liabilities
Interest bearing borrowings
Finance lease liability
Payables from exchange transactions
VAT payable
Unspent conditional grants and receipts

10
11
12
13
14

Total Liabilities

ANNUAL
2018

106

REP ORT
2019

Bloem Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement of Financial Performance
Presented by nature

Note(s)

2019
R'000

2018
R'000

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Water sales
Other income
Finance income

15

Total revenue from exchange transactions

752 104
2 572
103 362

708 823
3 298
96 457

858 038

808 578

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies

16

98 786

102 688

Total revenue

17

956 824

911 266

18

(29 384)
(22 170)
(45 475)
(97 985)
(23 123)
(218 046)
(313 813)
80 515
(45 537)
(42 534)

(24 959)
(17 769)
(48 480)
(92 995)
(17 185)
(189 738)
(91)
(297 145)
(42 963)
(40 380)

(757 552)

(771 705)

Expenditure
Water abstraction cost
Chemicals
Depreciation
Energy cost
Repairs and maintenance
Employment cost
Bad debt written off
Reversal/(Impairment) of receivables
Operating expenses
Finance costs

19
20

21
22

Total expenditure
Surplus for the year

23
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-

-

Total changes

Balance at 30 June 2019

-

Surplus for the year
Transfer from / (to) the insurance fund
70 217

-

-

70 217

-

(43 579)

Total changes
-

-

(43 579)
-

Balance at 30 June 2018
Changes in net assets

70 217

Capital
development
fund
R'000

43 579

R'000

Asset DWS
reserve fund

Balance at 01 July 2017
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year
Transfer from / (to) the Asset DWS reserve fund
Transfer from / (to) the insurance fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Bloem Water

87 351

-

-

87 351

-

-

87 351

18 627

2 352

2 352

16 275

1 793

1 793

14 482

176 195

2 352

2 352

173 843

(41 786)

(43 579)
1 793

215 629

Capital
Insurance fund Total reserves
replacement
fund
R'000
R'000
R'000

1 069 935

196 920

199 272
(2 352)

873 015

181 347

139 561
43 579
(1 793)

691 668

R'000

Accumulated
surplus

1 246 130

199 272

199 272
-

1 046 858

139 561

139 561
-

907 297

R'000

Total net
assets
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Cash Flow Statement
Presented in the direct method

Note(s)

2019
R'000

2018
R'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Water sales
Other income
Finance income
Government grants

Payments
Employment costs
Suppliers
Finance costs

23

Net cash flows from operating activities

677 130
2 572
26 819
96 048

518 428
2 861
12 390
95 394

802 569

629 073

(215 354)
(237 526)
(42 534)

(187 437)
(143 580)
(40 380)

(495 414)

(371 397)

307 155

257 676

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Funds received on infrastructure project receivable

(132 123)
72 384

(121 472)
6
-

(59 739)

(121 466)

Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings
Increase in finance lease liability

(40 461)
1 553

(42 161)
-

Net cash flows from financing activities

(38 908)

(42 161)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

208 509
228 118

134 068

436 627

228 118

Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

8

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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Accounting Policies
1.

Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management
Act (Act 1 of 1999).
These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand (R) rounded
to the nearest thousand (R’000) except where otherwise indicated, which is the functional and presentation currency.
A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual financial
statements, are disclosed below.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note 32 First-time
adoption of Standards of GRAP.
1.1

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The new Companies Act, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) required a re-evaluation of the continued existence of statements of SA
GAAP. This resulted in a decision during March 2012 to withdraw statements of SA GAAP for financial years commencing on or
after 1 December 2012. The withdrawal of statements of SA GAAP has an impact on schedule 3B public entities (i.e. Bloem
Water) that are required to apply the SA GAAP reporting framework.
In the interim, the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) has approved that public entities that previously applied statements of SA
GAAP should continue to apply statements of SA GAAP as at 1 April 2012, including amendments to May 2011. Consequently,
Bloem Water applied SA GAAP as at 1 April 2012 to the annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018.
During July 2015 a directive was issued by the ASB. The Board’s deliberations on this matter gave way to three consultations
which resulted in the development of two Exposure Drafts on The Application of Standards of GRAP by Government Business
Enterprises (Schedule 3B and 3D) (ED 124), and The Selection of an Appropriate Reporting Framework by Public Entities (ED
130), issued for comment in May 2014 and February 2015 respectively.
The Directive is effective for financial years commencing on or after 1 April 2018 so as to provide entities sufficient time to prepare
for any change in reporting framework with earlier application permitted. Therefore the initial application is 1 April 2018, or earlier.
The Directive is applied subsequently where entities believe that a significant change has occurred that leads them to conclude
that they meet, or no longer meet, the criteria in the Directive. The Directive requires the conversion either to GRAP or IFRS based
on certain criteria.
A technical analysis and benchmarking with other Water Boards exercise were conducted based on Directive 12 application
and the following were concluded on
- Bloem Water is not a financial institution.
- Bloem Water does not have ordinary shares which are publicly traded.
- Bloem Water’s operations are not commercial in nature and currently an insignificant portion of the Entity’s funding is acquired
through government grants. This is likely to change in future when significant funding might be needed, and would be obtained
from Government.
From the assessment, it was recommended and approved that GRAP should be the preferred reporting framework for use by
the Entity.
In the transition to GRAP, there are new or revised Accounting Standards and Interpretations in issue. These GRAP standards
will be effective to Bloem Water from 1 July 2018 as this will be the first financial year for Bloem Water commencing on or after 1
April 2018.
Refer to note 32 for more detail on the first time adoption of GRAP.
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Accounting Policies
1.2

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the entity’s annual financial statements in conformity with Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP)
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates are revised.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
annual financial statements are set out below:
Pension and other post-employment benefits
Accounting for defined benefit plans may be complex because actuarial assumptions are required to measure the obligation and
the expense, with the possibility that actual results differ from the assumed results. These differences are known as actuarial gains
and losses. Defined benefit obligations are measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method (PUCM), according to which the
entity has to make a reliable estimate of the amount of benefits earned in return for services rendered in current and prior periods,
using actuarial techniques. In addition, in cases where defined benefit plans are funded, the entity has to estimate the fair value
of plan assets. As a result, the use of the PUCM involves a number of actuarial assumptions. These assumptions include
demographic assumptions such as mortality, turnover and retirement age and financial assumptions such as discount rates, salary
and benefit levels. Such assumptions are subject to judgements and may develop materially differently than expected and
therefore may result in significant impacts on defined benefit obligations. The net pension plan asset at 30 June 2019 is R0 (2018:
R1 033 736).
Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed in Note
5.
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables
The determination of the recoverability of the amount due from customers involves the identification of whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment. Bad debts are written off when identified, to the extent that it is feasible that impairment and
uncollectibility are determined individually for each item. In cases where that process is not feasible, a collective evaluation of
impairment is performed. As a consequence, the way individual and collective evaluations are carried out and the timing relating
to the identification of objective evidence of impairment require significant judgement and may materially affect the carrying amount
of receivables at the reporting date. Further details are disclosed in note 7.
Valuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment
In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash generating units, based on
expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future
operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.
Useful lives of depreciable assets
Depreciation is based on the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment. The estimation of useful lives of property, plant
and equipment is based on historical performance as well as expectations about future use and therefore require a significant
degree of judgement to be applied by management. The depreciation rates and residual values, if any, represent management’s
best estimates. Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets.
1.3

Property, plant and equipment

Land is carried at cost less accumulated impairment. Land is used for administrative purposes and is not depreciated.
Furniture and office equipment and vehicles and machinery are stated initially at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses in accordance with the provisions of GRAP 17 – Property, plant and equipment.
Plant equipment, roads, land, buildings and pipelines and reservoirs are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and the capitalisation of borrowing costs on
qualifying assets (refer to note 1.4).
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Accounting Policies
1.3

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Capital projects in progress are stated at cost which includes cost of material, direct labour and any directly attributable costs
incurred in bringing it to its present location and condition. Such costs are classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.
Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.
When part of an asset is being replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which it is incurred.
Depreciation is calculated on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets less its estimated residual value.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item

Depreciation method

Average useful life

Land
Buildings:
Plant equipment:
Furniture and office equipment:
Vehicles and machinery:
Roads:
Pipeline and reservoirs:

Not depreciated
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

Indefinite
40 - 60 Years
5 - 54 Years
2 - 50 Years
10 - 39 Years
40 - 60 Years
20 - 50 Years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of financial performance in the year the asset is
derecognised.
1.4

Finance costs (including borrowing costs)

Finance cost comprises interest payable on borrowings and is recognised using the effective interest rate method. Borrowing
costs which are not capitalised are recognised in profit and loss.
Borrowing costs attributable to the constitution of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of these assets over the
period of construction to the extent that the assets are financed by borrowings. The capitalisation rate applied is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings unless an asset is financed by a specific loan, in which case the
specific rate is used.
1.5

Living assets

A living resource is recognised as an asset if, and only if: it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated
with the asset will flow to the entity; and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
Game is measured at fair value less estimated cost to sell. The fair value of living assets is determined annually based on the fair
value of a living resource price at which the living resource could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction. Fair value specifically excludes an estimated price inflated or deflated by special terms or circumstances,
such as special considerations or concessions granted by anyone associated with the exchange. All changes in fair values are
recognised in the statement of financial performance for the period in which they arise.
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Accounting Policies
1.6

Employee benefits

Pension obligations
The policy of Bloem Water is to provide retirement benefits for all its employees. The fund represents a Defined Benefit Plan
administered by Verso Funds Administrator. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an
expense in the statement of financial performance as incurred.
The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit plan obligation less past service cost not
yet recognised and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. The value of any asset
is restricted to the sum of any past service cost not yet recognised and the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reduction in the future contributions to the plan. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plans is determined separately for each plan using the projected unit credit method.
As required by the Pension Fund Act 25 of 1956, a qualified actuary performs the valuation. The actuarial valuation was performed
by Peter Theunissen (Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa) on behalf of Independent Actuaries & Consultants (Pty)
Limited at reporting date.
Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are those that are paid within twelve months after the end of the period in which the services have
been rendered. Remuneration to employees is charged to the statement of financial performance. Provision is made for
accumulated leave, annual bonuses, and other short-term employee benefits.
Retirement benefit obligation
Bloem Water shall recognise the expected cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of compensated absences as follows:
(a) in the case of accumulating compensated absences, when the employees render service that increases their entitlement to
future compensated absences; and
(b) in the case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.
Bloem Water shall measure the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period.
Bloem Water shall recognise the expected cost of bonus payments when, and only when:
(a) the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events; and
(b) a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
A present obligation exists when, and only when, the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.
Actuarial gains and losses are immediately recognised in profit and loss.
1.7

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Obsolete,
redundant and slow-moving inventories are identified and written down to their estimated net realisable value. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost
necessary to make the sale.
The cost of water inventory comprises of all costs of water abstraction, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventory to its present location and condition.
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Accounting Policies
1.8

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.
A financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition at amortised cost, which is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction
(directly or through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or liability from an entity’s statement of financial position.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability (or group of financial
assets or liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but shall not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that
the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare
cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial
instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of
financial instruments).
A financial asset is:
•
cash;
•
a residual interest of another entity; or
•
a contractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable
to the entity.
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
•
deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
•
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed
of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:
•
the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
•
are held for trading.
Classification
The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial
position or in the notes thereto:
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Accounting Policies
1.8 Financial instruments (continued)
Class
Receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents
Infrastructure project receivable

Category
Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial
position or in the notes thereto:
Class
Interest bearing borrowings
Short-term interest bearing borrowings
Payables from exchange transactions

Category
Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the amortised cost method. All
financial assets are subject to an impairment review.
Fair value measurement considerations
The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the entity
establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the
transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal operating
considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same and discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the
instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as
little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and
is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the
valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument
(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.
The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on demand,
discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.
Short-term receivables and payables are not discounted where the initial credit period granted or received is consistent with
terms used in the public sector, either through established practices or legislation.
Reclassification
The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held.
Gains and losses
A gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through
the amortisation process.
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Accounting Policies
1.8

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets
The entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced directly (i.e. in the cases of other receivables and investments) or through the use of an allowance account
(i.e. in the case of consumer receivables). The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by adjusting an
allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
For amounts due to the entity, significant financial difficulties of the receivable, probability that the receivable will enter bankruptcy
and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.
Derecognition
Financial assets
The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
The entity derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are
settled or waived.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received is recognised in surplus or deficit.
Financial liabilities
The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is extinguished
— i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.
Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in surplus
or deficit.
Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense
in surplus or deficit.
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when
the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
1.9

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and cash on hand. Short term
investments with an original maturity of three months are classified as short-term investments. For the purposes of the statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term investments.
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Accounting Policies
1.10 Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception
date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys
a right to use the asset.
Finance leases - lessee
Leases where the entity assumes substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership, are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised as property, plant and equipment at the lower of fair value or the present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception of the lease with an equivalent amount being stated as a finance lease liability. The capitalised amount
is depreciated over the asset’s useful life. Lease payments are allocated between capital repayments and finance expenses using
the effective interest rate method.
Operating leases - lessee
Leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the entity, are classified as operating
leases. Operating leases are charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
1.11 Provisions and contingencies
A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when Bloem Water has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are not made for future operating
losses. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to a passage of
time is recognised as finance costs.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision shall be the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The discount rate (or rates) shall be a pre-tax rate (or rates) that reflect(s) current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The discount rate(s) shall not reflect risks for
which future cash flow estimates have been adjusted. Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is
expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset.
The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. The timing and amount of the outflow
may still be uncertain.
If Bloem Water has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured as
a provision.
A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
(a) has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring identifying at least:
(i) the business or part of a business concerned;
(ii) the principal locations affected;
(iii) the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for terminating their services;
(iv) the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
(v) when the plan will be implemented; and
(b) has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or
announcing its main features to those affected by it.
1.12 Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or a present
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because: (i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; or (ii) the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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1.13 Tax
Value added tax (VAT)
The entity is registered with the South African Revenue Services (SARS) for VAT on the payments/cash basis, in accordance with
Section 15(2) of the VAT Act (Act No. 89 of 1991) and accounts for VAT on this basis. The entity is liable to account for VAT at
the standard rate of 15% after 1 April 2018 (14% prior to 1 April 2018) in terms of section 7 (1) (a) of the VAT Act in respect of the
supply of goods or services, except where the supplies are specifically zero-rated in terms of section 11, exempted in terms of
section 12 of the VAT Act or are scoped out for VAT purposes. The entity accounts for VAT on a monthly basis.
Income tax
No provision is made for taxation since Bloem Water is exempt from tax in terms of section 10(1)(cA) of the Income Tax Act of
South Africa.
1.14 Reserve Funds
Capital replacement fund
Amounts as determined by the Board are transferred to a separate fund to be utilised for the replacement of capital assets. Amounts
equal to such transfers are retained and can be utilised at the discretion of the Board.
Capital development fund
Amounts as determined by the Board are transferred from available funds to a separate fund to be utilised at the discretion of
the Board. The fund is utilised to finance development of capital infrastructures.
Insurance fund
At the discretion of the Board, an amount equal to the estimated external insurance premium may be transferred to the insurance
fund. This fund will be utilised for the replacement of certain assets. The funds will be utilised at the discretion of the board.
Asset DWS reserve fund
An amount equal to the value of property, plant and equipment in the Thaba ‘Nchu region transferred from the Department of
Water and Sanitation to Bloem Water was transferred to this fund. The amount constitutes a non-distributable reserve. The Board
decided that the fund is no longer applicable and was therefore transferred to Accumulated Profit during the 2018 financial year.
1.15 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
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1.16 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

the entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the
transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a
transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and

the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a straight
line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of completion.
When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act
is executed.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion
is determined by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the total estimated costs of the transaction.
Finance income
Finance income comprises interest receivable on trade receivables and finance income from investments and cash and cash
equivalents. Finance income is recognised as it accrues in profit and loss, using the effective interest rate method.
1.17 Other income
Other income comprises of income that does not arise in the course of ordinary activities of Bloem Water. These other income
items, inter alia, include profit on disposal of assets, employee rent and cost recoupments, implementation agent income,
insurance proceeds, garnishees income, skills development grants, etc.
Implementation agent income
Included in other income is implementation agent fees received by Bloem Water for the implementation of infrastructure projects
on behalf of other entities and the relating contract costs are recognised as soon as the outcome of the transaction can be reliably
measured.
The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
(a) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
(b) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
(c) The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and
(d) The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.
1.18 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which represents
an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
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1.18 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)
Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in
the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned
to the transferor.
Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can exclude
or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange.
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either
receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity
without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used, but
do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as
specified.
Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a transferred
asset by entities external to the reporting entity.
Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.
Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.
As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue
equal to that reduction.
Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where
a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at
the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently
reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as
revenue.
1.19 Expenses
Recognition
Expenses are recognised in profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or as incurred.
1.20 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is defined as expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had
reasonable care been exercised.
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1.20 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure (continued)
Where a transaction, event or condition was undertaken without value or substance and which did not yield any desired results or
outcome and careful application, attentiveness and caution was applied to ensure that the probability of a transaction, event or
condition not being achieved as planned is being managed to an acceptable level, such transaction, event or condition is
recognized as fruitless and wasteful expenditure.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. Detailed
disclosure has been made in the notes to the financial statements as required by PFMA.
1.21 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including (a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.
National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires the
following (effective from 1 April 2008):
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end and/or
before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an
instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being awaited
at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of updating the
note to the financial statements.
Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the National
Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular
expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must
thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or
accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial
statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been
condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant program/expenditure
item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.
1.22 Related parties
A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control. Bloem Water is a 100%
controlled entity of the Government of South Arica as represented by the Department of Water and Sanitation. As a Schedule
3B Enterprise in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, Bloem Water recognises those government departments, state
owned entities and other public entities that are within the national sphere of government as related parties. Key management is
defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity.
Bloem Water considers the key management personnel to be the board members and executives as detailed in the related party
note. Close family members of key management personnel are considered to be those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by key management individuals or other parties related to the entity. Transactions and balances with
the related parties as defined by Bloem Water that occurred during the financial period are disclosed as related party
transactions or balances.
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1.23 Commitments
Items are classified as commitments where Bloem Water commits itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of resources. With tenders, a commitment exists when the award has been formally communicated to the service
provider that won the tender since a legitimate expectation of appointment has been created at year end. It also includes
contracts that are entered into before the reporting date, but goods and services have not yet been received. Approved and
contracted relates to approved projects for which contracts have been enter into. Approve, not yet contracted relates to
approved projects for which appointments have been made but the contracts have not been finalized.
1.24 Events after reporting date
Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date
and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date. These are adjusting events after the reporting
date.
- those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date. These are non-adjusting events after the reporting
date that are disclosed in the annual financial statements accordingly.
1.25 Comparatives
Except when a Standard of GRAP permits or requires otherwise, comparative information are presented in respect of the
preceding period for all amounts reported in the financial statements. Comparative information are included for narrative and
descriptive information when it is relevant to an understanding of the current period’s financial statements.

1.26 Going concern
In preparing the Financial Statements the Board assess whether there are material uncertainties related to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. There is no intention to
liquidate the entity or to cease operating and the Board has reason to believe based on actuals, forecast business plans,
strategies and risk mitigations that it will have adequate resources to continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future.
Financials have therefore been prepared on the going concern basis.
2.

New standards and interpretations

2.1

Standards and Interpretations early adopted

The entity has chosen to early adopt the following standards and interpretations:
GRAP 110 (as amended 2016): Living and Non-Living Resources
Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Living and Non-living Resources resulted from editorial changes to the original text
and inconsistencies in measurement requirements in GRAP 23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP in relation to the
treatment of transaction costs. Other changes resulted from changes made to IPSAS 17 on Property, Plant and Equipment
(IPSAS 17) as a result of the IPSASB’s Improvements to IPSASs 2014 issued in January 2015 and Improvements to IPSASs
2015 issued in March 2016.
The most significant changes to the Standard are:
- General improvements: To clarify the treatment of transaction costs and other costs incurred on assets acquired in nonexchange transactions to be in line with the principle in GRAP 23; and to clarify the measurement principle when assets may
be acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets
- IPSASB amendments: To clarify the revaluation methodology of the carrying amount and accumulated depreciation when a
living resource is revalued; To clarify acceptable methods of depreciating assets; and to define a bearer plant and include
bearer plants within the scope of GRAP 17 or GRAP 110, while the produce growing on bearer plants will remain within the
scope of GRAP 27.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2020.
The entity has adopted the standard in the current year.
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2.

New standards and interpretations (continued)

GRAP 20: Related parties
The objective of this standard is to ensure that a reporting entity’s financial statements contain the disclosures necessary to
draw attention to the possibility that its financial position and surplus or deficit may have been affected by the existence of
related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties.
An entity that prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting (in this standard referred to
as the reporting entity) shall apply this standard in:
(a) identifying related party relationships and transactions;
(b) identifying outstanding balances, including commitments, between an entity and its related parties;
(c) identifying the circumstances in which disclosure of the items in (a) and (b) is required; and
(d) determining the disclosures to be made about those items.
This standard requires disclosure of related party relationships, transactions and outstanding balances, including
commitments, of the reporting entity.
Disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, including commitments, and relationships with related parties
may affect users’ assessments of the financial position and performance of the reporting entity and its ability to deliver agreed
services, including assessments of the risks and opportunities facing the entity. This disclosure also ensures that the reporting
entity is transparent about its dealings with related parties.
The standard states that a related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or
exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.
As a minimum, the following are regarded as related parties of the reporting entity:
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the reporting entity if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity;
(iii) is a member of the management of the entity or its controlling entity.
(b) An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply:
(i) the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that each controlling entity, controlled entity
and fellow controlled entity is related to the others);
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of an
economic entity of which the other entity is a member);
(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the entity or an entity related
to the entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are related to the entity;
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over that entity or is a member of the management of that
entity (or its controlling entity).
The standard furthermore states that related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
reporting entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.
The standard elaborates on the definitions and identification of:
- Close member of the family of a person;
- Management;
- Related parties;
- Remuneration; and
- Significant influence
The standard sets out the requirements, inter alia, for the disclosure of:
- Control;
- Related party transactions; and
- Remuneration of management
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2019.
The entity has adopted the standard in the current year.
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2.

New standards and interpretations (continued)

GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals and Agents
The objective of this Standard is to outline principles to be used by an entity to assess whether it is party to a principal- agent
arrangement, and whether it is a principal or an agent in undertaking transactions in terms of such an arrangement. The
Standard does not introduce new recognition or measurement requirements for revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities
that result from principal agent arrangements. The Standard does however provide guidance on whether revenue, expenses,
assets and/or liabilities should be recognised by an agent or a principal, as well as prescribe what information should be
disclosed when an entity is a principal or an agent.
It furthermore covers Definitions, identifying whether an entity is a principal or agent, Accounting by a principal or agent,
Presentation, Disclosure, Transitional provisions and Effective date.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2019.
The entity has adopted the standard in the current year.

GRAP 12 (as amended 2016): Inventories
Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Inventories resulted from inconsistencies in measurement requirements in GRAP
23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP in relation to the treatment of transaction costs. Other changes resulted from
changes made to IPSAS 12 on Inventories (IPSAS 12) as a result of the IPSASB’s Improvements to IPSASs 2015 issued in
March 2016.
The most significant changes to the Standard are:
- General improvements: To clarify the treatment of transaction costs and other costs incurred on assets acquired in nonexchange transactions to be in line with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragraph .12)
- IPSASB amendments: To align terminology in GRAP 12 with that in IPSAS 12. The term “ammunition” in IPSAS 12 was
replaced with the term “military inventories” and provides a description of what it comprises in accordance with
Government Finance Statistics terminology
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018.
The entity has adopted the standard in the current year.
GRAP 17 (as amended 2016): Property, Plant and Equipment
Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Property, Plant and Equipment resulted from editorial changes to the original text
and inconsistencies in measurement requirements in GRAP 23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP in relation to the
treatment of transaction costs. Other changes resulted from changes made to IPSAS 17 on Property, Plant and Equipment
(IPSAS 17) as a result of the IPSASB’s Improvements to IPSASs 2014 issued in January 2015 and Improvements to IPSASs
2015 issued in March 2016.
The most significant changes to the Standard are:
- General improvements: To clarify the treatment of transaction costs and other costs incurred on assets acquired in
nonexchange transactions to be in line with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragraph .12); and To clarify the measurement principle
when assets may be acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination of monetary and nonmonetary
assets.
- IPSASB amendments: To clarify the revaluation methodology of the carrying amount and accumulated depreciation when
an item of property, plant, and equipment is revalued; To clarify acceptable methods of depreciating assets; To align
terminology in GRAP 17 with that in IPSAS 17. The term “specialist military equipment” in IPSAS 17 was replaced with the
term “weapon systems” and provides a description of what it comprises in accordance with Government Finance Statistics
terminology; and to define a bearer plant and include bearer plants within the scope of GRAP 17, while the produce growing
on bearer plants will remain within the scope of GRAP 27.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018.
The entity has adopted the standard in the current year.
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2.

New standards and interpretations (continued)

GRAP 21 (as amended 2016): Impairment of non-cash-generating assets
Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Impairment of Non-cash Generating Assets resulted from changes made to IPSAS
21 on Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets (IPSAS 21) as a result of the IPSASB’s Impairment of Revalued Assets
issued in March 2016.
The most significant changes to the Standard are:
- IPSASB amendments: To update the Basis of conclusions and Comparison with IPSASs to reflect the IPSASB’s recent
decision on the impairment of revalued assets.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018.
The entity has adopted the standard in the current year.
GRAP 26 (as amended 2016): Impairment of cash-generating assets
Amendments Changes to the Standard of GRAP on Impairment of Cash Generating Assets resulted from changes made to
IPSAS 26 on Impairment of Cash-Generating Assets (IPSAS 26) as a result of the IPSASB’s Impairment of Revalued Assets
issued in March 2016.
The most significant changes to the Standard are:
- IPSASB amendments: To update the Basis of conclusions and Comparison with IPSASs to reflect the IPSASB’s recent
decision on the impairment of revalued assets.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018.
The entity has adopted the standard in the current year.

2.2

Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for
the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018 or later periods:
GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables
The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe accounting requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of statutory receivables.
It furthermore covers: Definitions, recognition, derecognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure, transitional
provisions, as well as the effective date.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2019.
The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2020 financial statements.
The standard will not have a material impact on the entity's financial statements.
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2.

New standards and interpretations (continued)

GRAP 18: Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Recognition and Derecognition of Land
This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP applies to the initial recognition and derecognition of land in an entity’s
financial statements. It also considers joint control of land by more than one entity.
When an entity concludes that it controls the land after applying the principles in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP,
it applies the applicable Standard of GRAP, i.e. the Standard of GRAP on Inventories, Investment Property (GRAP 16),
Property, Plant and Equipment (GRAP 17) or Heritage Assets. As this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP does not apply
to the classification, initial and subsequent measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements of land, the entity applies
the applicable Standard of GRAP to account for the land once control of the land has been determined. An entity also applies
the applicable Standards of GRAP to the derecognition of land when it concludes that it does not control the land after applying
the principles in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP.
In accordance with the principles in the Standards of GRAP, buildings and other structures on the land are accounted for
separately. These assets are accounted for separately as the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the
land differs from those included in buildings and other structures. The recognition and derecognition of buildings and other
structures are not addressed in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP.
The effective date of the interpretation is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2019.
The entity expects to adopt the interpretation for the first time in the 2020 financial statements.
It is unlikely that the interpretation will have a material impact on the entity's financial statements.
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2.

New standards and interpretations (continued)

2.3

Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant

The following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 July 2018 or later periods but are not relevant to its operations:
GRAP 7 (as revised 2010): Investments in Associates
This standard is not applicable to Bloem Water.
GRAP 18 (as amended 2016): Segment Reporting
This standard is not applicable to Bloem Water.
GRAP 31 (as amended 2016): Intangible Assets
This standard is not applicable to Bloem Water.
GRAP 32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor
This standard is not applicable to Bloem Water.
GRAP 106 (as amended 2016): Transfers of functions between entities not under common control
This standard is not applicable to Bloem Water.
GRAP 17: Service Concession Arrangements where a Grantor Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an
Asset
This standard is not applicable to Bloem Water.
GRAP 19: Liabilities to Pay Levies
This standard is not applicable to Bloem Water.
GRAP 16 (as amended 2016): Investment Property
This standard is not applicable to Bloem Water.
GRAP 27 (as amended 2016): Agriculture
This standard is not applicable to Bloem Water.
GRAP 103 (as amended 2016): Heritage Assets
This standard is not applicable to Bloem Water.
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*Immaterial land as per servitude register brought into PPE in 2018/2019

Land
Buildings
Plant equipment
Furniture & office equipment
Vehicles & machinery
Roads
Pipelines & reservoirs
Finance lease assets
Work in process – Assets under construction

23*
1 037
686
3 049
247
2 208
118 371
125 622

908 956

Additions

(913 110)

(80 120)
(61 588)
(15 746)
(23 185)
(1 311)
(730 424)
(736)
-

Opening
balance
856
211 012
33 874
7 874
23 996
2 470
351 245
277 629

1 902 003

Total

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019

2019
Cost Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment
879
284 424
93 816
24 340
44 409
3 698
1 157 173
2 208
291 056

Property, plant and equipment

Land
Buildings
Plant equipment
Furniture & office equipment
Vehicles & machinery
Roads
Pipelines & reservoirs
Finance lease assets
Work in process – Assets under construction

3.

Figures in Rand thousand

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Bloem Water

1 777 570

856
282 937
93 178
22 433
44 161
3 698
1 052 678
277 629

(868 614)

(71 925)
(59 304)
(14 559)
(20 165)
(1 228)
(701 433)
-

Cost Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

(210)

-

(45 475)

Impairment Transfer from Depreciation
WIP
450
(8 196)
(9)
(2 320)
(201)
(2 130)
(3 020)
(83)
104 495
(28 990)
(736)
(104 945)
-

988 892

879
204 304
32 228
8 594
21 224
2 387
426 749
1 472
291 056

Carrying
value

2018

988 893

879
204 303
32 231
8 592
21 223
2 387
426 750
1 472
291 056

Total

908 956

856
211 012
33 874
7 874
23 996
2 470
351 245
277 629

Carrying
value
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Opening
balance
856
212 217
37 395
8 497
26 814
2 525
376 083
190 063
854 450
2 124
122
1 254
459
1 694
97 517
103 170

Additions

Borrowing costs on general borrowings are capitalised at an average rate of 9,48% (2018: 9,63%) on qualifying assets. No
specific borrowings existed at year end.

Borrowing costs capitalised in this period
Property, plant and equipment

Borrowing costs capitalised

There are no restrictions on any of the assets.

Restrictions

Land
Buildings
Plant equipment
Furniture & office equipment
Vehicles & machinery
Roads
Pipelines & reservoirs
Work in process – Assets under construction

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – 2018

3.

Figures in Rand thousand

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Bloem Water

(45)
(139)
(184)

Disposals

Transfer
from WIP
8 112
1 839
(9 951)
-

2018
R‘000
3 793

R‘000
2 668

856
211 012
33 874
7 874
23 996
2 470
351 245
277 629
908 956

Total

2019

(11 441)
(3 643)
(1 832)
(3 138)
(55)
(28 371)
(48 480)

Depreciation
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Changes have been made prospectively in accordance with GRAP 3.

Bloem Water established that these items of property, plant and equipment would continue to be utilised for further number
of years and necessitated a review of the original useful life and residual values linked to it. The change in accounting
estimates have been reflected above.

Depreciation charges for the 2019 financial year includes the above changes in estimates of useful life made during the
financial year. The asset classes reflected above include assets that were nearing the end of its useful life, but are still in
use.

Pipelines and reservoirs cost
Pipelines and reservoirs depreciation adjustment
Carrying value impact

-

948
(229)
229

32 337
(1 410)
1 410

Plant equipment cost
Plant equipment depreciation adjustment
Carrying value impact
The impact on depreciation for financial year 2019/2020, 2020/2021 and 2021/2022 will be R 143 thousand

Furniture & office equipment cost
Furniture & office equipment depreciation adjustment
Carrying value impact
The impact on depreciation for financial year 2019/2020, 2020/2021 and 2021/2022 will be R 1 thousand

3 940
(247)
247

57 090
(13 707)
13 707

2019
R'000

Vehicles and Machinery cost
Vehicles and Machinery depreciation adjustment
Carrying value impact
The impact on depreciation for financial year 2019/2020, 2020/2021 and 2021/2022 will be R66 thousand

Change in estimate
Class
Buildings cost
Buildings depreciation adjustment
Carrying value impact
The impact on depreciation for financial year 2019/2020, 2020/2021 and 2021/2022 will be R 1, 088 million

3.
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-

-

-

-

541 274
(13 053)
13 053

2018
R'000

Bloem Water
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2019
R'000
3.

2018
R'000

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2019
Buildings
Opening balance
Additions/capital expenditure
Transferred to completed items
Closing balance

Plant
equipment
613
3 916
4 529

16 768
9 385
(450)
25 703

Pipelines
& reservoirs
260 248
105 071
(104 495)
260 824

Total
277 629
118 372
(104 945)
291 056

Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2018
Buildings
Opening balance
Additions/capital expenditure
Transferred to completed items
Closing balance

Plant
equipment
27
586
613

22 045
2 836
(8 113)
16 768

Pipelines &
reservoirs
168 004
94 082
(1 838)
260 248

Total
190 076
97 504
(9 951)
277 629

- The following projects included in included in work-in-progress 2018/2019 are taking a significantly longer period of time to
complete than expected:
Project:
Carrying value:
The Xhariep Pipeline Project
R4,8 million
The Pipeline between Knellpoort and Welbedacht Project
R6,5 million
The Steel bypass line parallel to existing Caledon/Bfn PCP line from LieuwKop to Brandkop Project
R216 million
Reason – The above projects are taking a significantly longer period of time to complete than expected because of construction
funding constraints.
The construction and equip of the Pipeline Reaction Team workshop
R8,2 million
Reason – The project takes significant longer time to complete due to non-responsiveness and low turnaround of tender
processes.
The upgrade of the Communication Network
R6,4 million
Reason – The project takes significant longer due to delays in obtaining ICASA licenses and imported material lead times.
The Automation of Novo Pump station
Reason – The project takes significant longer time to complete due to imported material lead times.

R3 million

The Construction of the 13 000m long by 250mm Diameter Dewetsdorp Pipeline
Reason – The project takes significant longer due to hard rock challenges.

R18,9 million

The Rustfontein borehole project
Reason – The project takes significant longer due to exploration of water that took longer than expected.

R5,7 million

- All assets are owned assets.
- The cost of repairs and maintenance of Property, plant and equipment is reflected in statement of financial performance.
- A register of all land and servitudes held by Bloem Water is available for inspection at the registered office of the entity.
- The cost price of fully depreciated assets amounts to R3 743 533 (2018: R2 229 453).
Fully depreciated assets per asset class
Furniture and office equipment cost
Plant Equipment
Total:
4.

Cost price
R254 605
R3 488 928
R3 743 533

Living assets
2019

2018

Valuation Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment
Game

438
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Valuation Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment
437

-

437
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2019
R'000
4.

2018
R'000

Living assets (continued)

Reconciliation of living assets - 2019
Opening
Gains or
balance losses arising
from changes
in fair value
437
1

Game

Total

438

Methods and assumptions used in determining fair value
Game was valued in June 2019. The fair value was based on an estimated 113 game, the most significant categories being
Eland and Red Hartebees. The fair values of game are based on market related prices and it was not necessary to apply any
significant judgement. The immaterial change in fair value is recognized in other income. These assets are not restricted nor
is it pledged as security.
Fair value less estimated costs to sell
5.

438

437

Employee benefit obligations / assets

Defined benefit plan
The entity provides retirement benefits for all its permanent employees through a funded defined benefit pension scheme that
is subject to the Pension Funds Act, 1956 as amended.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Carrying value
Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

(290 914)
290 914
-

Non-current assets
Non-current liabilities

-

(267 609)
268 643
1 034
1 034
1 034

Analysis of funding indicating the present value of the defined benefit obligations that is
unfunded and the present value of the defined benefit obligations that is fully or partially
funded:
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of the defined benefit obligation before paragraph .68 limit
Funding (shortfall)/surplus

290 914
(284 344)
6 570

268 643
(267 609)
1 034

The assets of the fund as at the valuation date were invested as follows:
Prudential Inflation Plus
Coronation Managed
Sanlam Absolute Return
Sampada Equity
Cash at bank
Sundry debtors
Sundry creditors
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69 015
95 467
117 579
4 846
4 755
(147)
(601)

65 929
92 890
107 743
3 111
(144)
(887)

290 914

268 643
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2019
R'000
5.

2018
R'000

Employee benefit obligations / assets (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Opening balance
Employee cost
Benefits paid
Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance

(267 609)
(7 583)
24 491
(40 213)

(238 221)
(6 313)
23 138
(46 213)

(290 914)

(267 609)

(17 531)
(28 675)
12 563
(6 571)

(15 617)
(23 943)
(6 653)
-

(40 214)

(46 213)

268 642
29 580
(22 156)
39 339
(24 491)

237 736
24 756
(11 018)
40 306
(23 138)

290 914

268 642

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gains) losses
GRAP 25 paragraph .68 Limit

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Opening balance
Expected return
Actuarial gains (losses)
Contributions
Benefits paid

The entity expects to contribute R18 317 458 to its defined benefit plans in the following financial year.
Key assumptions used
The principal actuarial assumptions used were:
Pre-retirement discount rate
General salary increase rate
Inflation
Investment return/salary differential
Post-retirement discount rate*

10.96 %
8.24 %
7.24 %
2.51 %
3.46 %

Pre-retirement Mortality – SA 85-90 ultimate with a light AIDS loading.
Post-retirement Mortality – PA (90) ultimate less 3 years.
*This rate implicitly takes into account the pension increase policy of the Trustees of 100% of inflation.
Asset allocation of fund
Domestic Equity – 29.5%
Domestic Property – 6.3%
Domestic Bonds – 19%
Domestic Cash – 20.5%
Private Equity – 1.7%
Foreign Assets - 23.1%
Other assumptions
Assumed pension fund cost trends rates have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in profit or loss. A one
percentage point change in assumed pension fund cost trends rates would have the following effects:
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10,72 %
8,46 %
7,46 %
2,08 %
3,03 %

Bloem Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand thousand

5.

Employee benefit obligations / assets (continued)

`

One
percentage point
increase
Effect on service cost
Effect on interest cost
Effect on defined benefit obligation

175
286
2 909

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan asset
Surplus/(deficit) as per AFS

2019
R'000
(290 914)
290 914
-

2018
R'000
(267 608)
268 642
1 034

2017
R'000
(238 221)
237 736
(485)

2016
R'000
(219 469)
216 550
(2 919)

One
percentage
point
decrease
(175)
(286)
(2 909)
2015
R'000
(192 503)
184 900
(7 603)

The Projected Unit Credit Method is used to place a value on the past service liabilities.
The asset ceiling provision in terms of GRAP 25 paragraph .68 limit ensures the asset to be recognized in the statement of
financial position is subject to a maximum of the present value of any economic benefits available to the Employer in the form of
refunds or reductions in future contributions.
Other actuarial assumptions used in determining the liabilities in respect of active Members are set out below.
Discount rate assumption
GRAP25 requires that the Fund’s liabilities be discounted with reference to the yield on government debt. For this purpose, it was
relied on the JSE Zero Coupon Nominal Bond Curve with an average duration of 17.5 to 22.5 years.
The discount rate has been set by using the best-fit discount rate as at 30 June 2019 based on the yields from the zero-coupon
government bond curve. The recommended discount rate is 10.96%. The source is the Johannesburg Stock Exchange through
Inet BFA data service. At 2017/2018 valuation a gross discount rate of 10.72% per annum was used.
Future inflation assumption
The implied long-term inflation rate at the valuation date was based on the differential between the above discount rate, and the
real rate implied by the JSE Zero Coupon Real Bond Yield Curve, also with an average duration of 17.5 to 22.5 years. The latter
was equal to 3.46% per annum at the valuation date. This gave rise to the inflation assumption of 7.24%. The inflation assumption
used 2017/2018 was 7.46% per annum.
Future salary inflation assumption
It is assumed that future salary inflation will exceed general inflation by 1% per annum. The implied salary inflation assumption is
therefore 8.24% per annum. The future salary inflation assumption used for the 2017/2018 valuation was 8.46% per annum.
We have also included salary increases due to promotional or merit increases as follows:
A
Salary increases
Age
Salary increases
20
12.0%
25
9.0%
30
6.0%
35
3.0%
40
2.0%
45
1.0%
50
12.0%
55
9.0%
This is consistent with the assumptions as per 2017/2018 valuation.
Investment return assumption relative to salary increase assumption
The salary-increase and investment-return assumptions reflect a “real return” of 2.51% (10.96% investment return relative to 8.24%
salary inflation). It is important to note that salary increases and the return on assets tend to be related. This means that if the actual
real return is in excess of that assumed then the excess will go toward improving the financial position of the Fund.
Pension increase assumption
The Bloem Water Pension Fund’s stated aim is to target pension increases of 100% of the change in inflation. This implies future
pension increases of 7.24% per annum.
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Employee benefit obligations / assets (continued)

Net post-retirement discount rate
Based on the differential between the gross discount rate of 10.96% and the pension increase rate of 7.24%, it is expected that a net
post-retirement discount rate of 3.46% per annum would finance pension increases of 100% of inflation over the long term.
The net post-retirement discount rate at the previous valuation date was set at 3.03%.
Minimum benefits
The Board of Trustees elected to use the Earnings Yield method for the calculation of minimum benefits. The Earnings Yield as at 31
May 2019 was equal to 2.20% per annum. This assumption is consistent with the assumption used for the 2017/2018 valuation report,
which was equal to 2.03% per annum.
Demographic valuation assumptions
Pre-retirement mortality
It is assumed that the pre-retirement mortality will be in line with SA585-90 (Light) table. This is a table reflecting mortality experience
in South Africa. This assumption is consistent with the assumption used for the 2017/2018 valuation.
Post-retirement mortality
It is assumed that the post-retirement mortality will be in line with PA (90) mortality tables (male and female), rated down 3 years.
This assumption is consistent with the assumption used for the 2017/2018 valuation.
Family statistics
It is assumed that on average a husband would be 3 years older than his wife and that 80% of males and 30% of females are married
at retirement. This assumption is consistent with the assumption used for the 2017/2018 valuation.

Resignation rates
The following rates of withdrawal have
been used in the valuation: Age
Age
20
25
30
35
40
45
50
55

Average annual percentage rate of
withdrawal
Average annual percentage rate of
withdrawal
20.0%
17.5%
15.0%
12.5%
10.0%
7.5%
5.0%
2.5%

This is consistent with the assumptions as per the 2017/2018 valuation.
There were no further experience adjustments made to Defined Benefit Obligations and Pan Assets.

A N NUA L
20 18

135

R E P O RT
2019

Bloem Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
2019
R'000

6.

2018
R'000

Inventories

Chemicals
Maintenance items and consumables
Water

6 617
8 701
2 811

4 262
6 932
2 170

18 129

13 364

101 606
12 053
1 304

185 632
9 997
1 116

114 963

196 745

The amount of inventories provided for to write-off to estimate net realisable value through
expenditure is R741 690 (2018: R0). The carrying amount of these items written off is R0.
This relates to maintenance items and consumables that were obsolete and disposal
process to unfold.
No inventory has been pledged as security.
7.

Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade debtors
Deposits - Eskom (SOC) Ltd, Centlec (SOC) Ltd & other
Other receivables
Trade and other receivables pledged as security
No trade and other receivables have been pledged as security.
Credit quality of trade and other receivables

Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. Management assesses the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial position, past and current experience and its future expectations. The entity utilizes a
system where when debtors do not settle their account within 60 days a warning letter is issued after which the water supply is
restricted in accordance with the water services act until the account is settled.
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2019
R'000

7.

2018
R'000

Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)
Trade Receivables
Reconciliation of net trade receivables
Gross trade receivables
Allowance for impairment
Reconciliation of municipal debt included in trade receivables
Municipal debt
Allowance for impairment

Reconciliation of provision for impairment related to municipal debt
Opening balance
Movement in impairment allowance for the year
Reconciliation of amounts written off as uncollectible as per Treasury mediation
resolution included in impairment of receivables in the Statement of Financial
Performance
Interest
Capital (Excluding VAT of R49 349 855)
R176 million settlement agreement – capital (Excluding VAT of R22 956 522)
Net amount written off

772 110
(670 504)

936 651
(751 019)

101 606

185 632

761 847
(668 627)

925 891
(747 505)

93 220

178 386

747 505
(78 878)

448 652
298 853

668 627

747 505

117 538
346 741
(153 043)

-

311 236

-

Several Intergovernmental processes and Mediation processes involving Stakeholders (National Treasury, Department of Human
Settlement, Water and Sanitation, COGTA, SALGA, Free State Provincial Government, etc) have been followed for the recovery of
outstanding debt. Amounts have been written-off in terms of Treasury Mediation resolutions reached
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2019
R'000

7.

2018
R'000

Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Based on historical default rates, the entity believes that no additional impairment allowances are necessary in respect of trade
receivables. The following amounts not impaired have been received subsequent to year-end.

Current
Past due 30 to 60 days
Past due 60 to 90 days
Past due 90 to 120 days
Past due more than 120 days
Net trade receivables

8 053
334
52 151
102
40 965
101 606

76 303
45 898
81
79
63 271
185 632

Trade and other receivables impaired
Trade receivables exceeding payment terms are interest bearing at the prime overdraft rate plus 200 basis points. Payment terms
are generally 30 days from statement date. At year-end the prime overdraft rate was 10.25% (2018: 10%). Movements in the
provision for impairment of receivables were as follows:
Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Opening balance
(Reversal)/impairment of receivables - movement in impairment allowance for the year

Total amounts (excluding VAT) written off as uncollectible included in the Statement of Financial
Performance.
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751 019
(80 515)
670 504

453 874
297 145
751 019

313 813

91
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2019
R'000
7.

2018
R'000

Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Concentration of risk

2019
Current

2019
Overdue

87 607
7 210
204

362 023
303 290
1 514

95 021
8 053

666 827
2 209

103 074

669 036

At 30 June 2019, the concentration of credit risk is as follows:
Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality
Kopanong Local Municipality
Mantsopa Local Municipality
Subtotal
Other

8.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Bank balances
Short-term deposits

184 768
251 859

97 264
130 854

436 627

228 118

-

2 738

Cash and cash equivalents held by the entity that are not available for use by the
economic entity
The total amount represents unspent conditional grants.

Short term deposits are held on call deposit accounts, which are all fixed for 3 months or less. The accounts are not actively
traded and are carried at amortised cost. Interest on these accounts varies between 7,15% and 7,79% per annum (2018:
between 6,8% and 7,72% per annum). As these deposits are short-term highly liquid accounts that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value they are classified as cash and cash
equivalents. The short-term deposits have therefore been allocated to cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position for the financial years. The reallocation has not affected or altered the current asset position of Bloem Water.
Interest on the current accounts were at 4,75% per annum (2018: 5% per annum). Interest on call account was at 5,9% per
annum. The interest on the money market accounts was 7,45% at year-end (2018: 7,12%).
9.

Infrastructure project receivable

Reconciliation of opening balance to closing balance
Opening balance of fund advance by Bloem Water in respect of the projects
Funds received from the Department of Water and Sanitation and Ngwathe Local
Municipality (excluding VAT) for the financial year
Funds utilised in respect of the project (excluding VAT) for the financial year
Implementation agent fee (excluding VAT) for the financial year
Closing balance of funds advanced by Bloem Water in respect of the project
Department of Water and Sanitation
Funds received from the Department of Water and Sanitation and Ngwathe Local
Municipality (excluding VAT)
Funds utilised in respect of the project (excluding VAT)
Implementation agent fee (excluding VAT)
Funds advanced by Bloem Water in respect of the project

72 384
(72 384)

72 384
-

-

-

-

72 384

(592 987)

(520 603)

546 459
46 528

546 459
46 528

-

72 384

Bloem Water has been appointed as an implementing agent by the Department of Water and Sanitation for the construction
of public toilets and the eradication of the bucket system in the Free State. The applicable VAT rate was 14%.
Bloem Water is entitled to receive an implementation agent fee amounting to 10% of the construction fee incurred. The agent
fees for the financial year amounted to R0 (2018: R0) (excluding VAT). The agent fee income is included in other income on
the statement of comprehensive income.
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2019
R‘000
9.

2018
R'000

Infrastructure project receivable (continued)

Funds committed by Department of Water and Sanitation (including VAT)
2013/14
2014/15

230 000
335 337

Funds for 2015/16 were committed in terms of agreed scope
Funds received (including VAT)
Funds utilised in respect of the project (including VAT)
Implementing agent fee being 10% of construction cost (including VAT)

676 005

593 499

(622 963)

(622 963)

(53 042)

(53 042)

-

(82 506)

22 889

30 710

-

5 878

129 268

154 581

3 386

4 870

40

4

Total interest-bearing borrowings

155 583

196 043

Non-current liabilities
At amortised cost

114 375

151 409

41 208

44 634

Balance inclusive of VAT

10. Interest bearing borrowings at amortised cost

Nedbank
The loan is unsecured and bears interest at a fixed rate of 9,12% per annum. Average
repayments of R5 221 403 are made on a six-monthly basis. The agreement came
into effect on 29 December 2006 and will continue until 29 December 2021
Sanlam
The loan is unsecured and bears interest at the 6 month JIBAR rate plus 1,45%.
Interest rate for the year was at 9.042% (2018: 8 . 9 1 7 % and 9 . 4 %) per annum.
The effective rate at 8 August 2018 was 9,042% (2017 – 30 June 2018: 9,4%). A
repayment of R5 928 643 were made on 8 August 2018. The agreement came into
effect on 9 August 2008 and ended on 8 August 2018.
Nedbank
The loan is unsecured and bears interest at a fixed rate of 9,8% per annum. The loan
facility amounts to approximately R269,6 million and has a draw down arrangement.
Average repayments of approximately R19,3 million are made on a six-monthly
basis. The agreement came into effect on 1 March 2013 and will continue until 1
March 2023.
Development Bank of South Africa
The loan is unsecured and bears interest at a fixed rate of 8,91% per annum. Average
repayments of R922 648 are made on a six monthly basis. The agreement came into
effect on 31 March 2006 and will continue until 31 March 2021.
Corporate credit card
The credit card account is unsecured and bears interest at 17,2% per annum

Current liabilities
At amortised cost
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R'000

2018
R'000

Figures in Rand thousands

11. Finance leases liability
Non-current liabilities
At amortised cost

814

-

Current liabilities
At amortised cost

739

-

The 36 months finance lease was entered into for 20 photocopiers and bears interest at Bloem Water’s incremental borrowing
rate of interest. Installments of R72 105 are payable on the 1st day of each month without any escalation. No further restrictions
and contingent rent are imposed on the lease agreement. The depreciation on these assets were R735 848 and the finance
charge was R210 819 for the year.
Reconciliation between the total of future minimum lease payments at the reporting date, and their present value:
Description

Lease
payments

Finance
charges

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

865
865

(133)
(44)
-

12.

-

Present
value
of lease
payments
732
821
-

Payables from exchanged transactions

Trade payables
Payroll accruals
Project retention accruals
Work in process accruals
Water abstraction cost accruals
Energy cost accruals
Cost recovery project
Other accruals

6 925
24 443
6 791
12 200
14 730
2 185
344
8 390

6 753
22 786
14 532
11 863
16 782
6 382
479
10 018

76 008

89 595

79 775
(3 428)
83 203

85 806
(10 112)
95 918

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms.
13. VAT payable
Total VAT liability
VAT payable / (receivable) at year end
VAT payable / (receivable) in future periods

The entity is registered on the cash basis for Value Added Tax (VAT). The total VAT liability at yearend consists of an amount
payable or receivable at the VAT period end based on realized cash transactions as well as an amount payable or receivable
in future periods as cash transactions are realized.
14. Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Department of Water and Sanitation

-

2 738

Movement during the year
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Income recognition during the year

2 738
96 048
(98 786)
-
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R'000

14. Unspent conditional grants and receipts (continued)
Funds received during the financial year were for the Steel bypass line parallel to existing Caledon/Bfn PCP line for 33.7km
lenght, 1000mm diameter from LieuwKop to Brandkop. Funds were also received in prior years for the Rustfontein to
Botshabelo Pipeline project.
Other than the amounts unspent, the conditions of the grants have been met.

15. Finance income

Interest revenue
Interest on trade receivables
Interest on cash and cash equivalents
Investment income

76 543
10 112
16 707

84 067
6 507
5 883

103 362

96 457

98 786

102 688

752 104
2 572
103 362
98 786
956 824

708 823
3 298
96 457
102 688
911 266

752 104
2 572
103 362

708 823
3 298
96 457

858 038

808 578

98 786

102 688

16. Government grants and subsidies
Capital grants
Government grant

17. Revenue
Water sales
Other income
Finance income
Government grants & subsidies

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services
are as follows:
Water sales
Other income
Finance income

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as
follows:
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies
18. Water abstraction costs
Water abstraction costs
Water opening stock
Water closing stock
Water resource expenditure
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19. Repairs and maintenance
Vehicles repairs and maintenance
Infrastructure and other asset repairs and maintenance

2 294
20 829
23 123

1 591
15 594
17 185

120 821
8 931
4 010
11 980
28 254
42 313
1 738
218 046

103 327
7 362
1 811
10 923
23 268
34 195
8 943
189 738

1 567
2 629
115
5 222
1 114
1 385
2 888
1 109
2 352
115
741
2 898
958
10 094
2 961
9 390

1 354
2 758
114
2 398
939
1 091
1 835
528
1 906
178
3 504
1 888
12 561
2 480
9 430

45 537

42 963

16 315
(2 667)
211
28 675
1

20 226
(3 793)
23 943
5

42 534

40 380

20. Employment cost
Salaries and Wages
Housing benefits and allowances
Long-service awards
Overtime payments
Performance and other bonuses
UIF, Pensions and Medical Aid
Other employee related costs

21. Operating expenses
Advertising & marketing
Auditors remuneration
Bank charges
Computer and IT expenditure
Conferences seminars and workshop costs
Consulting and contractor costs
General and administration cost
Health and safety
Insurance
Impairment of PPE
Impairment of inventory
Loss on sale of PPE
Legal and contract costs
Printing and stationery
Programmes and initiatives
Telephone
Travelling and stakeholder visits

22. Finance costs
Interest on interest bearing borrowings
Borrowing costs capitalized
Interest on finance lease liability
Interest on Defined Benefit Liability
Other interest
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23. Cash generated from (used in) operations
Surplus
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Sale of asset
Impairment of receivables
Impairment of PPE
Impairment of inventory
Employment cost accruals
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities
(Gain) / loss on fair value adjustment of Living assets
Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Payables from exchange transactions
VAT
Unspent conditional grants and receipts

199 272

139 561

45 475
233 298
115
741
1 658
1 034
(1)

48 480
178
297 235

(5 506)
(151 517)
(8 645)
(6 031)
(2 738)

(92)
(274 462)
12 717
39 488
(7 293)

307 155

3 820
(1 519)
(437)

257 676

24. Operating surplus
Operating surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Impairment on receivables
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Employment costs

233 298
45 475
218 046

297 235

114 963
436 627
-

196 744
228 118
72 384

551 590

497 246

114 375
814
51 565
739
41 208

151 409
66 807
44 634

208 701

262 850

48 480
189 738

25. Financial instruments disclosure
Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets at amortised cost
Receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents
Infrastructure project receivable

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Interest bearing borrowings – non-current
Finance lease liability
Payables from exchange transactions
Current portion of finance lease liability
Current portion of interest-bearing borrowings

A N NUA L
20 18

144

R E P O RT
2019

Bloem Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
2019
R'000

2018
R'000

Figures in Rand thousands

25. Financial risk management
Financial risk management
Risk management is of critical importance to the entity as it understands that changing market conditions make risk
unavoidable. Over the years the entity has sought and implemented a comprehensive risk management process to consistently
identify, understand and properly manage risk at all times.
The entity monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the entity through internal risk
reviews which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include the following:
- liquidity risk;
- credit risk; and
- market risk (including interest rate risk).
The entity seeks to minimise the effects of these risks in accordance with the entity’s policies approved by the Board. The
policies provide written principles on interest rate risk, credit risk, and in the investment of excess liquidity.
The entity does not enter into or trade in financial instruments for speculative purposes.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk of the entity defaulting on its financial obligations as a result of insufficient funding capacity in relation
to such obligations. The entity manages this risk through maintaining adequate working capital, planning and continuing replanning of long-term project costs and funding requirements.
The entity has not defaulted on any payments.
The undiscounted contractual cash flows of the long-term liabilities are set out below:
At 30 June 2019

Less than 1 Between 1
year and 5 years
10 442
15 671
38 594
115 784
1 845
1 845
-

Nedbank
Nedbank
Development Bank of South Africa
Sanlam

The maturity of the contractual cash flows is the future undiscounted value.
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25. Risk management (continued)
Credit risk
Potential concentrations of credit risk mainly consist of cash and cash equivalents and receivables from exchange transactions.
The Board of Bloem Water limits the credit risk arising from short term investments and other cash items by dealing only with
reputable well-established financial institutions in South Africa. Credit control procedures are in place which includes assessing
credit worthiness of potential or existing customers. The financial positions of customers are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Provisions are made for impairment allowances where deemed appropriate.
At 30 June 2019, Bloem Water did not identify any significant concentration of credit risk which had not been insured or
adequately provided for. The entity is exposed to significant credit risk due to the nature of its customers and the extensive
period it takes to recover amounts due.
Concentration of credit risk of receivables from exchange transactions.
At year-end, the following concentrations of credit risk existed with reference to receivables from exchange transactions:
`

Account
Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality
Kopanong Local Municipality
Mantsopa Local Municipality
Other

2019
449 629
310 500
1 718
10 263
772 110

2018
678 329
247 137
425
10 760
936 651

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The following accounts are exposed to
credit risk at the reporting date:
Receivables from exchange transactions (refer to note 7)
Cash and cash equivalent (refer to note 8)
Infrastructure project receivable (refer to note 9)

114 963
436 627
-

196 745
228 118
72 384

550 830

497 247

A maturity analysis of receivables from exchange transactions is set out in note 7.
Market risk
Capital management
The overall objective of the entity’s capital management strategy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain
stakeholder confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Long-term loans and cash reserves are managed
through the process of reviewing all associated risks, including liquidity, credit and interest rate risks. It is also the policy of the
entity to maintain a strong debt to equity ratio as this plays an important role in the entity’s credit rating which impacts positively
on the cost of funding. Accumulated income is managed through a number of initiatives and processes including planning and
budgeting for long-term growth, capital expansion and maintaining or improving cost efficiencies.
Capital is monitored on the debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio.
Total liabilities
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

(312 919)
436 627

(374 182)
228 118

Net amount

123 708

(146 064)

Total equity
Less: Subordinated debt instruments

1 246 858
-

1 046 858
-

Adjusted capital

1 246 858

1 046 858

The debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio for 2019 was 10% (2018: -14%).
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25.Risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from aspects of the entities namely, variable rate interest bearing loans. Interest rate fluctuation will
directly impact on the results of the entity. The following table identifies those financial instruments that are sensitive to interest
rate re-price:
Variable rate interest bearing borrowings
Sanlam, interest rate 9.042% per annum

-

(5 878)

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) profit by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2018.
Sensitivity analysis

Increase
2019

Variable rate interest bearing borrowings

-

Increase
2018

Decrease
2019

(58)

-

Decrease
2018
58

Loans and borrowings to the value of R155 583 (2018: R190 165) are fixed interest rate loans. Therefore, a change in
interest rate at the reporting date would not affect the profit or loss.
Short term investments classified as cash and cash equivalents to the value of R251 859 (2018: R130 817) are fixed interest
rate investments. Therefore, a change in the interest rate at the reporting date would not affect the profit or loss.
Foreign currency
The entity is not exposed to foreign currency risk as no transactions in foreign currency are entered into.
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26.Commitments
Capital commitments
Estimated capital expenditure
Approved and contracted

Property, plant and equipment

43 428

61 057

Approved, not yet contracted

Property, plant and equipment

-

-

Capital commitments, excluding interest capitalised, include all projects for which specific Board approval has been granted
up to the reporting date. Projects still under investigation for which specific Board approval has not yet been granted are
excluded.
A commitment of R392 million (Excluding VAT) have been made on the construction of steel Pipeline Parallel existing
Caledon/Bfn PCP Line for 33.7km length, 1000mm diameter from Lieuwkop to Brandkop. The appointment is subject to
confirmation of financial allocation per year as planned from the Department of Water and Sanitation.
The expenditure will be financed through general external borrowings, available cash resources and internally generated
funds.
27.Contingencies
Bloem Water is involved in an ongoing litigation regarding the cancellation of a service contract in the prior years due to nonperformance of the supplier ALO Vivacitas. The service provider instituted a claim against Bloem Water in which Bloem Water
issued a counter claim against the service provider for contract breach. Management has not raised a liability in the annual
financial statements as the outcome of this claim is not yet known. The value of the claim is estimated at +/- R5 million. (+/R5 million - 2017/2018)
Bloem Water is also involved in a number of pending labour arbitration matters (case numbers D1143/16, JA83/2016,
FSBF1487-17, FSBF1019-18, SFSBF2783-19) . No liability has been recognised in the annual financial statements because
management is of the view that the existence of the possible obligations will only be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of uncertain future events not within the control of Bloem Water. It is not possible to estimate the value of these
claims at this point. (+/- R2.9 million - 2017/2018)
Bloem Water is involved in a case against Gariep District residents who sued Bloem Water to restore water supply to full
capacity. The case has been finalized. (+/-R350 000 – 2017/2018)
Bloem Water were instructed to institute legal action against various Bloemfontein businessmen who stopped the construction
of the steel Pipeline Parallel existing Caledon/Bfn PCP Line for 33.7km length, 1000mm diameter from Lieuwkop to Brandkop
project implementation thrice and threatening more stoppages. The case has been finalized. (+/- R350 000 – 2017/2018)
Bloem Water is involved in a case against Jimmy Roos Farmers Dewetsdorp for illegal water connections and recovery of cost
for water used. The application is pending at court and we are currently awaiting the Respondent file its answering affidavit.
The financial exposure is estimated at +/- R2 million. (R0 – 2017/2018)
Bloem Water is involved in a case against Inyathi Specialist Coatiing (Pty) Ltd who is suing Bloem Water for not paying
invoices. Inyathi Specialist Coatiing (Pty) Ltd is the subcontractor of PATSA Civils (main contractor), who were awarded a
contract to build a reservoir in Trompsburg under a cession agreement. Bloem Water is the implementing agent of the
department and can only effect payment to PATSA upon receipt of remittances from Kopanong Local Municipality. The matter
is pending and the court date herein is 22 August 2019. The financial exposure is estimated at +/- R1,3 million. (R0 –
2017/2018)
Bloem Water is involved in a case against Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality. A claim for +/-R313 million against Bloem
Water for raw water billing structure charges calculated from 2010. Bloem Water's legal advisors believe that Bloem Water
has reasonable defences against the claims and estimate the probable cost at +/- R3 million. No provision has been made in
the annual financial statements. The matter is pending and the next court date is 29th August 2019. Application for Leave to
Appeal has been lodged in respect of the current order and a further application was lodged to National Treasury for mediation.
(R0 – 2017/2018)
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28.Related parties
During the year 1991 the then Department of Water Affairs established Bloem Area Water Board with the aim to operate the
Caledon/Bloemfontein Government Water Scheme as well as supplying water to the Municipal areas of Bloemfontein,
Bainsvlei, Bloemspruit, Botshabelo and Dewetsdorp. Through a consultative process the name was changed to Bloem Water
and officially gazetted in 1994 to operate and account its activities in accordance with the Water Services Act with its Head
Office located in Bloemfontein.
Bloem Water in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended, is listed as a Schedule
3B National Government Business Enterprise which reports to the Minister of Water and Sanitation as the Executive Authority,
through the Board as the Accounting Authority.
Bloem Water has been appointed as an implementing agent by the Department of Water and Sanitation for the construction
of public toilets and the eradication of the bucket system in the Free State. Refer to Infrastructure project receivable note 9 in
the statement of financial position.
Bloem Water received conditional capital grants from the Department of Water and Sanitation to implement projects.
Funds received during the financial year were for the Steel bypass line parallel to existing Caledon/Bfn PCP line for 33.7km
length, 1000mm diameter from LieuwKop to Brandkop. Funds were also received in prior years for the Rustfontein to
Botshabelo Pipeline project. Refer to Unspent conditional grants and receipts in the statement of financial position and note
14.
Bloem Water purchases raw water from the Department of Water and Sanitation (“the Department”). Refer to water abstraction
cost in the statement of financial performance and note 18. At yearend, Bloem Water owed the Department 2019: R14,7m
(2018: R16,7m)
Apart from the transactions listed in the previous paragraph, Bloem Water undertakes the following transactions with other
entities in the same sphere of goverment at arms-length:
•
•
•
•

Electricity supplied by Eskom.
Air travel is supplied by the South African Airways, which is controlled by the national government.
Telephone services are provided by Telkom.
PAYE, SITE and other payroll taxes are collected by Bloem Water and remitted to the South African Revenue
Services on a monthly basis.

The Board members and key management, as identified in this note and note 28, are considered related parties and their
expenses are included in employment costs in the statement of financial performance.
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5 972

10 759

875
711
659
574
585
790
573
4 767

1 763
1 327
1 319
1 469
1 367
1 518
1 008
9 771

Basic salary Bonuses and
performance
related
payments

887
757
799
672
642
955
1 260

1 814
1 539
1 460
1 584
1 313
1 544
1 505

Basic salary Bonuses and
performance
related
payments

788

134
224
102
59
46
140
83

Other shortterm
employee
benefits

776

134
224
102
50
50
140
76

Other shortterm
employee
benefits

1 857

178
365
327
326
270
149
242

Postemployment
benefits

2 192

251
382
372
328
297
270
292

Postemployment
benefits

17 183

2 950
2 627
2 407
2 428
2 268
2 597
1 906

Total

19 699

3 086
2 902
2 733
2 634
2 302
2 909
3 133

Total

No further remuneration received for fees for services as a member of management, termination benefits, other long-term benefits, commission, gain or surplus sharing
arrangements and other.

Name
Dr L Moorosi
Mr OJ Stadler
Mr MG Rapudungoane
Mr TS Ngubeni
Ms NP Silevu
Ms SL Meyer
Ms NM Motlhaolwa

2018

Name
Dr L Moorosi
Mr OJ Stadler
Mr MG Rapudungoane
Mr TS Ngubeni
Ms NP Silevu
Ms SL Meyer
Ms NM Motlhaolwa

2019

Executive management

Remuneration of management

28. Related parties (continued)

Figures in Rand thousand
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29. Board members' emoluments

2019
Period served during the
2018/19 financial year
Board Member

Mr TB Phitsane
Ms P Matete
Adv LR Bomela
Dr MJ Ellman
Ms MMS Maboe
Phike
Ms CM Mahlakahlaka
Ms DM Manamela
Mr TM Manyoni
Mr Z Mkiva
Ms MAF Moja
Mr LX Ntoyi
Mr JJ Price
Ms TN Sandlana
Adv TD SegoeBackward
Mr LE Van Rheede
Van Oudtshoorn
Totals

Date of first
appointment

Start date

End date

Board

Expense

Activity Fees

Allowance

Total

01.06.2009
01.07.2014
01.05.2010
01.07.2014

01.07.2018
01.07.2018
01.07.2018
01.07.2018

30.06.2019
31.03.2019
31.03.2019
31.03.2019

(R’000)
125
41
6
103

(R’000)
20
0
0
2

Remuneration
(R’000)
145
41
6
105

01.06.2009

01.07.2018

31.03.2019

146

40

186

01.07.2014
01.04.2019
01.04.2019
01.07.2014
01.04.2019
01.04.2019
01.04.2019
01.04.2019

01.07.2018
01.04.2019
01.04.2019
01.07.2018
01.04.2019
01.04.2019
01.04.2019
01.04.2019

31.03.2019
30.06.2019
30.06.2019
30.06.2019
30.06.2019
30.06.2019
30.06.2019
30.06.2019

70
31
24
53
21
47
47
26

2
0
1
16
3
1
6
1

72
31
25
69
24
48
53
27

01.04.2019

01.04.2019

30.06.2019

44

0

44

01.04.2019

01.04.2019

30.06.2019

47

1

48

830

93

923

2018

Period served during the
2017/18 financial year
Board Member

Phitsane, Mr TB
Matete, Ms P
Van der Merwe, Dr J
Maboe, Ms MSS
Mokhesi, Mr N
Bomela, Adv LR
Ellman, Dr MJ
Mkiva, Mr Z
Mahlakahlaka, Ms CM
Totals

Date of first
appointment

01.06.2009
01.07.2014
01.06.2009
01.06.2009
01.06.2009
01.05.2010
01.07.2014
01.07.2014
01.07.2014

Start date

01.07.2017
01.07.2017
01.07.2017
01.07.2017
01.07.2017
01.07.2017
01.07.2017
01.07.2017
01.07.2017
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30.06.2018
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27.11.2017
30.06.2018
31.03.2018
30.06.2018
30.06.2018
30.06.2018
30.06.2018
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Board
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Fees
(R ‘000)
107
78
54
221
38
40
108
60
134
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Expense
Allowance
(R ‘000)
34
3
25
96
4
1
4
24
3
194

Total
Remuneration
(R’000)
141
81
79
317
42
41
112
84
137
1 034
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2019
R'000

2018
R'000

30. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Balance at the beginning of the year
Current year expenditure
Amounts condoned
Amounts not recoverable (not condoned)

-

-

Balance at end of the year

-

-

Possible fruitless and wasteful expenditure of 2017/2018 on the Rustfontein to Botshabelo Pipeline project investigation was
completed.
The entity had appointed an independent Professional Service Provider to investigate two variation orders amounting to
R10,498,926.08 (Excl VAT) for Remedial Measures Cost and the report and its recommendation had been discussed with all the
respective parties. The following indicates the cost recovered based on the outcome of the report:
- R616,938.19 had already been recovered from the Contractor and,
- R4,510 523.10 to be recovered from the Consultant (The proposal has been received from the Consultant for a settlement of
R2.5 million of the R4,510 523) and the remainder the PSP indicated that it is prepared to go to court to defend themselves.
- R5,371 464.78 is not recovered as Bloem Water had benefitted from the upgrade of the Isolating Valve Chambers.
31. Irregular expenditure

Balance at the beginning of the year
Current year expenditure
Amounts condoned
Amounts not recoverable (not condoned)

1 131
3 766
-

11
1 120
-

Balance at end of the year

4 897

1 131

R1,922 million (R1,113 million – 2017/2018 & R0,791 million – 2018/2019) due to non-compliance with National Treasury Instruction
note nr 3 of 2016/17. It relates to an extension of a contract beyond allowed percentage. Investigation was concluded and
consequence management dealt with accordingly. Treasury condonement is outstanding.
R2,975 million due to non-compliance with Treasury Instruction note 3 of 2016/2017 paragraph 8. Deviation from normal bidding
processes for which Treasury condonement is outstanding.
Improved contract management, timeously renewal of contracts and capacitate of Supply Chain department will assist the entity to
ensure a greater degree of compliance in terms of National Treasury Instruction notes. Engagements between National Treasury
and Management is ongoing.
Possible Irregular expenditure:
R1,64 million possible non-compliance with section 4(1) of preferential procurement regulation of 2017 for a transversal contract by
the Freestate Provincial Treasury which Bloem Water participated in. There is a pending court case between Free State Provincial
Treasury and Auditor General of South Africa.
R5,718 million possible non-compliance with Treasury regulation 16(A)(6). Bloem Water participated in a Mangaung Metropolitan
Municipality contract. National Treasury view of whether Schedule 3(B) entities can partake in such contracts is pending.
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32. First-time adoption of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
The entity has applied Directive 2, Transitional provisions for public entities, trading entities, municipal entities, public further
education and training colleges and constitutional institutions, to provide a starting point for the reporting under Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice. On principle these standards have been applied retrospectively and the 2018 comparatives
contained in these annual financial statements differ from those published in the annual financial statements published for the
year ended 30 June 2018.
The date of transition was 1 July 2018 and the effect of the transition was as follows:
Reconciliation of equity at 01 July 2018
Note

As reported
under
previous
GAAP

Effects of
transition to
GRAP

GRAP

Property, plant and equipment
Living assets
Defined benefit asset

908 955
437
64 647

1
(63 613)

908 956
437
1 034

Total non-current assets

974 039

(63 612)

910 427

Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents
Infrastructure project receivable

13 364
196 744
228 118
72 384

1
-

13 364
196 745
228 118
72 384

Total current assets

510 610

1

510 611

Interest bearing borrowings
Deferred income
Current portion of interest-bearing borrowings
Payables from exchange transactions
VAT payable
Unspent conditional grants and receipts

151 409
198 104
44 634
175 399
-

(198 104)
(85 804)
85 806
2 738

151 409
44 634
89 595
85 806
2 738

Total liabilities

569 546

(195 364)

374 182

Total assets less total liabilities

915 103

131 753

1 046 856

Accumulated profit
Capital replacement fund
Capital development fund
Insurance fund

741 261
87 350
70 217
16 275

131 753
-

873 014
87 350
70 217
16 275

Total equity

915 103

131 753

1 046 856

Notes
The grant income, disclosed as deferred income, was carried as deferred income until completion of the asset, at which time
the deferred income will be offset against the cost of the asset. Under GRAP the deferred income is classified as an unspent
conditional grant and income is recognised as expenses are incurred, not just on completion.
SA GAAP allowed the entity to apply the corridor method to account for actuarial gains or losses. Under GRAP these gains
and losses are immediately recognised into profit and loss. The result is an adjustment to the defined benefit asset/obligation.
GRAP introduces the concept of exchange and non-exchange transactions and these different types of transactions require
separate disclosure. Taxes are classified as non-exchange transactions and the result is that the VAT payable is disclosed
separately under GRAP.
The net effect of the changes as mentioned above is reflected in the change in accumulated surplus.
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Figures in Rand thousand
32. First-time adoption of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (continued)
Reconciliation of surplus or deficit for 2018
Note

As reported
under
previous
GAAP

Revenue
Other income
Finance income
Government grants & subsidies
Gross surplus
Water abstraction costs
Chemicals
Depreciation
Energy cost
Repairs and maintenance
Employee related cost
Impairment loss/Reversal of impairments
Bad debt written off
Operating expenses
Finance costs

Effects of
transition to
GRAP

GRAP

708 823
3 120
96 457
-

178*
102 688

708 823
3 298
96 457
102 688

808 400
(24 959)
(17 769)
(48 480)
(92 995)
(17 185)
(199 067)
(297 235)
(42 785)
(16 438)

102 866
9 329*
92*
(91)*
(178)*
(23 942)*

911 266
(24 959)
(17 769)
(48 480)
(92 995)
(17 185)
(189 738)
(297 145)
(91)
(42 963)
(40 380)

Net surplus before tax

51 487

88 074

139 561

Net surplus

51 487

88 074

139 561

Notes
Under SA GAAP, capital grants received were disclosed as deferred income and were carried as deferred income until
completion of the asset, at which time the deferred income will be offset against the cost of the asset. Under GRAP, grant
income is recognised as expenses are incurred, not just on completion.
SA GAAP allowed the entity to apply the corridor method to account for actuarial gains or losses. Under GRAP these gains
and losses are immediately recognised into profit and loss. The result is an increase in the employee costs.
* Refer to prior period error note for error impact on disclosed amounts.
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32. First-time adoption of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (continued)
Reconciliation of cash flow statement

As reported
under
previous
GAAP

Description
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Water sales and other income
Finance income
Government grants

Effects of
transition to
GRAP

GRAP

519,013
12,391
531,404

2,276
(1)
95,394
97 669

521,289
12,390
95,394
629,073

(312,378)
(20,231)
(332,609)

(18 639)
(20 149)
(38 518)

(331 017)
(40 380)
(371,127)

198,795

58 882

257,677

(117,678)
22
(40,306)
(157,962)

(3,794)
(16)
40,306
36 496

(121,472)
6
(121,466)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings
Increase in finance lease liability
Deferred income
Net cash flows from financing activities

(42,161)
95,394
53,233

(95,394)
(95 394)

(42,161)
(42,161)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

94,067
134,047
228,114

(17)
21
4

94,050
134,068
228,118

51 487

88 074

139,561

48,480
178
297,235
3819
24,174
(437)
3,819

1
(25,693)
(3,819)

48,480
178
297,235
3 820
(1,519)
(437)
-

(92)
(190,394)
52,204
-

(84,068)
(1)
(7,293)

(92)
(274,462)
52 205
(7,293)

Payments
Employment costs and suppliers
Finance costs

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Contributions made to defined benefit plan
Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash generated from (used in) operations detail note
Surplus
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Sale of asset
Impairment of receivables
Employment cost accrual
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities
(Gain) / loss on fair value adjustment of Living assets
Increase in payroll accrual

Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Payables from exchange transactions and VAT
Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Note - The cash flow statement classification between operating, investing and financing activities are impacted by the
conversion from GAAP to GRAP as indicated in the reconciliation of the statement of financial position and statement of
financial performance. Cash and cash equivalents balances exclude corporate card balances part of Interest-Bearing
Borrowings after conversion to GRAP. Rounding differences have also been amended.
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32. First-time adoption of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (continued)

Note 3 - Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of Work-in-Progress 2018

22 045

27

Pipelines &
reservoirs
168 004

2 836

586

94 082

97 504

Transferred to completed items

(8 113)

-

(1 838)

(9 951)

Closing balance

16 768

613

260 248

277 629

Description

Buildings

Opening balance
Additions/capital expenditure

Plant equipment

Total
190 076

Note - This is an additional GRAP detail note requirement for which no disclosure was made in the 2017/2018 amounts per
published GAAP financial statements.
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33. Prior period error in secondary detail notes
Reconciliation of surplus or deficit in secondary notes for 2018
2017/2018
amounts per
published
GAAP financial
statements

Comparative
amounts as per
2018/2019 GRAP
Annual Financial
Statements

Differences

(213 680)
(16 438)

(189 738)
(40 380)

23 942
(23 942)

Impairment loss/Reversal of impairments
Bad debts written off
Note – Split of impairment loss between impairment loss and
bad debts written off

297 235
-

(297 145)
(91)

91
(91)

Other income
Operating Expenses
Note - Reallocation of loss with sale of asset from other
income to operating expenses

3,120
(42,786)

3,298
(42,963)

(178)
178

(1,354)
(407)
(947)
(2,758)
(114)
(2,398)
(939)
(1,090)
(741)
(349)
(1,844)
(44)
(13)
(813)
(52)
(474)
(70)
(287)
(91)
(519)
(75)
(444)
(1,906)
-

(1,354)
(2,758)
(114)
(2,398)
(939)
(1,090)
(1,835)
(528)

(407)
(947)
(741)
(349)
(9)
(44)
(13)
(813)
(52)
(474)
(70)
(287)
(91)
9
(75)
(444)
178
(5,810)
(3,620)

Description
Employment costs after GRAP conversion adjustments
Finance cost
Note – reallocation of interest on Defined Benefit Liability

Operating expenses detail
Advertising & marketing
Advertising
Marketing Costs
Audit remuneration
Bank charges
Computer and IT Expenditure
Conference, Seminars and Workshop Costs
Consulting and contractor cost
Consulting Costs
Contractors
General and administration Expenses
Cleaning Costs
Courier and Postage
General and Administration Expenses
Relocation Costs
Rent Paid - Heavy Duty Equipment
Service Contracts
Subscriptions, Licenses and Membership Fees
Tools and Equipment
Health and safety
Protective Clothing and Uniforms
Safety and Security
Insurance
Impairment for PPE
Impairment for inventory
Loss on sale of PPE
Legal and contract costs
Printing and Stationery
Programmes and Initiatives
Telephone
Travelling and stakeholder visits
Transport costs
Travelling and stakeholder visits
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(178)
(3,504)
(1,888)
(12,561)
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-
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Note - Combining of immaterial amounts in detail notes to reduce clutter of immaterial amounts. Rounding differences have
also been amended.
Figures in Rand thousand
33. Prior period error (continues)
Note 12 and 13 – Payables from exchange transactions and VAT payable

Description

2017/2018 amounts
per published GAAP
financial statements

Payables from exchanged
transactions - Comparative
amounts as per 2018/2019
GRAP Annual Financial
Statements

Differences

22,786
479
21,285
45,043
-

22,786
479
6,753
59,577
14,532
6,382
11,863
16,782
10,018

(14,532)
14,534
14,532
6,382
11,863
16,782
10,018

85,806
175,399

85,806
175,401

2

Payroll accruals
Cost recovery project
Trade payables
Accruals
Project retention accruals
Energy cost accruals
Work in process accruals
Water abstraction cost accruals
Other accruals
VAT Payable
Total

Note - Detail note on payables from exchange transactions have been amended to provide more detail on material amounts
of different nature. Rounding differences have also been amended.
Note 3 – Property, plant and equipment
2017/2018 amounts
per published
financial statements
212,865
1,473
214,338

Description
Land and buildings
Land
Buildings
Roads
Total

Comparative amounts as
per 2018/2019 Annual
Financial Statements
211,868
856
211,012
2,470
214,338

Differences
997
(856)
(211,012)
(997)
-

Notes - Detail note on property, plant and equipment classification between asset classes have been amended.
Note 26 – Commitments

Description

2017/2018 amounts
per published GAAP
financial statements

Payables from exchanged
transactions - Comparative
amounts as per 2018/2019
GRAP Annual Financial
Statements

Differences

50 161

-

(50 161)

Approved, not yet contracted

Note - The previous interpretation was board approved projects not yet contracted where the latest National Treasury manual
issued to departments however interpret Approved not yet contracted as instances where appointment letters have been
issued but contracts have not been signed by the two parties.
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34. Going concern
We draw attention to the fact that Bloem Water made a profit of R199 272 million for the current financial. Included in the profit is
bad debt written off and adequate provision made for impairment of trade receivables as reflected in statement of financial
performance and note 7. Ninety five percent of Bloem Water’s water sales revenue is generated from the Municipalities we are
providing water to. Recovery processes as allowed in accordance with legislation are followed to recover debt from these
Municipalities. All relevant stakeholders are also being kept abreast of the outstanding debt status and impact of non-payment.
Refer to note 7.
At year-end, the company’s total assets still exceeded its total liabilities with approximately R1 246 million and the current assets
exceeds its current liabilities with approximately R371 989 million. The entity has sufficient cash resources to settle its short-term
liabilities as they become due in the normal course of business.
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern since the
Board has every reason to believe that Bloem Water has adequate resources and risk mitigation strategies in place to continue in
operation for the foreseeable future.
35. Events after the reporting date
Subsequent payments, including R29,3 million that was received on arrears by Mangaung Metropolitan Municipality, have been
factored into the allowance for impairment of trade receivables calculation.
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